
Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth 

Leol 
 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 

Dydd Iau, 23 Hydref 2014  

 

Amser: 

09.15 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Sarah Beasley 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

029 2089 8032 

pwyllgor.CCLll@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

Yn ei gyfarfod ar 9 Hydref 2014 penderfynodd y Pwyllgor cyfarfod yn breifat ar gyfer 

eitemau 1 a 2 o'r cyfarfod, o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 (vi) 

1 Papur Briffio Ffeithiol Gwyn ar Ddiwygio Llywodraeth Leol (09.15 - 

09.45)   

Lisa James, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, yr Is-adran Democratiaeth Llywodraeth Leol 

Debra Carter, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, Cyllid a Pherfformiad Llywodraeth Leol 

 

Papur Gwyn – Diwygio Llywodraeth Leol 

2 Ymchwiliad i Dlodi yng Nghymru: cynllunio'r flaenraglen waith (09.45 

- 10.00) (Tudalennau 1 - 11) 

3 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



4 Craffu ar gyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2015-2016 - Sesiwn 

dystiolaeth gan y Prif Weinidog (10.00 - 11.00) (Tudalennau 12 - 44)  

Carwyn Jones AC, y Prif Weinidog 

Caroline Turner, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr, Is-adran y Gymraeg 

Bethan Webb, Pennaeth Uned y Gymraeg 

Egwyl (11.00 - 11.10) 

5 Comisiynydd y Gymraeg: Trafod yr Adroddiad Blynyddol (11.10 - 

12.10) (Tudalennau 45 - 54)  

Meri Huws, Comisiynydd y Gymraeg 

Dyfan Sion, Cyfarwyddwr Polisi ac Ymchwil 

 

Adroddiad Blynyddol 2013-14 
Cynllun Strategol 2013-15 

Fy iaith, fy iechyd: ymholiad i’r Gymraeg mewn gofal sylfaenol 

6 Papurau i'w nodi  (Tudalennau 55 - 136) 

7 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 (vi) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod ac o'r cyfarfod ar 5 Tachwedd 2014   

8 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2015-16: Trafod y llythyrau 

drafft (12.20 - 12.30) (Tudalennau 137 - 151) 

9 Y Bil Trais ar sail Rhywedd, Cam-drin Domestig a Thrais Rhywiol 

(Cymru): trafod adroddiad drafft Cyfnod 1 (12.30 - 13.30) (Tudalennau 152 

- 199) 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 12

Eitem 4 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



1 

 

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 

CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 2 
 
Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
 
Dyddiad: 23 Hydref 2014 
Amser: 10:00-11:00 
Teitl: Cais am wybodaeth gan y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 

Llywodraeth Leol i lywio'r gwaith o graffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft 2015-
16  

 
Diben 
1. Darparu gwybodaeth am Gyllideb Ddrafft 2015-16 mewn perthynas â'r Gymraeg 

yn unol â chais y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol.  
 
Amseru 
2. Caiff y gyllideb ddrafft ei chyhoeddi ar 30 Medi 2014. 

  
Ymateb 
3. Caiff y wybodaeth ganlynol ei darparu yn unol â threfn y llythyr comisiynu 

dyddiedig 5 Awst 2014 o dan y penawdau canlynol: 
 

 Llinellau Gwariant Unigol yn y Gyllideb ar gyfer ariannu'r Gymraeg 

 Ymrwymiadau'r Rhaglen Lywodraethu 

 Polisïau allweddol, gan gynnwys: cyflawni strategaeth Iaith Fyw: Iaith Byw; 
canlyniadau Y Gynhadledd Fawr; dyraniadau cyllid ar gyfer Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg; effaith ddisgwyliedig y rheoliadau sy'n darparu ar gyfer safonau'r 
Gymraeg o dan Fesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 a chyflawni'r Strategaeth 
Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg  

 Asesiadau o effaith ar y Gymraeg  

 Gwariant Ataliol 

 Darpariaeth ar gyfer Deddfwriaeth  
 
 

Llinellau Gwariant Unigol yn y Gyllideb (BEL) ar gyfer ariannu'r Gymraeg  
 
4. Gan fod y Gymraeg yn thema drawsbynciol, yn ogystal â'r BEL hyn, mae 

adrannau eraill yn cynnwys gwariant ar y Gymraeg yng nghyd-destun eu 
meysydd polisi eu hunain. Amlinellir gwybodaeth am wariant ar y Gymraeg mewn 
adrannau eraill mewn mannau eraill yn y papur hwn. 
 

5. Mae'r tabl isod yn rhoi crynodeb o'r BEL sy'n ymwneud ag ariannu'r Gymraeg: 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 26



2 

 

 

 2014-15 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 

BEL 
Cyllideb Atodol 
Mehefin 2014 

Cynlluniau 
Dangosol  
Cyllideb 
Derfynol 

Rhagfyr 2013 

Gostyngiadau Trosglwyddiadau 

Cynlluniau 
Newydd 
Cyllideb 
Ddrafft 

    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

6020 Y Gymraeg 8,914 9,049 -400* -3,390 5,259 

6021 Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg 

0 0 0 3,390 3,390 

5164 Cymraeg mewn 
Addysg 

15,462 14,462 -600 4,737 18,599 

4765 BEL Buddsoddiad 
Strategol ** 

1,250 0 0 0 0 

Cyfanswm y gwariant 
uniongyrchol ar y 
Gymraeg 

25,626 23,511 -1,000 4,737 27,248 

* Mae hyn yn cynnwys gostyngiad o £300K yng nghyllideb Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg. Roedd hwn yn rhan o BEL 6020 ar gyfer 2014-15 ond 
trosglwyddwyd i BEL ar wahân yn yr ail cyllideb atodol 

** Wedi'i neilltuo ar gyfer prosiectau cyfalaf sy'n ymwneud yn benodol â'r 
Gymraeg (Paragraff 54) 
 

6. Diben BEL 6020 yw ategu nodau Strategaeth y Gymraeg Iaith Fyw: Iaith Byw a'r 
datganiad polisi Iaith fyw: iaith byw - Bwrw Mlaen sef: 

 Annog a chefnogi‟r defnydd o‟r Gymraeg o fewn teuluoedd 

 Cynyddu‟r ddarpariaeth o weithgareddau Cymraeg ar gyfer plant a phobl 
ifanc a chynyddu eu hymwybyddiaeth o werth yr iaith 

 Cryfhau safle‟r Gymraeg o fewn y gymuned 

 Cynyddu cyfleoedd i bobl ddefnyddio‟r Gymraeg yn y gweithle 

 Cynyddu a gwella gwasanaethau Cymraeg i ddinasyddion 

 Cryfhau‟r seilwaith ar gyfer yr iaith 
  
7. Diben BEL 6021 yw ariannu swydd Comisiynydd y Gymraeg. Mae gan y 

Comisiynydd swyddogaethau a phwerau eang sy'n cynnwys:  

 gweithio tuag at sicrhau na chaiff y Gymraeg ei thrin yn llai ffafriol na'r 
Saesneg  

 gosod dyletswyddau ar bersonau sydd o fewn cwmpas y Mesur i 
gydymffurfio â safonau'n ymwneud â'r Gymraeg  

 cynnal ymchwiliadau i faterion sy'n ymwneud â swyddogaethau'r 
Comisiynydd  

 ymchwilio i achosion honedig o ymyrryd â rhyddid unigolyn i gyfathrebu ag 
unigolyn arall yn Gymraeg. 

 hybu a hwyluso'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg yn enwedig yn y trydydd sector a'r 
sector preifat 
 

8. Diben BEL 5164 yw gweithredu'r Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg gan 
gynnwys gwneud y canlynol;  

 cynllunio addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg; 

 darparu hyfforddiant i ymarferwyr drwy'r Cynllun Sabothol a'r Grant 
Cymraeg mewn Addysg; 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



3 

 

 darparu hyfforddiant Cymraeg drwy gyrsiau Cymraeg i oedolion a 
Chymraeg ail iaith;  

 comisiynu adnoddau addysgu a dysgu;  

 ymgymryd â gwaith ymchwil, gwerthuso a marchnata mewn perthynas â'r 
Strategaeth. 

 
9. 2015-16 fydd chweched flwyddyn y Strategaeth a chaiff y gwariant ei gynllunio yn 

unol â gweithgareddau sydd wedi'u cynnwys yn Rhaglen Weithredu'r 
Strategaeth. 
 

10. Y rheswm pennaf am y cynnydd o £4.737m yn BEL 5164 yw trosglwyddiadau 
rheolaidd yn y Prif Grŵp Gwariant (MEG) Addysg a Sgiliau. Ar sail tebyg am 
debyg, mae'r cyllidebau perthnasol wedi gostwng £600k rhwng 2014-15 a 2015-
16.  Mae'r trosglwyddiadau sy'n effeithio ar y BEL fel a ganlyn;  

 Trosglwyddo £9.867m o Addysg Ôl-16 i Gymraeg i Oedolion er mwyn 
symleiddio'r broses ar gyfer y sector;  

 Trosglwyddo £5.13m o'r Grant Cymraeg mewn Addysg sy'n weddill i 
Safonau Addysg er mwyn creu'r Grant Gwella Addysg newydd ar gyfer 
ysgolion. 

 
Gwybodaeth y gwnaethpwyd cais amdani gan y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 
Addysg  
11. Gwnaethoch ofyn am gael gweld copi o'r wybodaeth a ddarparwyd gan y 

Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau ar ddarpariaeth gyllidebol i ategu'r broses o 
weithredu Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg Llywodraeth Cymru a 
Chynlluniau Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg Awdurdodau Lleol (WESPS). 
Gweler Atodiad 1. 

 
Ymrwymiadau'r Rhaglen Lywodraethu mewn perthynas â'r Gymraeg  
12. Gwnaethoch ofyn am y wybodaeth ganlynol mewn perthynas â Rhaglen 

Lywodraethu Llywodraeth Cymru: 
 

 Manylion y costau sy'n gysylltiedig ag ymrwymiadau'r Rhaglen Lywodraethu 
mewn perthynas â'r Gymraeg ac/neu unrhyw waith sy'n cael ei wneud i 
asesu'r cyfryw gostau;  

 P'un a ellir cyflawni'r ymrwymiadau hyn o fewn y gyllideb sydd ar gael ar gyfer 
y portffolio a manylion unrhyw feysydd lle ceir pryderon ynghylch 
fforddiadwyedd;   

 Gwybodaeth am y modd y caiff yr ymrwymiadau mewn perthynas â'r 
Gymraeg a'u canlyniadau cysylltiedig eu monitro a'u gwerthuso er mwyn 
dangos gwerth am arian.  

 
Strategaeth y Gymraeg 
13. Caiff ymrwymiad 12/014 yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu sef 'Parhau’n ymroddedig i 

sicrhau bod yr iaith Gymraeg yn iaith ‘fyw’, un sy’n ffynnu wrth gael ei defnyddio 
bob dydd ar draws ein gwlad' ei gyflawni drwy Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2012-17 - 
Iaith Fyw: Iaith Byw, a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Mawrth 2012. Mae'n nodi bod gan 
bob un o Weinidogion Llywodraeth Cymru gyfrifoldeb clir i arwain mewn 
perthynas â'r Gymraeg. 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



4 

 

 
14. Fel y cyfryw, mae ymrwymiad 12/014 yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu yn cwmpasu'r 

canlynol: 
12/015 Sicrhau bod gwasanaethau cyhoeddus Cymru yn hygyrch i bobl trwy 

gyfrwng y Gymraeg  
12/018 Ceisio ymestyn y cyfleoedd i bobl ddefnyddio‟r Gymraeg ar draws yr holl 

wasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru. 
12/020 Ceisio ffyrdd arloesol o sicrhau bod yr iaith Gymraeg yn cael ei 

throsglwyddo mewn teuluoedd a bod defnyddwyr yn teimlo‟n gyfforddus 
yn dewis y Gymraeg. 

12/021 Gweithio i sicrhau bod grwpiau cymunedol yn teimlo eu bod yn gallu 
defnyddio‟r iaith Gymraeg fel rhan o‟u gweithgareddau ac yn gallu 
gweithredu‟n ddwyieithog. 

12/022  Canolbwyntio ar gynyddu‟r defnydd o‟r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfryngau 
electronig a cheisio sicrhau bod gan bawb ddewis o ddefnyddio‟r 
Gymraeg lle bynnag y bo‟n bosibl. 

12/023 Ceisio perswadio busnesau rhyngwladol sy‟n darparu gwasanaethau ar y 
we ac ar-lein i‟w darparu yn Gymraeg. 

 
15. Mae BEL (6020) 'Y Gymraeg' sy'n werth £5.259M, ynghyd â BEL (6021) 

'Comisiynydd y Gymraeg' sy'n werth £3.390M yn ategu'r broses o weithredu'r 
Strategaeth ar draws chwe maes strategol: 

1. Y teulu (12/020) 
2. Plant a phobl ifanc  
3. Y gymuned (12/021) 
4. Y gweithle  
5. Gwasanaethau Cymraeg (12/015, 12/018) 
6. Seilwaith (12/022, 12/023) 

 
16. Mae'r broses o gyflawni ymrwymiad 12/014 yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu a'i 

ymrwymiadau atodol drwy weithredu strategaeth y Gymraeg yn cael ei chyflawni 
o fewn y gyllideb sydd ar gael ar gyfer y portffolio. Gwnaed toriadau i'r gyllideb yn 
ystod y ddwy flynedd ddiwethaf ac felly bu'r broses o weithredu rhai o'r camau yn 
destun oedi neu cânt eu cyflawni dros gyfnod hwy. Rhoddwyd blaenoriaeth i'r 
meysydd lle y gellir cyflawni'r canlyniadau mwyaf. 
 

17. Caiff yr arian a ddosberthir i bartneriaid er mwyn hyrwyddo'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg 
ei reoli gan Is-adran y Gymraeg Llywodraeth Cymru. Yn unol â'r ymrwymiad a 
wnaed yn y datganiad polisi diweddar, Iaith fyw: iaith byw - Bwrw Mlaen, mae 
trefniadau'n cael eu gwneud i sefydlu bwrdd prosiect er mwyn goruchwylio'r 
broses o weithredu'r Strategaeth a'r datganiad polisi o fewn Llywodraeth Cymru. 
Mae Fframwaith Gwerthuso ar gyfer y Strategaeth wedi'i baratoi a chaiff 
prosiectau gwerthuso penodol eu comisiynu maes o law. 

 
18. Caiff ymrwymiadau 12/015 'Sicrhau bod gwasanaethau cyhoeddus Cymru yn 

hygyrch i bobl trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg' a 12/018 'Ceisio ymestyn y cyfleoedd i 
bobl ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg ar draws yr holl wasanaethau cyhoeddus yng 
Nghymru' eu cyflawni yn sgil cyflwyno safonau'r Gymraeg.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



5 

 

19. Mae safonau'n cael eu datblygu a fydd yn galluogi Comisiynydd y Gymraeg i 
osod dyletswyddau ar Weinidogion Cymru, Awdurdodau Lleol a Pharciau 
Cenedlaethol. Bydd y safonau hyn yn gosod dyletswyddau ar sefydliadau mewn 
perthynas â'r canlynol:  

o Darparu Gwasanaethau 
o Llunio Polisïau 
o Hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg 
o Defnyddio'r Gymraeg yn fewnol 
o Cadw Cofnodion 

 
20. Mae gan y sefydliadau hyn gryn brofiad o weithredu cynlluniau iaith Gymraeg 

statudol, felly mae'n debygol y caiff y mwyafrif o'r costau yr eir iddynt er mwyn 
cydymffurfio â'r safonau eu cwmpasu gan gyllidebau presennol sy'n gysylltiedig â 
chydymffurfio â chynlluniau iaith Gymraeg. 
 

21. Fel rhan o ymchwiliad safonau cyntaf Comisiynydd y Gymraeg, cynhaliodd 
Llywodraeth Cymru Asesiad Effaith Rheoleiddiol (RIA) lle y gofynnwyd i'r 
sefydliadau nodi'r costau a oedd yn gysylltiedig â chydymffurfio â'r safonau, ar 
ben y costau yr aed iddynt er mwyn cydymffurfio â chynlluniau iaith Gymraeg. 
 

22. Disgwylir i'r safonau ddod i rym drwy reoliadau ym mis Mawrth 2015. Felly, mae'n 
debygol y bydd Comisiynydd y Gymraeg yn cyhoeddi hysbysiad cydymffurfio yng 
nghanol 2015 ac y bydd y safonau yn dod i rym chwe mis ar ôl derbyn yr 
hysbysiad cydymffurfio. Mae'n debygol y bydd yn rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru 
gydymffurfio â'r safonau yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 2015/16. 

 
23. Ni fydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwybod yn union pa safonau y bydd angen iddi 

gydymffurfio â hwy nes y bydd yn cael hysbysiad cydymffurfio gan y 
Comisiynydd.  Roedd ymateb y Llywodraeth i ymarfer RIA yn seiliedig ar y 
safonau arfaethedig a fu'n destun ymchwiliad safonau'r Comisiynydd. 
 

24. O gymharu â'r gost sy'n gysylltiedig â chydymffurfio â'i Chynllun Iaith Gymraeg ar 
hyn o bryd, nododd Llywodraeth Cymru na fyddai unrhyw oblygiadau cost 
ychwanegol i gydymffurfio â'r safonau darparu gwasanaethau, llunio polisïau, 
gweithredu a chadw cofnodion. Nodwyd swm o £20,000 fel cost ychwanegol ar 
gyfer cydymffurfio â safonau hyrwyddo. 
 

25. O ran ymrwymiad 12/020 yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu sef 'Ceisio ffyrdd arloesol o 
sicrhau bod yr iaith Gymraeg yn cael ei throsglwyddo mewn teuluoedd a bod 
defnyddwyr yn teimlo’n gyfforddus yn dewis y Gymraeg', ein prif fentrau yn y 
maes hwn ar hyn o bryd yw Twf, Tyfu a Mae dy Gymraeg di'n Grêt. 
 

Cyllideb 2014-15  
Cyllideb Atodol 

£000 

2015-16 
Cyllideb Ddrafft 

£000 

Twf 655 655 

Tyfu 143 143 

Mae dy Gymraeg di‟n Grêt 49 49 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



6 

 

26. Twf yw ein menter fwyaf yn y maes hwn. Mae'n rhaglen sefydledig ac arloesol a 
gyflwynir ar draws gogledd a de-orllewin Cymru i annog rhieni/gofalwyr sy'n 
siarad Cymraeg i siarad Cymraeg gyda'u plant.  Tyfu a Mae dy Gymraeg di'n 
Grêt yw ein mentrau presennol. Nod y mentrau yw helpu rhieni/gofalwyr i 
gyflwyno Cymraeg i'w plant a meithrin hyder rhieni/gofalwyr i ddefnyddio'r 
Gymraeg gyda'u plant. 
 

27. Fel y nodwyd yn ein datganiad polisi diweddar Bwrw Mlaen, credwn ei bod yn 
bwysig bod teuluoedd yn ymwybodol o un llwybr cymorth sy'n hyrwyddo eu 
defnydd hwy o'r Gymraeg a'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg gan eu plant. Rydym felly yn 
awyddus i ddatblygu ac adeiladu ar y gweithgarwch presennol ar ffurf rhaglen 
genedlaethol. Bydd hyn yn sicrhau bod pob un o'n mentrau a'n hymdrechion yn y 
maes hwn yn cael eu cysoni er mwyn cynnig rhaglen eang ac amrywiol a fydd yn 
helpu teuluoedd i fyw drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. 
 

28. O ran ymrwymiad 12/021 yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu sef 'Gweithio i sicrhau bod 
grwpiau cymunedol yn teimlo eu bod yn gallu defnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg fel rhan 
o’u gweithgareddau ac yn gallu gweithredu’n ddwyieithog' rydym yn gweithredu 
cynllun grant i hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg. Un o nodau'r cynllun yw cefnogi 
gweithgareddau sy'n atgyfnerthu safle'r iaith Gymraeg yn y gymuned. 
 

Cyllideb 2014-15  
Cyllideb Atodol 

£000 

2015-16 
Cyllideb Ddrafft 

£000 

Grantiau i hyrwyddo'r 
Gymraeg 3,664 3,652 

Gwariant ychwanegol o dan 
Bwrw Mlaen 400 800 

Cynllun Gweithredu 
Technoleg 250 250 

Cyfanswm  4,314 4,702 

 
29. Mae Bwrw Mlaen yn cynnwys ymrwymiad i fuddsoddi £1.2 miliwn ychwanegol 

dros y ddwy flynedd nesaf er mwyn adeiladu ar y gweithgarwch hwn, sef 
£400,000 yn 2014-15 ac £800,000 yn 2015/16.  
 

30. Mae hyn yn cynnwys swm o £750,000 ar gyfer y Mentrau Iaith dros ddwy flynedd 
yn ogystal â sefydlu cronfa gwerth £300,000 i hyrwyddo arloesedd mewn 
ardaloedd lle ceir canran uchel o siaradwyr Cymraeg ac ardaloedd eraill o 
bwysigrwydd strategol. 
 

31. Mae Cynllun Gweithredu y Gymraeg a Thechnoleg yn cefnogi ymrwymiadau 
12/022 ' Canolbwyntio ar gynyddu’r defnydd o’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfryngau 
electronig a cheisio sicrhau bod gan bawb ddewis o ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg lle 
bynnag y bo’n bosibl'  a 12/023 'Ceisio perswadio busnesau rhyngwladol sy’n 
darparu gwasanaethau ar y we ac ar-lein i’w darparu yn Gymraeg' a nodir yn y 
Rhaglen Lywodraethu.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



7 

 

32. Cyllideb y Cynllun Gweithredu Technoleg yw £250,000 y flwyddyn dros y tair 
blwyddyn ariannol 2013-2016. Bu'r gyllideb hon yn ddigon i wneud gwahaniaeth 
wrth fynd i'r afael â methiant yn y farchnad o ran technoleg yn Gymraeg.  
 

33. Caiff pob grant ei fonitro yn unol â chanllawiau'r Ganolfan Ragoriaeth Grantiau yn 
erbyn targedau yn seiliedig ar ganlyniadau.  

 
Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
34. Mae gwybodaeth ynghylch sut mae'r gyllideb yn ategu'r strategaeth hon ym 

mharagraff 8. Mae targedau ac amcanion y Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng 
Cymraeg yn cefnogi'r broses o gyflawni ymrwymiadau'r Rhaglen Lywodraethu ac, 
yn benodol, 'Cyflwyno'r Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg' a 'Ceisio cynyddu 
nifer y bobl sydd yn siarad ac yn defnyddio’r Gymraeg yn ein system addysg'. 
(12/016, 12/017, 3/022, 3/023 a 3/024). 
 

35. Fel y nodwyd yn flaenorol, mae'r Gymraeg yn thema drawsbynciol ac, fel y 
cyfryw, yn ogystal â'r dyraniad cyllidebol hwn, mae adrannau eraill yn cefnogi'r 
gwaith o ddatblygu'r Gymraeg yn y system addysg. Er na ellir ei fesur yn hawdd, 
mae cyfanswm y cymorth ariannol sydd ar gael ar gyfer y Gymraeg mewn 
addysg yn sylweddol uwch. 
 

36. Caiff gwariant ei gynllunio yn unol â'r gweithgareddau hynny sydd wedi'u 
cynnwys yn Rhaglen Weithredu'r Strategaeth, sy'n cynnwys;  

 cynllunio addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg; 

 darparu hyfforddiant i ymarferwyr drwy'r Cynllun Sabothol a'r Grant Cymraeg 
mewn Addysg; 

 darparu hyfforddiant Cymraeg drwy gyrsiau Cymraeg i Oedolion a Chymraeg 
ail iaith;  

 comisiynu adnoddau addysgu a dysgu;  

 ymgymryd â gwaith ymchwil, gwerthuso a marchnata mewn perthynas â'r 
Strategaeth. 
 

37. Mae ymrwymiadau'r Rhaglen Lywodraethu yn cael eu cyflawni o fewn y gyllideb 
sydd ar gael ar gyfer y portffolio.  
 

38. Mae'r Strategaeth yn cynnwys targedau pum mlynedd penodol a thargedau deng 
mlynedd mynegol yn seiliedig ar ganlyniadau, a gaiff eu defnyddio i fonitro 
cynnydd wrth weithredu'r Strategaeth. Dechreuodd gwerthusiad tair blynedd o'r 
Strategaeth ym mis Hydref 2012. Caiff y gwerthusiad hwn ei fwydo i mewn i 
adolygiad cynhwysfawr o'r Strategaeth, a gaiff ei gynnal ar ôl y pum mlynedd 
cyntaf yn 2015.  
 

39. Mae ymrwymiad yn y Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg hefyd i fonitro'r 
cynnydd yn erbyn y targedau yn y Strategaeth a chyhoeddi Adroddiad Blynyddol. 
Cyhoeddwyd y pedwerydd adroddiad blynyddol ar y Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng 
Cymraeg ar 17 Gorffennaf 20141.  

 

                                                 
1
 http://cymru.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/wmesreport/?skip=1&lang=cy 

Tudalen y pecyn 32

http://cymru.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/wmesreport/?skip=1&lang=cy


8 

 

Fframwaith Strategol ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Cymraeg mewn Iechyd, 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Gofal Cymdeithasol - Mwy na Geiriau 
40. Mae gan Uned Gymraeg yr Adran Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol (AIGC) 

gyllideb rhaglen fach i gefnogi'r gwaith o ddatblygu darpariaeth iaith Gymraeg 
mewn gwasanaethau iechyd a chymdeithasol a gweithredu'r fframwaith Mwy na 
Geiriau. Mae'r strategaeth hon yn cefnogi'r broses o gyflawni ymrwymiad 4/104 
(2012) 'Datblygu a gweithredu Strategaeth Iaith Gymraeg newydd ar gyfer y GIG i 
atgyfnerthu a chyflymu’r camau i’w gwneud yn haws i gleifion gael gafael ar 
wasanaethau yn eu mamiaith' a nodir yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu. 
 

41. Nid yw'n bosibl nodi'n benodol unrhyw wariant arall gan AIGC ar y Gymraeg gan 
y byddai hwn yn cael ei brif ffrydio fel rhan o'r gwariant cyffredinol ar iechyd a 
gwasanaethau cymdeithasol. 
 

42. Dylai'r ymrwymiadau hyn fod yn fforddiadwy o fewn y gyllideb sydd ar gael ar 
gyfer y portffolio gan nad oes unrhyw gostau ychwanegol sylweddol yn 
gysylltiedig â gweithredu Mwy na Geiriau.  Gellir cyflawni llawer drwy agwedd a 
dymuniad i wella a thrwy sicrhau y caiff y ddarpariaeth Gymraeg ei hystyried o'r 
cychwyn cyntaf wrth gynllunio / datblygu gwasanaethau yn hytrach nag fel ôl-
ystyriaeth. 
 

43. Mae rheolwr gweithredu a grŵp gweithredu sy'n monitro cynnydd a wneir o ran 
cyflawni Mwy na Geiriau a chyflwyno adroddiadau i Dasglu'r Gymraeg mewn 
Gwasanaethau Iechyd a Chymdeithasol. Fel y nodwyd uchod, gellir cyflawni 
llawer o'r hyn a nodir yn Mwy na Geiriau heb fynd i gostau ychwanegol 
sylweddol.  Fodd bynnag, os oedd unrhyw faterion perthnasol a oedd yn 
gysylltiedig â gwerth am arian, byddai'r rhain yn cael eu hystyried gan y grŵp 
gweithredu. 

 
Y strategaeth dai  
44. 12/019 'Parhau i gyflwyno cyllid ar gyfer tai fforddiadwy newydd yng Nghymru 

gan fod hyn yn gyfraniad hanfodol i gymunedau cynaliadwy a all gefnogi dyfodol 
yr iaith Gymraeg'. 
 

45. Y Grant Tai Cymdeithasol (SHG) yw'r prif grant cyfalaf a ddarperir gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer tai fforddiadwy. Fe'i defnyddir yn bennaf i ariannu 
cynlluniau tai gyda'r nod o ddiwallu'r angen lleol am dai a blaenoriaethau yn y 
maes. Mae Awdurdodau Lleol yn gyfrifol am ddewis y cynlluniau a roddir ar waith 
a'r cymdeithasau tai a fydd yn bartneriaid iddynt. Telir SHG i'r cymdeithasau hyn 
maes o law er mwyn datblygu, prynu a rheoli'r tai fforddiadwy.  
 

46. Y gyllideb ar gyfer SHG yw £57.5 miliwn ac, yn ogystal â hyn, bydd y Grant Cyllid 
Tai yn darparu dros 1000 o dai fforddiadwy ledled Cymru erbyn diwedd 2015/16. 
Bydd y cyllid blynyddol, sef £4 miliwn, yn cyfateb i £60 miliwn o fuddsoddiad 
cyfalaf ymlaen llaw ac yn denu o leiaf £60 miliwn ychwanegol gan y sector 
cymdeithasau tai.  
 

47. Cafodd prosiectau Swyddogion Galluogi Tai Gwledig (RHE) eu treialu'n 
llwyddiannus am y tro cyntaf 10 mlynedd yn ôl ac maent wedi bod yn gweithredu 
mewn rhannau gwahanol o gefn gwlad Cymru byth ers hynny. Maent yn 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



9 

 

gweithio'n agos gyda chymunedau gwledig i nodi'r angen lleol am dai, a chydag 
awdurdodau cynllunio a thai a chymdeithasau tai i ddarparu tai mewn ardaloedd 
gwledig. Ar lefel leol, caiff y prosiectau eu hariannu gan awdurdodau lleol, 
cymdeithasau tai a pharciau cenedlaethol. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn darparu 
tua 30% o'r cyllid refeniw ar gyfer pob prosiect.  
 

48. Er nad yw'r rhaglenni cyfalaf hyn yn ymwneud â'r Gymraeg yn unig, maent yn 
cefnogi'r broses o ddarparu tai fforddiadwy mawr eu hangen ledled Cymru gan 
gynnwys mewn ardaloedd lle ceir nifer fawr o siaradwyr Cymraeg ac, yn wir, 
maent yn cefnogi'r iaith drwy sicrhau bod tai ar gael i deuluoedd lleol sy'n siarad 
Cymraeg. 
 

49. Mae'r ymrwymiad hwn yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu yn cael ei gyflawni o fewn y 
cyllidebau sydd ar gael ar gyfer y portffolio. 
 

50. Mae Uned y Gymraeg Llywodraeth Cymru yn gweithio gyda'r adran Llywodraeth 
Leol a Chymunedau i sicrhau bod y Gymraeg yn cael ei hystyried wrth fynd ati i 
werthuso'r rhaglen. 
 

Polisïau allweddol  
Sut mae a wnelo dyraniadau'r Gyllideb Ddrafft â'r strategaeth Iaith Fyw: Iaith 
Byw 
51. Mae paragraffau 13-33 o dan Ymrwymiadau'r Rhaglen Lywodraethu yn darparu'r 

wybodaeth hon. 
 

Effaith Y Gynhadledd Fawr ac ymateb dilynol Llywodraeth Cymru 
52.  Ym mis Awst 2014, cyhoeddodd y Prif Weinidog ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i Y 

Gynhadledd Fawr drwy ddatganiad polisi - Iaith fyw: iaith byw - Bwrw Mlaen. 
Mae'r datganiad polisi hwn yn nodi'n glir agenda Llywodraeth Cymru mewn 
perthynas â'r Gymraeg dros y tair blynedd nesaf. 
 

53. Mae'r pwyslais yn Bwrw Mlaen ar weithredu a chyflawni er mwyn cefnogi a 
chryfhau sefyllfa'r Gymraeg. Mae'r ddogfen yn nodi pedair thema strategol:  
 

 Yr angen i gryfhau‟r cysylltiadau rhwng yr economi a‟r Gymraeg. 

 Yr angen am gynllunio strategol gwell ar gyfer y Gymraeg. 

 Y defnydd o‟r Gymraeg yn y gymuned. 

 Yr her o newid ymddygiad ieithyddol.  
 

54. Mae pob thema yn cynnwys cyfres o gamau gweithredu, sy'n cynnwys: 
 

 cyflwyno cronfa buddsoddi gwerth £1.25 miliwn ar gyfer 2014-15 a fydd wedi‟i 
thargedu‟n benodol at gefnogi datblygiad canolfannau a/neu ofodau dysgu all 
hyrwyddo‟r defnydd o‟r Gymraeg neu drochi‟r Gymraeg drwy gystadleuaeth a 
fydd yn cynhyrchu syniadau ac egni newydd  

 datblygu cyfres o ymgyrchoedd gyda‟r nod o newid ymddygiad ieithyddol a 
fydd yn defnyddio arbenigedd marchnata cymdeithasol, gan ddechrau gydag 
ymgyrch „Y Pethau Bychain‟ 

 gwefan a fydd yn hyrwyddo a hysbysebu cyfleoedd i ddysgu, defnyddio a 
mwynhau‟r Gymraeg fel rhan o fywyd bob dydd ar draws Cymru 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



10 

 

 cronfeydd newydd gwerth £400,000 o'r portffolio Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a 
Thechnoleg, i gefnogi'r cyswllt rhwng y Gymraeg a'r economi 

 ailflaenoriaethu cronfeydd yr Adran Addysg a Sgiliau a arweiniodd at sicrhau 
£1.2m ychwanegol dros ddwy flynedd (£400,000 yn 2014-15 ac £800,000 yn 
2015-16) i gefnogi'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg yn y gymuned (dyma'r gostyngiad 
mewn cyllid ar gyfer Cymraeg i Oedolion a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Gorffennaf 
2014). 

 
Dyraniadau cyllid ar gyfer Comisiynydd y Gymraeg a'r sail a ddefnyddiwyd i 
benderfynu arnynt 
55. Cyllid ar gyfer Comisiynydd y Gymraeg 

Cyllideb 2014-15 
 

£‟000 

Gostyngiad 
arfaethedig yn y 

gyllideb 
£‟000 

Cyllideb 2015-16 
 

£‟000 

% 
Gostyngiad 

3,690 (300) 3,390 (8) 

 
56. Sefydlwyd Llinell Wariant ychwanegol yn y Gyllideb (BEL) yn 2014-15 er mwyn 

helpu i sicrhau tryloywder, gyda‟r trosglwyddiad yn cael ei  weithredu yn yr ail 
gyllideb atodol. 

 
57. Er ein bod yn parhau'n ymrwymedig i'r Gymraeg, ni allwn amddiffyn pob 

gwasanaeth rhag effaith y toriadau a wnaed gan Lywodraeth y DU a goblygiadau 
blaenoriaethu gwariant. O ganlyniad, rhaid oedd cynnal asesiad o'r gyllideb 
gyffredinol er mwyn nodi ble y gellid gwneud toriadau a ble y byddent yn cael yr 
effaith leiaf. Fel rhan o'r adolygiad, penderfynwyd lleihau cyllideb Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg ar gyfer 2015-16 £300,000, sy'n cyfateb i tua 8%. 
 

58. Er mwyn diogelu'r ymrwymiadau a wnaed yn Bwrw Mlaen, nid yw'n briodol torri 
cyllid i'n partneriaid cyflawni sy'n gweithio i hyrwyddo'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg 
mewn cymunedau ledled Cymru. Felly, rhaid oedd ystyried gwario llai ar feysydd 
eraill. 
 

59. Er bod cyllid ar gyfer Comisiynydd y Gymraeg yn cael ei leihau, mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru yn awyddus i ddiogelu rôl rheoleiddio'r Comisiynydd ac wedi nodi 
meysydd gwaith lle y gallai'r gwaith a wneir gan Lywodraeth Cymru a'r 
Comisiynydd gael ei ddyblygu. 
 

60. Ar adeg ysgrifennu'r ddogfen hon, mae swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru wrthi'n 
gweithio gyda'r Comisiynydd i nodi ffyrdd o gydweithio a gweithio'n wahanol 
mewn meysydd fel hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg yn y sector preifat a'r trydydd sector er 
mwyn gwneud y gorau o'r adnoddau a'r arbenigedd sydd ar gael. 

 
Sut mae dyraniadau'r Gyllideb Ddrafft wedi'u dylanwadu gan effaith 
ddisgwyliedig y rheoliadau a fydd yn cyflwyno safonau'r iaith Gymraeg o dan 
Fesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011;   
 
61. Cwblhawyd Asesiad Effaith Rheoleiddiol fel rhan o'r cam Ymchwilio i Safonau. 

Fodd bynnag, roedd yr asesiad hwn yn seiliedig ar y safonau arfaethedig ac felly 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



11 

 

ni allwn nodi'r effeithiau disgwyliedig hyd nes i'r rheoliadau gael eu llunio a'r 
gyfres derfynol o safonau gael eu gosod ar Lywodraeth Cymru. 

 
Sut mae a wnelo dyraniadau'r Gyllideb Ddrafft â'r broses o gyflawni'r 
Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg, gan gynnwys gwybodaeth am y 
cysylltiad rhyngddynt a thargedau, y canlyniadau a gyflawnwyd hyd yn hyn a 
chanlyniadau bwriadedig.  
 
62. Mae gwybodaeth ynghylch sut mae'r gyllideb yn ategu'r strategaeth hon ym 

mharagraff 8. Er bod y cynlluniau newydd ar gyfer y gyllideb yn dangos cynnydd 
yn y BEL Cymraeg mewn Addysg, fel y'i disgrifir ym mharagraff 10, ar sail tebyg 
am debyg, mae'r cyllidebau perthnasol sy'n ategu'r Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng 
Cymraeg wedi gostwng £600k rhwng 2014-15 a 2015-16.   
 

63. Ymhlith y prif effeithiau bydd y canlynol: 

 Grant Cymraeg mewn Addysg - Bydd effaith y gostyngiad yn y gyllideb yn 
2015-16 yn golygu y bydd llai o gymorth ar gael i ysgolion gan awdurdodau 
lleol i gefnogi'r gwaith o addysgu Cymraeg a Chymraeg ail iaith.  

 Comisiynu adnoddau addysgu cyfrwng Cymraeg - Caiff llai o adnoddau 
addysgu eu comisiynu; caiff hyn ei reoli oherwydd yr amser a gymerir i 
gomisiynu a chynhyrchu adnoddau ac oedi diweddar yn y broses tendro a 
chomisiynu. 

 Gwneir llai o weithgarwch marchnata - Rhywfaint o effaith ond nid effaith 
sylweddol. 

 Cynllunio a phrif ffrydio - bydd effaith fach ar y gyllideb sydd ar gael i 
weithredu'r Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg. 

 
64. Mae'r Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol yn rheoli, yn datblygu ac yn rhoi trosolwg 

annibynnol o addysg uwch cyfrwng Cymraeg ledled Cymru.  Mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru yn darparu cyllid drwy Gyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru (CCAUC) i 
gefnogi gwaith y Coleg, gan gynnwys darparu ysgoloriaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg i 
gymell unigolion i astudio ar lefel addysg uwch drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Mae 
dyraniad cyllidebol o £8,600,000 (BEL 4561 Er mwyn ein Dyfodol - CCC ac 
UKHOVI) wedi'i ddarparu o fewn y dyraniad ar gyfer darpariaeth CCAUC i 
gefnogi'r Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol yn 2015-16, gyda £330,000 ychwanegol i 
gefnogi Ysgoloriaethau Cyfrwng Cymraeg.  
 

65. Rhoddwyd cylch gorchwyl i CCAUC yn 2013-14 i gynnal gwerthusiad o ganlyniad 
gweithgareddau'r Coleg, gan gynnwys adolygiad o'r cyllid a roddwyd i'r Coleg, ac 
i roi manylion yr adolygiad i'm swyddogion erbyn mis Medi 2013 ac adroddiad 
terfynol erbyn mis Medi 2014. Mae'r adolygiad hwnnw'n mynd rhagddo. Caiff ei 
gynnal gan yr ymgynghorwyr Oldbell3, a chaiff adroddiad ei gyflwyno i'r 
Gweinidog erbyn diwedd mis Medi 2014.Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn ystyried y 
canfyddiadau cyn nodi'r cwmpas ariannol terfynol ar gyfer 2015-16 a thu hwnt. 

 
Manylion y costau a/neu unrhyw waith i asesu'r gost o gyflwyno'r polisïau hyn;  
66. Fel y nodwyd ym mharagraff 17,  yn unol â'r ymrwymiad a wnaed yn y datganiad 

polisi diweddar, Iaith fyw: iaith byw - Bwrw Mlaen, mae trefniadau'n cael eu 
gwneud i sefydlu bwrdd prosiect i oruchwylio'r broses o weithredu'r Strategaeth 
a'r datganiad polisi o fewn Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae Fframwaith Gwerthuso ar 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



12 

 

gyfer y Strategaeth wedi'i baratoi a chaiff prosiectau gwerthuso penodol eu 
comisiynu maes o law. 
 

Gwybodaeth ynghylch sut y caiff y broses o gyflwyno'r polisi, a'i ganlyniadau 
cysylltiedig, eu monitro a'u gwerthuso er mwyn dangos gwerth am arian.  
67. Mae'r wybodaeth hon hefyd ar gael ym mharagraff 17. 
 
Asesiadau o effaith ar y Gymraeg  
68. Mae sawl cam pwysig wedi'u cymryd wrth baratoi'r gyllideb ddrafft eleni er mwyn 

sicrhau bod y Gymraeg yn cael ystyriaeth briodol.   
 
69. Rydym yn adeiladu ar yr asesiad o effaith y gyllideb y llynedd ac rydym wedi 

paratoi asesiad cwbl integredig o effaith ar gyfer 2015-16, sy'n cynnwys y 
Gymraeg ar draws y meysydd portffolio.  
 

70. Cyhoeddwyd Asesiad Integredig o Effaith (IIA) Cyllideb Ddrafft 2015-16 fel 
dogfen annibynnol ochr yn ochr â'r Gyllideb Ddrafft ar 30 Medi 2014.   
 

71. Mae gan y dull integredig hwn y fantais allweddol o ystyried effeithiau 
penderfyniadau gwario ar bob un o'r grwpiau gwarchodedig yn ogystal â materion 
gwahanol. Mae gwneud hynny mewn modd cynhwysol yn ein helpu i ddeall y 
cydberthnasau rhwng y meysydd allweddol hyn.  
 

72. Dyma'r tro cyntaf i ni gynhyrchu adroddiad integredig sy'n ystyried hawliau plant, 
cydraddoldeb, trechu tlodi ac anfantais economaidd-gymdeithasol a'r Gymraeg 
ac yn hyrwyddo datblygu cynaliadwy.  Nid yw'r materion hyn yn rhai annibynnol - 
maent yn cefnogi ac yn ategu ei gilydd.  Er enghraifft, mae Cymru fwy cyfartal yn 
un o'n nodau llesiant i Gymru. Rydym am weld cymdeithas sy'n galluogi pobl i 
gyflawni eu potensial ni waeth beth fo'u cefndir na'u hamgylchiadau. 
 

73. Mae'r IIA yn ddogfen fwy penodol sy'n nodi'r newidiadau mwyaf sylweddol i 
gyllidebau ac yn amlygu'r rhesymau dros ddiogelu rhai cyllidebau hefyd.    
 

74. Rhoddwyd canllawiau i bob Adran ynghylch asesu'r effaith ar y Gymraeg wrth 
baratoi eu cyllidebau drafft eleni. Mae'r adroddiad ar yr asesiad o effaith y 
gyllideb yn dangos y newidiadau mwyaf fesul Maes y Rhaglen Wariant.  

 
75. Mae'r adroddiad ar yr asesiad o effaith a gyhoeddwyd ochr yn ochr â'r gyllideb 

ddrafft yn cynnwys nifer o enghreifftiau o asesiadau o effaith ar y Gymraeg.  
 

76. Yn ddiweddar, rydym wedi cyhoeddi y bydd £4,324,396.98 ar gael i CWLWM 
(consortiwm o bum sefydliad gofal plant arweiniol yng Nghymru) dros gyfnod o 
dair blynedd. Ymhlith amcanion y consortiwm mae nodi bylchau yn y 
ddarpariaeth Gofal Plant a Chwarae ledled Cymru a dod o hyd i atebion i'r 
bylchau hynny gan gynnwys atebion arloesol sy'n ymwneud â darpariaeth 
Gymraeg. 

 
77. Nod Dechrau'n Deg, rhaglen trechu tlodi allweddol, yw gwella canlyniadau i blant 

a theuluoedd sy'n byw mewn cartrefi incwm isel. Mae Cynlluniau Cyflawni 
Dechrau'r Deg, a gwblheir gan bob awdurdod lleol er mwyn cael y grant, yn ei 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



13 

 

gwneud yn ofynnol i'r Awdurdod Lleol ddarparu manylion y gofal plant a ddarperir 
yn Gymraeg a sut y'i cynigir i rieni. Mae'r nod, sef cynyddu nifer y plant sy'n 
manteisio ar Dechrau'n Deg i 36,000 erbyn 2016, wedi arwain at gynnydd yn y 
galw am siaradwyr Cymraeg, yn enwedig gweithwyr gofal plant, gan ei bod yn 
ofynnol i awdurdodau lleol ymateb i ddymuniadau rhieni a darparu lleoedd gofal 
plant drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn ogystal â'r Saesneg. Mae'r broses o ehangu 
Dechrau'n Deg hefyd yn galw am gynnydd mewn nifer o rolau gan gynnwys 
gweithwyr cymorth rhianta, ymwelwyr iechyd a therapyddion lleferydd ac iaith. 
Mae'r swyddi hyn yn adlewyrchu gofynion ieithyddol yr awdurdod lleol. Yn 
ogystal, caiff holl ddeunyddiau hyrwyddol Dechrau'n Deg eu cynhyrchu'n 
ddwyieithog.  
 

78. Mae cyfanswm y gyllideb refeniw ar gyfer Diwylliant a Chwaraeon wedi gostwng 
3.4% o gymharu â 2014-15. Felly, bu'n rhaid gwneud penderfyniadau anodd iawn 
er mwyn dod o hyd i'r toriadau sydd eu hangen yn y gyllideb. Wrth wneud 
penderfyniadau ar y gyllideb, rydym wedi bod yn ymwybodol iawn o effaith y 
penderfyniadau ar y Gymraeg. Mae llawer o'r sefydliadau yn cynnal swyddi mewn 
ardaloedd â chyfran uchel o siaradwyr Cymraeg - er enghraifft, y Llyfrgell 
Genedlaethol yn Aberystwyth; safleoedd Amgueddfeydd Cenedlaethol yn 
Nrefach, Felindre ac yn Llanberis; y Comisiwn Brenhinol a Chyngor Llyfrau 
Cymru yn Aberystwyth, Gardd Fotaneg Genedlaethol Cymru yn Sir Gaerfyrddin 
a'r tri Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol.  Felly, bu'n fater o ystyried yr effaith y byddai 
toriadau yn y gyllideb yn ei chael ar y cyrff hyn, y swyddogaethau y maent yn eu 
cyflawni, gyda phwyslais penodol ar swyddi a'r effaith y byddai hyn yn ei chael ar 
gymunedau gwledig yn y cadarnleoedd Cymraeg. Fodd bynnag, oherwydd natur 
y cyllidebau a'r ffaith bod pwysau mawr ar yr holl gyrff a ariennir, bu'n rhaid 
lleihau cyllidebau - i raddau amrywiol - er mwyn cyflawni'r gostyngiad cyffredinol 
angenrheidiol o 3.4% yn y gyllideb. 
 

Gwariant Ataliol  
 
79. Mae £654,500 wedi'i ddyrannu ar gyfer ariannu prosiect Twf ar gyfer 2015-16. 

Caiff prosiect Twf, sef prif brosiect ymyrraeth Llywodraeth Cymru ym maes 
trosglwyddo iaith o fewn y teulu, ei ystyried gan arbenigwyr fel un o'r ddau faes 
pwysicaf o ran cynllunio iaith, ynghyd ag addysg. Fel y nodwyd yn strategaeth y 
Gymraeg Iaith Fyw: Iaith Byw, hoffai Llywodraeth Cymru weld mwy o deuluoedd 
lle mae o leiaf un oedolyn yn y teulu, sydd mewn cysylltiad rheolaidd â'r plant, yn 
siarad Cymraeg fel y brif iaith. Mae Twf yn brosiect arloesol ac eang sydd â'r nod 
o annog rhieni/gofalwyr Cymraeg eu hiaith i siarad Cymraeg gyda'u plant. Mae 
ganddo rwydwaith o swyddogion maes ledled Cymru sy'n sicrhau bod rhieni, 
darpar rieni a'r cyhoedd yn ymwybodol o fanteision cyflwyno'r iaith i blant o adeg 
eu geni, a'i magu'n ddwyieithog.  
 

80. Drwy fuddsoddi mewn mentrau i dargedu teuluoedd o'r cyfnodau beichiogi a geni, 
mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn sicrhau bod negeseuon allweddol ynghylch gallu 
plant i ddeall mwy nag un iaith yn cael eu cyfleu. Dengys ymchwil mai'r cyfnodau 
tyngedfennol ar gyfer datblygu'r llwybrau niwral ar gyfer iaith yn ymennydd 
babanod yw rhwng adeg eu geni a chwe mis ar gyfer geirfa, a rhwng chwech a 
12 mis ar gyfer gallu ieithyddol a lleferydd. Drwy gyflwyno mentrau sy'n 
canolbwyntio ar y cyfnod hwn, rydym yn sicrhau bod plant yn cael y dechrau 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



14 

 

gorau posibl ac y caiff dwy iaith eu cyflwyno o adeg eu geni, gan osgoi'r angen i 
wneud ymdrechion ychwanegol, darparu adnoddau ychwanegol a mynd i gostau 
ychwanegol sy'n gysylltiedig â dysgu'r iaith yn hwyrach mewn bywyd. 
 

81. Ymhlith yr enghreifftiau da eraill mae prosiectau Tyfu a Mae dy Gymraeg di'n 
Grêt fel y'u nodir ym mharagraffau 25-27. 
 

Darpariaeth ar gyfer Deddfwriaeth  
82. Mae Cynllun Iaith Gymraeg Llywodraeth Cymru yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i ni 

achub ar bob cyfle i sicrhau bod unrhyw ddeddfwriaeth sylfaenol ac is-
ddeddfwriaeth newydd yn cefnogi'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg ac yn gyson â'r 
egwyddorion canlynol. Rydym eisiau iddynt: 

 Fod yn gydnaws â natur ddwyieithog Cymru. 

 Hybu a hwyluso defnyddio'r Gymraeg a, lle bynnag y bo'n bosibl, helpu'r 
cyhoedd yng Nghymru i ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn eu bywydau bob dydd. 

 Parchu‟r egwyddor y dylai gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru drin y 
Gymraeg a‟r Saesneg yn gyfartal. 

 Helpu i warchod cymunedau traddodiadol Gymraeg. 
 

83. Noda Adran 144(2) o Fesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 y bydd Rhan 2 o Ddeddf yr 
Iaith Gymraeg 1993 (delio â chynlluniau) yn peidio â bod yn gymwys i berson os 
daw'r person hwnnw, a phan ddaw'r person hwnnw, yn ddarostyngedig am y tro 
cyntaf i'r ddyletswydd o dan adran 25(1) o'r Mesur hwn i gydymffurfio â safon. Ar 
y sail hon, byddai Cynlluniau Iaith Gymraeg presennol yn parhau nes i'r 
Comisiynydd osod y safonau.  

 
Deddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) 2014: 
84. Nid yw'r Ddeddf yn dod i rym tan fis Ebrill 2016, felly ni fydd unrhyw effaith ar y 

Gymraeg na chyllidebau cysylltiedig yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 2015-16. 
 

85. Mae'r asesiad o effaith ar y Gymraeg yn datgelu nad yw'n debygol y bydd unrhyw 
effaith negyddol ar yr iaith a, chan fod y Bil wedi'i gynllunio i greu system decach i 
bawb sy'n gymwys i gael gofal a chymorth, fod cyfleoedd i gynyddu'r defnydd o'r 
Gymraeg wrth ddarparu gwasanaethau. Rhaid i bob unigolyn a sefydliad sy'n 
gysylltiedig â'r broses o ddarparu gwasanaethau cymdeithasol a gofal 
cymdeithasol ystyried hawl pobl i gyfathrebu yn Gymraeg a bydd yn ofynnol 
iddynt gydymffurfio ag unrhyw un o safonau'r Gymraeg yn y dyfodol.  
 

86. Wrth baratoi'r Bil hwn, ystyriwyd Fframwaith Strategol Llywodraeth Cymru ar 
gyfer Gwasanaethau Cymraeg ym maes Iechyd, Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
Gofal Cymdeithasol: Mwy na Geiriau ac, o ganlyniad, rhoddwyd ymrwymiad 
Gweinidogol y bydd y Gymraeg yn cael ei chynnwys yn y rheoliadau a'r 
Canllawiau a fydd yn ategu'r Bil hwn, er enghraifft, mewn perthynas â'r trefniadau 
asesu a chomisiynu newydd ar gyfer gwasanaethau cymdeithasol a gofal 
cymdeithasol.   
 

87. O ran paratoi Cynlluniau lleol ar gyfer y Gymraeg mewn Gofal a Chymorth a 
Llesiant lleol, mae'r Bil yn cynnwys egwyddor statudol bwysig sef bod yn rhaid i 
unrhyw berson sy'n arfer swyddogaethau o dan y Bil ystyried nodweddion, 
diwylliant a chredoau'r unigolyn, gan gynnwys iaith.  

Tudalen y pecyn 39



15 

 

 

88. Noda Mwy na Geiriau fod iaith yn angen ac, wrth nodi'r manylion sydd eu 
hangen mewn asesiad; caiff y gofynion mewn perthynas â nodi angen iaith eu 
nodi mewn Rheoliadau. 
 

Bil Cynllunio (Cymru) 
89. Diben y ddeddfwriaeth hon yw cyflwyno system gynllunio fodern drwy wneud 

newidiadau i weithdrefnau cynllunio a'r ffordd y caiff gwasanaethau cynllunio eu 
darparu a chynlluniau datblygu eu paratoi. Ni fydd y Bil yn cynnwys polisi 
cynllunio. Bydd y polisi hwn yn parhau i gael ei nodi ym Mholisi Cynllunio Cymru 
a Nodiadau Cyngor Technegol.  
 

90. Mae'n bosibl y gallai'r Bil gael effaith gadarnhaol anuniongyrchol ar y Gymraeg 
drwy alluogi datblygiadau a fydd yn darparu'r swyddi a'r twf sydd eu hangen i 
gefnogi'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg o fewn ein cymunedau.   

 
Bil Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru);  
91. Diben y ddeddfwriaeth hon yw sicrhau bod trefniadau llywodraethu cyrff 

cyhoeddus i wella llesiant Cymru yn ystyried anghenion cenedlaethau'r dyfodol. 
 

92. Mae'r Bil yn darparu cyswllt pwysig â strategaeth y Gymraeg Llywodraeth Cymru, 
Iaith Fyw: Iaith Byw, yn enwedig mewn perthynas â chodi ymwybyddiaeth o werth 
yr iaith a chryfhau sefyllfa'r iaith Gymraeg yn y gymuned. 
 

93. Bydd y Bil yn pennu nodau llesiant uchelgeisiol ar gyfer yr hirdymor er mwyn 
adlewyrchu'r Gymru yr hoffem ei gweld yn y dyfodol. Bydd hyn yn sicrhau bod 
iaith Gymraeg ffyniannus wrth wraidd y broses o ddiffinio Cymru gynaliadwy. 
Bydd y Bil yn garreg filltir bwysig o ran pwysleisio statws swyddogol yr iaith ac yn 
helpu i sicrhau bod y Gymraeg yn rhan amlwg o'r agenda yng Nghymru ymhell i'r 
dyfodol. 
 

94. Drwy nodi iaith Gymraeg ffyniannus fel un o chwe nod llesiant ar gyfer 
sefydliadau cyhoeddus a enwir, bwriedir i'r Bil sicrhau bod dyfodol hirdymor yr 
iaith yn ganolog i'r amcanion a nodwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru a chyrff 
cyhoeddus eraill. 

 
Rheoliadau a gyflwynwyd o dan Fesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 
95. Rhan allweddol o'r broses o weithredu Mesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 yw 

datblygu safonau a fydd yn galluogi Comisiynydd y Gymraeg i osod 
dyletswyddau ar sefydliadau. Mae'r amserlen gyfredol yn dangos y caiff pleidlais 
ei chynnal i gymeradwyo rheoliadau ar gyfer y gyfres gyntaf o safonau yn ystod 
Cyfarfod Llawn y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol ym mis Mawrth 2015. Bydd y gyfres 
gyntaf yn gymwys i Weinidogion Cymru, Awdurdodau Lleol a Pharciau 
Cenedlaethol. 
 

96. Mae'r safonau arfaethedig wedi'u drafftio gan ystyried yr egwyddorion allweddol 
canlynol, sy'n adlewyrchu ymrwymiadau a roddwyd i Gynulliad Cenedlaethol 
Cymru yn ystod y broses o graffu ar y Mesur drafft: 

 sicrhau hawliau clir i siaradwyr Cymraeg mewn perthynas â gwasanaethau 
Cymraeg; 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



16 

 

 sicrhau bod y safonau mor glir â phosibl o ran yr hyn y mae angen i 
sefydliadau ei wneud yn ymarferol i gydymffurfio â nhw, fel bod personau mor 
sicr â phosibl ynghylch beth i‟w ddisgwyl o ran gwasanaethau Cymraeg; 

 sicrhau gwell cysondeb rhwng sefydliadau, yn enwedig rhwng sefydliadau yn 
yr un sector, o ran darparu gwasanaethau Cymraeg; 

 sicrhau bod unrhyw ddyletswyddau a osodir ar sefydliadau yn unol â 
safonau‟r Gymraeg yn rhai rhesymol a chymesur; 

 lleihau'r baich gweinyddol ar sefydliadau y mae'n ofynnol iddynt ddarparu 
gwasanaethau Cymraeg, fel bod modd iddynt ganolbwyntio ar wella'r ffordd y 
caiff y gwasanaethau hynny eu darparu; 

 sicrhau y caiff safonau eu gorfodi'n effeithiol; 

 sicrhau y gellir paratoi Asesiad Effaith Rheoleiddiol i ategu'r rheoliadau y nodir 
y safonau ynddynt. 

 
97. Caiff y safonau newydd hyn eu cyflwyno'n raddol, gan ddisodli Cynlluniau Iaith 

Gymraeg fesul sector yn unol â system blaenoriaethu a bennwyd gan 
Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg.  
 

98. Mae Mesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 yn darparu ar gyfer sefydlu Tribiwnlys y 
Gymraeg a fydd yn gwrando apeliadau yn erbyn penderfyniadau Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg mewn perthynas â safonau'r Gymraeg. Hwn fydd y tribiwnlys cyntaf i 
gael ei sefydlu o dan ddeddfwriaeth Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru. 
 

99. Ar 17 Gorffennaf 2014, penododd y Prif Weinidog Keith Bush CF yn Llywydd 
cyntaf Tribiwnlys y Gymraeg. Gwnaethpwyd y penodiad hwnnw yn unol â 
Rheoliadau Tribiwnlys y Gymraeg (Penodi) 2013, a nododd y gofynion ar gyfer 
penodi'r Llywydd ac aelodau eraill o'r Tribiwnlys. Caiff aelodau cyfreithiol gymwys 
ac aelodau lleyg eu penodi ar ddechrau 2015. Caiff y Tribiwnlys ei sefydlu erbyn 
diwedd mis Mawrth 2015 i gyd-fynd â'r amserlen ar gyfer Safonau'r Gymraeg. 

 
Bil Tai (Cymru) 
100. Mae Bil Tai (Cymru) (“y Bil”) yn gyfres gydlynol o gynigion a fydd yn cyfrannu 

at dair blaenoriaeth strategol Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer tai, sef: mwy o gartrefi, 
gwell cartrefi a gwell gwasanaethau. Yn gyffredinol, bydd yn helpu i sicrhau y gall 
unigolion gael gafael ar gartref fforddiadwy, boddhaol a bod unigolion sydd mewn 
perygl o fod yn ddigartref yn cael y cymorth sydd ei angen arnynt. Gall pwerau 
disgresiwn ar gyfer y Dreth Gyngor ar gartrefi gwag olygu y bydd mwy o dai 
fforddiadwy ar gael mewn cymunedau gwledig, Cymraeg eu hiaith, a allai helpu i 
gynnal a gwella'r cymunedau hynny a'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg. 

 
Gwybodaeth am effaith unrhyw ddeddfwriaeth y DU ar y Gymraeg  
101. Weithiau, gall deddfwriaeth y DU effeithio ar y Gymraeg, yn enwedig yng 

nghyd-destun meysydd polisi annatganoledig.   
 

102. Un enghraifft o ddeddfwriaeth ddiweddar y DU a allai effeithio ar y defnydd o'r 
Gymraeg yng Nghymru ac arwain at gost annisgwyl ar gyfer y gyllideb yng 
Nghymru oedd y Bil Tryloywder Lobïo, Ymgyrchu Gan Grwpiau Di-blaid a 
Gweinyddu Undebau Llafur. Nododd y Prif Weinidog y gallai un o'r darpariaethau, 
a oedd yn ymwneud â lleihau swm yr arian a allai gael ei wario gan drydydd 
partïon ar ymgyrchu di-blaid mewn perthynas ag etholiadau - gael effaith andwyol 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



17 

 

yng Nghymru lle y gallai fod angen cynhyrchu deunydd etholiadol yn ddwyieithog, 
a byddai'r costau cyfieithu yn golygu y gallai llai o ddeunydd gael ei gynhyrchu 
yng Nghymru o gymharu â rhannau eraill o'r DU.  Ar ôl trafod y mater gyda 
Chomisiynydd y Gymraeg, ysgrifennodd y Prif Weinidog at Lywodraeth y DU 
ynglŷn â hyn ac, o ganlyniad, cytunwyd ar ddiwygiad i eithrio'r costau ychwanegol 
sy'n gysylltiedig â chyhoeddi deunydd etholiadol yn Gymraeg a Saesneg wrth 
gyfrifo'r swm y gellir ei wario ar lenyddiaeth ymgyrchu. 
 

 
 
 
Y Gwir Anrh. Carwyn Jones AC 
Prif Weinidog Cymru 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



Annex 1 

Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 

CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 2a 
 
 
Cam Gweithredu’r Gymraeg mewn Addysg 

 

2014-15 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 

Cyllideb Atodol Mehefin 
2014 

Cynlluniau Dangosol y 
Gyllideb Derfynol 

Rhagfyr 2013 
Newidiadau 

Cynlluniau Newydd y 
Gyllideb Ddrafft 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

15,462 14,462 4,137 18,599 

 

1. Mae Cam Gweithredu’r Gymraeg mewn Addysg yn cynyddu £4m o’i gymharu 
â’r cynlluniau a gyhoeddwyd yn flaenorol ar gyfer 2015-16, ond mae hyn yn 
bennaf oherwydd dau drosglwyddiad rheolaidd; 

 £9.867m o’r Cam Gweithredu Addysg Ôl-16 i gyllido Cymraeg i Oedolion er 
mwyn lliflinio prosesau ar gyfer y sector;  

 £5.13m o’r hyn sy’n weddill o Grant y Gymraeg mewn Addysg i’r Cam 
Gweithredu Safonau Addysg, i greu’r Grant Gwella Addysg newydd i 
ysgolion. 

 
2. Felly bu gostyngiad ar y cyfan o £0.6m yng nghyllidebau’r Gymraeg mewn 

Addysg, sy’n deillio’n bennaf o’r gostyngiad o £0.5m mewn cyllid ar gyfer Grant 
y Gymraeg mewn Addysg cyn ei drosglwyddo i’r Cam Gweithredu Safonau 
Addysg. Ceir gostyngiadau minimol mewn cyllidebau comisiynu adnoddau, 
cynllunio ac ymchwil, cyfathrebu a marchnata o fewn y Cam Gweithredu, y 
maent i gyd yn cyfrannu tuag at ein hymrwymiad yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu i 
gyflawni’r Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg ac i geisio cynyddu nifer y 
bobl sy’n siarad ac yn defnyddio’r Gymraeg yn ein cyfundrefn addysg. 
 
Addysg Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
 

3. Mae Cam Gweithredu’r Gymraeg mewn Addysg sy’n gyfanswm o £18.6m yn 
2015-16 yn darparu cymorth i barhau i weithredu’r Strategaeth Addysg Cyfrwng 
Cymraeg, a bydd cyllidebau’n cael eu blaenoriaethu i feysydd lle gellir cyflawni’r 
budd mwyaf. 

 
4. Mae cyllidebau eraill o fewn y portffolio Addysg a Sgiliau sy’n cefnogi’r broses o 

weithredu’r Strategaeth yn cynnwys cyllid i’r canlynol: 
 

 Y Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol o fewn y llinell wariant Er Mwyn Ein 
Dyfodol yn y Cam Gweithredu Addysg Uwch, gyda dyraniad dangosol o 
£8.6m ar gyfer 2015-16; 

 Darpariaeth Dysgu Seiliedig ar Waith Cyfrwng Cymraeg o fewn y llinell 
wariant Dysgu Seiliedig ar Waith yn y Cam Gweithredu Addysg Ôl-16;  

Tudalen y pecyn 43



Annex 1 

 Cam wrth Gam, rhaglen hyfforddi i ymarferwyr yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen, gyda 
chyllid o £1.7m wedi’i ddyrannu o linell wariant y Cyfnod Sylfaen o fewn 
Cam Gweithredu’r Cwricwlwm yn 2015-16. 

 
5. Bydd y broses o weithredu Cynlluniau Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg yn dal i 

gael ei chefnogi trwy drosglwyddo cyllid sy’n gyfanswm o £5.13m ar gyfer Grant 
y Gymraeg mewn Addysg i mewn i’r Grant Gwella Ysgolion newydd i ysgolion 
yn 2015-16. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 45

Eitem 5Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 

23 Hydref 2014 – Papurau i’w nodi  

Rhif 

papur: 

Mater Oddi wrth Cam gweithredu 

Papurau cyhoeddus i’w nodi  

 

3 

 

 

 

 

Bil Trais ar Sail 

Rhywedd, 

Cam-drin 

Domestig a 

Thrais Rhywiol 

(Cymru)  

 

Cytunodd 

Ymddiriedola

eth 

Goroeswyr 

Cymru 

Cytunodd Ymddiriedolaeth Goroeswyr Cymru i 

ddarparu rhagor o wybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor am 

ddangosyddion perfformiad y dylid eu 

defnyddio, ym marn y mudiad, i fesur cynnydd 

tuag at gyflawni amcanion y Ddeddf. 

 

4 & 4a 

 

 

 

 

Bil Trais ar Sail 

Rhywedd, 

Cam-drin 

Domestig a 

Thrais Rhywiol 

(Cymru)  

 

Heddlu De 

Cymru 

 

 

Llythyr eglurhaol gan Gomisiynydd Heddlu a 

Throseddu De Cymru ar adroddiad CAADA (Co-

ordinated Action Against Domestic Abuse)  

 

Adroddiad CAADA  

 

5 & 5a 

 

 

 

 

Bil Trais ar Sail 

Rhywedd, 

Cam-drin 

Domestig a 

Thrais Rhywiol 

(Cymru)  

 

Heddlu De 

Cymru 

 

 

Llythyr eglurhaol gan y Comisiynydd Heddlu a 

Throseddu gydag awgrymiadau ynghylch 

gwelliannau i’r Bil 

 

Gwelliannau a awgrymwyd 

 

6 &6a Bil Trais ar Sail 

Rhywedd, 

Cam-drin 

Domestig a 

Thrais Rhywiol 

(Cymru)  

 

 Pwynt Gweithredu o 1 Hydref 2014: Llythyr gan 

y Cadeirydd at Fenter ManKind yn gofyn am 

ragor o wybodaeth 

 

Ymateb gan Fenter ManKind 

 

7 Bil Trais ar Sail 

Rhywedd, 

Cam-drin 

Domestig a 

Thrais Rhywiol 

(Cymru)  

Y Gweinidog 

Gwasanaetha

u Cyhoeddus 

 

Llythyr at David Melding, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 

Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

mewn perthynas â gwelliannau yng Nghyfnod 2 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 55

Eitem 6



 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 56



 
 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 3  
 
 
The Performance indicators included in this document have been created by TST Cymru at the 

request of the Communities, Equalities and Local Government Committee for the Gender-Based 

Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Bill. The Performance Indicators set out in this 

document have limitations. These the current absence of the strategies (as well as other key parts of 

the legislation) that they will need to be used to monitor. These indicators often relate specifically to 

Rape and Sexual Abuse i.e. Sexual Violence as this is within the expertise of TST Cymru. TST Cymru 

would welcome being involved in supporting the development of the National and Local Strategies 

and the development of more appropriate performance indicators relevant to the strategies. This 

would require a full mapping of current services, holistic national and local needs assessments which 

include baseline assessments from which performance can be measured. 

What are we looking to monitor and evidence? 

Behind these indicators is the Gender-Based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) 

Bill and its aim to prevent, protect and support. With this in mind, we would be particularly looking at 

all parts of Welsh Society in both public services and elsewhere to prove: 

1. That further and continued GBV, DA and SV in Wales is prevented and wherever possible 

there is early intervention to limit the harm to victims and survivors. This will include societal 

attitudinal changes; 

2. That a victim/survivor  of any experience covered by the remit of the bill will be able to access 

appropriate support and protection wherever(in Wales) and whenever they choose to do so; 

3. That suitable and effective protective processes are in place for the victims and survivors of 

crimes covered by the bill and that effective processes are in places and suitably enforced for 

the perpetrators of the crimes. 

It is essential to note that in the earlier years following the implementation of the Bill and all related 

activities the number of cases reported to front-line staff, teachers, and doctors and to the police 

should INCREASE. This will be a measure of the attitudinal changes taking place, systems (such as Ask 

and Act) working and victims and survivors having the confidence to come forward and seek support.  

This must be seen as the desired response and a positive development. In particular for Sexual 

Violence and Childhood Sexual Abuse there will be hundreds of thousands of adults who did not have 

support as children and have yet into adulthood to disclose and be appropriately supported. While 

we can estimate the numbers of people in Welsh society that could be in need of specialist support 

due to the hidden nature of rape, sexual abuse and other abuses covered by the Bill it is difficult to 

state factually how many people there are and how many of those people need support. Therefore 

for the first few years of reporting the indicators, in part, will seem to be very negative i.e. an 

increase in the number of rape and sexual abuse cases reported to the police/SARC/other front-line 

services. However, this needs to decrease over time and particularly of cases that occur within a 12 

month period before reporting i.e. current cases. 

Tudalen y pecyn 57



 
The indicators and outcomes are not exhaustive and each aspect of the strategic framework 

underpinning the actions needed to make the prevention, support and protection of the Bill needs 

analysis and unpicking in order to make these more comprehensive. Many of the indicators can also 

be duplicated under the different aims. There also needs to be an analysis of all places that any 

victims or person affected by GBV, DA and SV may be interacting with public service staff and 

mapping this out and the indicators and outcomes that should be expected from those interactions. 

 

 

Aim 1 

That further and continued rape and sexual abuse in Wales is prevented and wherever possible there 

is early intervention to limit the harm to victims and survivors. This will include societal attitudinal 

changes.  

Performance Indicators 

a. All L.E.A.’s have a ‘Whole School Approach’ Strategy and this includes School and Governor 

Champions, curriculum related work, Sexual Bullying policies and other policies and 

approaches to developing a respectful community within schools that challenges abuse, 

bullying and intimidation and empowers young people who may be victims and/or witnesses 

to abuse.  

The outcomes indicators that prove the effectiveness of this would include; 

 Student evaluations on feeling safer, respected and protected and knowing that there 

are school policies to support this. 

 Young people understanding their rights and responsibilities as human beings in 

respect to their sexuality, consent, and choices in family and intimate relationships. 

 Student self- defined understanding of GBV, DA and SV. 

 Teachers’ confidence in dealing with issues related to GBV, DA and SV 

 An increase in the number of students reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV occurring 

outside the school. 

 An increase in the number of students reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV occurring 

inside the school. 

 A fully embedded PSE curriculum supported by specialist agencies delivered in the 

schools (that is evaluated and supports the first outcome). 

 That staff and students can identify who the ‘Champions’ are and feel that they are 

accessible. 

 Girls feel safer and more in control of their personal choices and relationships and 

understand what gender stereotypes are and how they can be challenged. 

 Boys feel safer and more in control of their personal choices and relationships and 

understand what gender stereotypes are and how they can be challenged. 

 Girls and boys are more aware of how ideas of gender can be misused particularly to 

place power and control on girls and how this limits choices for all. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 58



 
Medium Term Indicators 

 Estyn inspections indicate that the above indicators are easily evidenced and 

monitored in the school.  

 Schools have demonstrable cases where they have followed procedures and acted 

appropriately for students and their families that are affected by GBV, DA and SV 

 Decrease in the occurrence of sexual bullying 

Long term indicators should be: 

 A decrease in the number of students reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV occurring 

outside the school. 

 A decrease in the number of students reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV occurring 

inside the school. 

 All children in Wales are able to describe, in an age appropriate way, what a healthy 

relationship is in a family, intimate relationship or with neighbours or known 

professionals.  

 

 

b. That Work-Based Policies are in place in Public, Private and Third Sector organisations and 

have been developed with specialist agencies so that they are informed and effective. 

Outcome Indicators 

 An increase in the number of staff reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV outside the work 

place 

 An increase in the number of staff reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV inside the work 

place 

 An identifiable ‘Expert Officer or Champion’ to support staff to support protection and 

support of victims/survivors of GBV, DA or SV in the work place. 

 A strategic ‘Champion’ who is identifiable to the workforce as placing importance and 

driving forward the organisational approach to GBV, DA and SV 

 Staff that are confident in accessing support if they are effected by GBV, DA and SV. 

 Staff that have increased confidence in challenging GBV,DA and SV 

Long Term Indicators 

 A decrease in the number of staff reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV outside the work 

place 

 A decrease in the number of staff reporting cases of GBV, DA and SV inside the work 

place 

 

c. That Welsh Society is more aware of GBV, DA and SV and the unacceptability of the abuse and 

are empowered to respond to it. 

Outcome Indicators 

 Increased reporting of GBV,DA and SV to the police, social services, third sector providers, 

self- referrals to SARCS and other specialist agencies such as TST Cymru member agencies 

 Public have increased confidence in reporting known or suspected GBV, DA and SV. 

 Public can identify what to do if they or someone else has experienced GBV, DA and SV. 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



 
Long Term Indicators 

 Decreased reporting of GBV,DA and SV to the police, social services, third sector providers, 

self- referrals to SARCS and other specialist agencies such as TST Cymru member agencies 

 An increased perception in the public view that GBV, DA and SV are responded to 

appropriately in Welsh Society. 

 Welsh Society changes it’s understanding of social norms and openly condemns …. 

 The Public will be informed on how to access services for themselves or someone they 

know is a victim of GBV,DA and SV. 

 Media coverage is of victim recovery rather than victim exposure 

 

d. That victims and survivors of GBV, DA and SV are identified and supported at the earliest 

opportunity. 

 The number of cases of Child Abuse reported to social services increase. 

 The number of serious case reviews for both children and adults decrease. 

 Information sharing protocols and MASH (or similar) are in place in all Local Authorities 

and have evidenced cases of early identification and prevention in GBV, DA and SV. 

 That frontline professions are better able to identify (through the National Training 

Framework and Ask and Act) and offer support to victims of GBV, DA and SV and that this 

is demonstrated by an increases disclosures and referrals on to other services.  

 Early identification and routine enquiry improves responses in disclosure among the most 

marginalised and vulnerable groups including people with disabilities, mental health 

issues, young people, and people who have offended. 

 An increase in disclosure to front-line professionals including in A&E, G.P’s, Housing Staff, 

Teachers and calls to the police. 

 Staff at all levels of public services and third sector organisations are confident in their 

own knowledge of GBV, DA and SV and are able to act in a way that is appropriate to their 

role ensuring the best outcomes for victims.  

 Staff working with victims of GBV, DA, and SV have attended Welsh Government Training 

providing knowledge, skills and confidence to support victims.  

 That policies, protocols and training for staff is aimed at dealing with safeguarding in the 

‘night time economy’ 

 Increases in early identification and management of perpetrators through recognised and 

well evidenced interventions 

 Increased use of Live Fear Free Helpline by victims of GBV, DA and SV. 

 Increased referrals to specialist support agencies from helpline for victims of GBV, DA and 

SV.  

 There is specialist provision in all local authorities for children as victims as well as 

witnesses to GBV, DA and SV.  

Long Term Indicators  

 A decrease in repeat incidents. 

 Welsh staff in public services are confident and knowledgeable about GBV, DA and SV and 

know systems of support for victims of GBV, DA and SV  

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 
 All public services and third sector organisations are compliant with established service 

standards for GBV, DA and SV. 

 

Aim 2 

That a victim/survivor of any experience covered by the remit of the bill will be able to access 

appropriate support and protection wherever (in Wales) and whenever they choose to do so; 

a. Each Local Authority has an identifiable Victim Pathway for ALL victims of GBV, DA and SV 

including out of area support when it is more practical i.e. in cases where local based needs 

assessment indicates little need. 

 An increase in reporting of ALL forms of GBV, DA and SV including current and historic 

cases. 

 Victim evaluation of services demonstrate confidence in support received and that it 

met their needs in both time and geography. 

 A decrease in repeat incidents. 

 An increase in reports of Children as victims of GBV, DA and SV 

 Pathways for isolated communities enable accessibility of services and this is 

supported by an increase in reports in defined ‘isolated’ areas. 

 Each Local Authority has a multi-agency individual forums for GBV, DA and SV that 

feed into the local strategy and monitoring the outcomes for each area within the 

strategy. 

 All victims of sexual violence offences that have reported crimes to the police or may 

be considering doing so have ISVA support. 

 All victims consider to be of high risk of domestic abuse are referred to MARAC and 

have IDVA support. 

 All victims of sexual violence are able to access therapeutic support within 2 months of 

referral.  

 All victims of sexual violence are able to access Special Measure, video link systems as 

well as ISVA support in court whenever appropriate. 

 Children and their families report confidence in court systems and related support and 

are aware of the specific measures and considerations made for children as victims 

and witnesses in court. 

 Local Service Boards and Community Safety Partnerships have representation from 

GBV, DA and SV specialist organisations and prepare policies and procedures that are 

supportive of the strategy document are drafted and implemented in this fora. 

Medium term indicators  

 Local Health Boards undertake reviews of the services provided for victims of GBV, DA 

and SV 

Long Term Indicators 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



 
 An decrease in reporting of ALL forms of GBV, DA and SV including current and historic 

cases. 

  An decrease in reports of Children as victims of GBV, DA and SV 

 

 

 

b.  Victim Pathways for support will be available in a timely fashion (immediately for crisis within 

2 months for historic) regardless of how long ago the GBV, DV or SV occurred. 

 Victims of Childhood Sexual Abuse will access counselling provided by specialist 

services within 2 months of referral. 

 

c. Commissioners are jointly involved in commissioning services developed from jointly 

undertaken needs assessments involving Local Authorities, Health Boards, Police,Third Sector 

Service Providers and Service Users. 

 Service providers are able to provide adequate services for local communities. 

 Waiting lists for services decrease significantly. 

 Evidence from needs assessment is suitably reflected in service provision. 

 Service users report services are able to meet their needs appropriately. 

 Numbers of victims/survivors in Mental Health and Substance Misuse Services 

decreases 

 Acute emergency/crisis admissions of victims and survivors of GBV, DA and SV 

decrease. 

 

 

Aim 3 

That suitable and effective protective processes are in place for the victims and survivors of crimes 

covered by the bill and that effective processes are in places and suitably enforced for the 

perpetrators of the crimes. 

a. Information sharing protocols are in place and all Local Authorities can evidence their 

effectiveness with cases of earlier intervention due to relevant information sharing. 

 Reduced cases of repeat incidents 

 Reduced MARAC cases. 

 Decrease in serious case reviews. 

 Increase in cases taken to police and social services. 

 Demonstrable effective management of identifiable perpetrators in ALL cases referred. 

 Decrease in families affected by GBV, DA and SV needing high level social services 

interventions i.e. children removed from families. 

 Each case where ‘Ask and Act’ has been used can be identified along with the 

outcome. 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 62



 
b. National and Local Strategies identify processes in devolved and non- devolved areas that 

improve protection of victims and survivors of GBV, DA and SV. 

 Increase in criminal justice outcomes for victims of GBV, DA and SV. 

 Reduced repeat incidents. 

 Increased support of ISVA’s for cases involved in CJS. 

 Clients in CJS report positive outcomes and experiences. 

 Demonstrable effective management of identifiable perpetrators in ALL cases referred. 

 All Sexual Offence cases that failed an evidential test for prosecution, were ‘no crimed’ 

or otherwise are routinely and regularly scrutinised.  

 

c. Public confidence in protective and support services in Wales increases. 

 Public are able to identify how to get support. 

 Increase in reports to police, social services and other organisations 

 Increase in self-referral to specialist services. 

.  
We have attempted in the above indicators to create a comprehensive list of indicators that would 
demonstrate success and are appropriate to key outcomes that should be achieved by the Gender-
Based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Bill, particularly for the strategies. We 
would welcome involvement in the further development of these once the strategies have been 
developed. TST Cymru is ambitious in its aim that Sexual Violence is recognised in its own right in the 
contribution to all aspects of the bill by the specialist sexual violence sector in Wales and 
consequently further support for those affected by sexual violence in Wales. 

 

Johanna Robinson 

National Development Manager 

The Survivors Trust Cymru 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 4  

Tudalen y pecyn 64



Tudalen y pecyn 65



CAADA co-ordinated action against domestic abuse

Report to the Police and Crime
Commissioner of South Wales

A Review of Services for Victims
of Domestic Abuse in South Wales

June 2014

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 4a  

Tudalen y pecyn 66



 
 

A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 
CAADA, 2014 Tudalen y pecyn 67



    
 

Contents  

Executive summary ............................................................................................................... 3 

I. A model community-based response to domestic abuse .............................................................. 4 

II. Our recommendations ............................................................................................................ 5 

III. Limitations to our recommendations ....................................................................................... 6 

IV. Longer term recommendations ............................................................................................... 7 

Section 1: Background, context and current service provision .............................................. 8 

1.1 Prevalence of domestic abuse ................................................................................................ 8 

1.2 Types of specialist service provision in South Wales for adult victims .......................................... 9 

1.3 Current identification, triage and referral arrangements .......................................................... 10 

1.4 Current leadership and governance in South Wales ................................................................ 11 

1.5 Current funding of provision in South Wales .......................................................................... 12 

1.6 Service provision in South Wales .......................................................................................... 15 

Section 2: Recommendations ...............................................................................................19 

2.1 Steps towards improved access for South Wales .................................................................... 19 

2.1.1 Model response ............................................................................................................ 19 

2.1.2 Recommendations......................................................................................................... 19 

2.2 Steps towards improved leadership and governance in South Wales......................................... 20 

2.2.1 Model response ............................................................................................................ 20 

2.2.2 Recommendations......................................................................................................... 20 

2.3 Steps to effective commissioning of domestic abuse service provision in South Wales ................ 21 

2.3.1 Model response ............................................................................................................ 21 

2.3.2 Recommendations......................................................................................................... 22 

2.4 Cost of a model community-based adult service ..................................................................... 26 

2.5 Other provision to be addressed in later phases ..................................................................... 29 

2.5.1 Refuge ......................................................................................................................... 29 

2.5.2 Additional vulnerabilities and complexities ....................................................................... 29 

2.5.3 Services for children ...................................................................................................... 29 

2.5.4 Sexual violence services................................................................................................. 29 

Appendices ..........................................................................................................................30 

 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

1 Tudalen y pecyn 68



    
 

We would like to thank all service providers, local authority stakeholders, and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and his team, who we spoke to and met during the course of producing this review. Their 
willingness to share information and expertise helped us shape this report. We would also like to include 
particular thanks to domestic abuse co-ordinators who supported us in the process. We hope that this 
report makes a real difference to the lives of families living with domestic abuse and helps to make them 
safe. 

We undertook a comprehensive review of service provision in South Wales and the detailed findings 
used to inform our conclusions are contained in a supplementary report entitled “A Review of Services 
for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales: Detailed Findings”. We also delivered two additional 
reports: one looking at service provision and recommendations within Cardiff and one summarising the 
provision by local authority area.   

 

 

Disclaimer1: 

The funding amounts, engaged referral numbers and other figures in the report have been derived from 
information provided to us by services, and funders. This data was not available on a consistent basis or 
time frame and in some cases we have had to impute the numbers from other sources or using MARAC 
and our Insights National Datasets and experience of the sector. We believe that these numbers should 
be used as ‘best estimates’ but not as exact figures. 

 

1 This report is provided under the terms of our contract with the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner dated 
7th April 2014. CAADA does not accept any liability for any use made of the report or any part of it by any third party. 
 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

2 

                                            

Tudalen y pecyn 69



    
 

Executive summary 

We are pleased to provide this report to the Police and Crime Commissioner of South Wales and his 
team. Our approach has been to build our recommendations around the experience of the victim and 
children, aiming to offer as seamless a response as possible, so that your opportunities for intervention 
translate into safety and wellbeing for those at risk. Thus our report covers not only commissioned 
services but also a more effective system to identify, refer and support victims, children, and 
perpetrators, as well as to close some of the divisions between domestic abuse, mental health, and 
substance use issues. Some of these require better organisation and co-ordination rather than additional 
resources.  

We believe that our recommendations will radically improve the experience of families impacted by 
domestic abuse, commissioners, practitioners, and partner agencies.  

For victims and children, their friends and families: 

• They will know what services are available and how to access them. 
• They will receive a consistent, professional and reliable response that combines both specialist 

support and brings together the professional expertise of partner agencies in this complex area 
so that both risk and needs can be met. 

• They will receive a service that is empowering and responsive with their personal situation. 
• The response to victim, child, and perpetrator will be co-ordinated. 
• Their experience will be captured systematically and used to inform future service development. 

For commissioners: 

• There will be much clearer provision, transparency, and lines of accountability. 
• Resources will follow risk and be used to best effect. 
• Opportunities to intervene early will be maximised. 
• Creating a consistent care pathway from identification to case closure will help to reduce the risk 

of domestic homicide and child deaths. 
• Consistent data will provide the opportunity to learn and develop provision. 

For practitioners: 

• Being part of a resilient team with the full breadth of expertise required to meet the needs of all 
clients. 

• Manageable caseloads. 
• Sufficient resource for management, clinical supervision, and administration. 
• Career development opportunities. 

For partner agencies:  

• Clear referral pathways. 
• Supportive training and ‘lead professional’ role in universal agencies to build confidence in asking 

victims, children or perpetrators about domestic abuse. 
• Being part of an effective care pathway that respects the limits of each role. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

3 Tudalen y pecyn 70



    
 

There is a real contrast between the way that services are funded and delivered today, and how they 
might look given if they were reconfigured. Our visits revealed a highly fragmented response with the 
current budget of £9m being split among over 130 different ‘pots’ of funding going to 25 providers 
across the 7 local authorities. There is no doubt that local practitioners are often ‘going the extra mile’ in 
terms of trying to respond to their clients’ needs, despite the constraints of current organisation size, 
funding and inter-agency relationships.  

I. A model community-based response to domestic abuse 

In order to achieve a model community-based response to domestic abuse in South Wales, there needs 
to be: 

A. A single ‘front door’ for all referrals to identify the risk, needs and vulnerabilities of 
each member of the family as early as possible: We recommend that ideally all cases 
involving children, all high risk (with or without children) and other cases who do not have 
children (with consent), are referred to a triage hub or Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH). 
The MASH would have membership from police, children’s services, Independent Domestic 
Violence Advisors (IDVAs), substance use, mental health, early years health, education and 
probation1. This will give a safer immediate response to incidents of abuse and violence, create 
an opportunity for proactive early intervention with high, medium and standard risk victims and 
ensure that the right cases get the right support, including referral where needed to the Multi-
Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) for fuller risk management and safety planning. 
To manage volume, this can be implemented in stages with more limited initial referral criteria. 

 
B. Larger teams of ‘IDVA-type’ practitioners for high and medium risk cases: We 

recommend commissioning around 60 IDVA-type practitioners in 3-4 large teams. They will offer 
specialist support for all medium and high risk cases. These teams need to include a range of 
practitioners, each leading in a particular area of expertise in relation to the full range of issues 
that victims face. We refer to these practitioners as ‘lead IDVAs’. The areas of specialism would 
include criminal justice and the family courts, housing, substance use, mental health, perpetrator 
risk management, recovery, safeguarding, young people, Black and Minority Ethnic (B&ME), 
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender (LGBT) victims, and male victims. These teams would offer  
a high quality service to victims, be more resilient, and offer rational management to staff ratios. 
They need to be located in a range of settings (e.g. independent women’s centre, police station, 
or hospital) to ensure that they are accessible to all victims. They would link in with, or could 
potentially include services such as IRIS and work closely with high risk victims in refuge.  
 

C. A clear offer of longer term recovery and ‘step down’: Domestic abuse has one of the 
highest rates of repeat victimisation of any crime and thus a solid recovery and ‘step down’ 
response is essential. This should be co-ordinated within the wider IDVA team by the recovery 
lead IDVA. Delivery of recovery and step down support would take the form of both group and 
one-to-one support as appropriate, linking in with local services and community networks to 
encourage victims to be integrated locally and reduce their isolation. Group work would involve 
peer support and offer both education sessions and life skills (e.g. Pattern Changing or the 
Recovery Toolkit). This can also include volunteer support for longer term ‘keeping in touch’. 
 

D. A clearly co-ordinated strategic plan across all key commissioners: By agreeing 
common goals and a common vision for services, commissioners can achieve much more with 
their respective budgets. Domestic abuse and safeguarding issues clearly cut across different 
departments but the response needs to ensure that there is a clear and co-ordinated plan that 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

4 Tudalen y pecyn 71



    
 

aligns the different budgets in the most effective way, either by pooling, or by agreeing the 
demarcation between commissioners. This requires planning at a senior level with absolute 
clarity about how different activities and services fit together in a way that meets the needs of 
victims and children. This plan also needs to stipulate the deliverables, standards across all 
services, performance management metrics, and outcome measurement. We believe that this is 
most effectively delivered through a lead provider, giving the benefits of scale and clarity of 
accountability, while ensuring that particular local needs are provided for. 
 

E. Effective communication with victims and their families about the support on offer: 
Although identification of domestic abuse victims is higher in South Wales than the national 
average, we know from research that many victims of domestic abuse either do not recognise 
their experience in this way, or do not have confidence to access services. This is particularly 
true in relation to women from minority communities, teenagers, and those from LGBT 
communities. Thus, constant communication and public awareness campaigns, including the use 
of social media, are needed to address this. 

 

II. Our recommendations 

We make three clear sets of immediate recommendations for change to help achieve the above.  

A. For key statutory agencies: They play a vital role in improving identification of victims, 
children and perpetrators, and transforming the ease of access to services. We recommend 
establishing clear referral pathways and the creation of multi-agency triage teams so that cases 
of both victims and children are referred to the right organisation in a speedy way. Commitment 
is needed from the senior leaders in key organisations (including police, children’s social care, 
health, housing, substance use, mental health, probation, schools, and children’s centres) to 
ensure that this is implemented effectively and reviewed as needed. 
 

B. For the Police and Crime Commissioner, the Minister for Housing and Regeneration 
and the Welsh Assembly Government: We recommend using the findings of this review in 
relation to need, provision and funding to create a much more strategic response to domestic 
abuse and sexual violence, with clear leadership and accountability. In practice, this means 
agreeing to resource specialist services for ‘visible’ high and medium risk victims who are actively 
help seeking by taking the £1.5m that is currently committed to high and medium risk services 
and re-configuring £1.5m of other provision from the Supporting People budget currently being 
spent principally on medium risk victims, giving £3m to reach more medium and high risk victims 
with a more effective service. It will also result in a more equitable distribution of funding which 
ranges today from 60p per local resident to £2.50 in different local authorities in the Force area. 
 

C. For the Police and Crime Commissioner, Local Authority and Health Board Chief 
Executives: We recommend commissioning much larger community-based teams who would 
provide specialist support for both medium and high risk victims of domestic abuse. This will 
require either a pooling of budgets or clearly co-ordinated delivery of a single strategy. Chief 
Executives will need to lead this implementation and assure its quality with their commissioning 
colleagues. These teams will be able to provide a better response with the full range of services 
that victims need and capacity for ‘lead practitioner’ roles within the teams for the full range of 
support needs that victims have. They will offer much more resilience, better ratios of 
management to frontline practitioners, and ultimately a more consistent response. They must 
meet national service standards and have embedded outcome measurement. In practice, we 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

5 Tudalen y pecyn 72



    
 

recommend using a ‘lead provider’ approach to commissioning a small number of teams of IDVA-
type practitioners (60 practitioners in total), plus appropriate administrative support, who would 
together cover the 7 local authority areas. We believe that this will allow the retention of 
relevant specialisms while gaining the advantages of greater scale. Standard risk referrals would 
be offered volunteer support and free national resources, such as the helpline and online advice.  

III. Limitations to our recommendations 

There is a number of limitations to our recommendations.  

A. Victims who do not wish to separate: The most important relates to those victims who do 
not want to separate from their partner. Our national dataset of over 25,000 victim cases shows 
that around 75% of those engaging with specialist support services have already separated from 
their partner or ex-partner. This suggests to us that those victims who want to stay in a 
relationship are either not contacting agencies for help, or feel that the services offered focus on 
separation and that the ‘staying put’ option is not available. This is a serious issue nationally and 
not one to which we have the answers today. It is something that we are working on actively 
and will share our findings and recommendations when these are developed. 
 

B. Refuge provision: We have discussed the need in the report for shorter term emergency 
accommodation (known locally as ‘Intake and Assessment’) which assumes an up to 8 week stay 
in refuge, and endorsed the approach taken by Cardiff Women’s Aid and others to addressing 
this. We have also identified the specific support needed for those women who genuinely need 
longer term accommodation because of the complexity of their situation, including for example 
women who do not speak English, and those with serious mental health or substance use issues. 
However, we have not made overall recommendations for refuge capacity for two main reasons. 
Firstly, refuges provide a valuable service to women fleeing domestic abuse from all parts of the 
country and so the local demand figures only give a partial level of need. Secondly, many 
women in refuge remain there for longer than necessary from a risk perspective because of a 
lack of move on accommodation locally, which distorts the level of need and prevents women 
and children in crisis from accessing a refuge bed. Thus, we have left the refuge capacity 
unchanged in this report but recommended that this be reviewed in future to address these 
specific issues.  
 

C. Services for children: We have included our generic recommendations in relation to services 
for children but data was not available on the age, risk, and needs profiles of the children of 
service users is required to better understand the capacity required for support. An in-depth 
review would be required to evaluate the relative effectiveness of the various interventions, and 
whether they are best provided in house or in collaboration with universal or other statutory 
services. We refer to our recently published document “In plain sight: Effective help for children 
exposed to domestic abuse”2, where we have made three recommendations regarding provision 
for children as follows: 

a. To achieve early intervention at little or no cost, create a network of lead 
professionals across agencies with a shared understanding of risk. 

b. To ensure children’s safety, provide linked specialist domestic abuse services for the 
child and the parents. 

c. To ensure children are protected and helped, Local Safeguarding Children’s Boards 
and Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales should monitor provision and 
outcomes for children exposed to domestic abuse. 

 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

6 Tudalen y pecyn 73



    
 

D. Services for perpetrators: They were not in the scope of the review. We have included some 
reference to perpetrators in our recommendations in the section on access to services, and also 
in the configuration of the IDVA teams, which if implemented will lead to better links with 
relevant statutory agencies. This should lead to opportunities for earlier intervention, for 
example with teenagers who use violence in their relationships, and better identification and 
management of the most prolific and serious perpetrators, including both diversionary and 
disruptive tactics.  
 

E. Sexual violence services: The review of these services is not included in this report. 

IV. Longer term recommendations  

In the longer term, we have also set out other areas that require consideration and potential 
reconfiguration, which will require engagement from other commissioners and government departments 
to achieve. This first set of recommendations will not address all the issues that we found, but they will 
mark an important step forward if implemented for adult victims living in the community. Areas for 
longer term work include the response to victims needing emergency accommodation, those with longer 
term complex needs and the embedding of services for children that address not only the domestic 
abuse, but also other issues including parental mental health and substance use.  

Our recommendations are not without challenges to implement. It will take strong leadership from the 
Police and Crime Commissioner and other commissioners to create a co-ordinated system where 
resources are used in the most effective way. It will take commitment from partner agencies to engage 
in an improved triage approach. It will take courage from practitioners to work in new ways. We hope 
that these elements will transform the experience of victims of domestic abuse in South Wales and 
create a truly model response. Their views were put very clearly in a number of consultations, including 
with Supporting People in 2011 and by the KAFKA Brigade more recently. Our recommendations aim to 
meet their calls for change. 

1 Provided by either statutory or voluntary sector.  
2 Available at 
http://www.caada.org.uk/documents/In_plain_sight_effective_help_for_children_exposed_to_domestic_abuse.pdf  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

7 

                                            

Tudalen y pecyn 74

http://www.caada.org.uk/documents/In_plain_sight_effective_help_for_children_exposed_to_domestic_abuse.pdf


    
 

Section 1: Background, context and current service provision 

1.1 Prevalence of domestic abuse  

 

We arrive at this number using ‘best estimates’ as follows: 

• Most needs analyses start with the Crime Survey for England and Wales estimates of prevalence 
applied to the South Wales population giving an estimate of 24,800 female and 16,200 male 
victims. We adjusted these numbers to account for higher prevalence in South Wales and to 
include those over 60 but these large estimates are not very useful for planning provision 
because they include any domestic abuse of any severity, with no indication of risk level, or 
propensity to engage with support services. 
 

• We used proxies in the Crime Survey for England and Wales data, for example: ‘moderate or 
severe force’, ‘moderate or severe injuries’, or ‘many times in the last year’ to estimate that 26% 
of female victims in South Wales are high and medium risk victims, that is 9,200 victims. Within 
this, we estimated that there are over 600 victims from B&ME communities. 

 
o We did not have local data for the number of children living with domestic abuse, but using 

our Insights National Dataset we assume that two thirds of victims have approximately 2 
children each. This would imply that about 12,000 children are living in high and medium risk 
households, half of whom are children of visible victims. Many more will be living in standard 
risk homes and we know from research that children living in standard risk homes can still be 
severely harmed, particularly psychologically. 
 

• We used proxies of all three forms of abuse (domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking), and 
severe force in the last year to estimate that 40% of this group were high risk, that is 3,700, and 
the other 60% are medium risk, that is 5,500.  
 

• Finally, to estimate how many victims might be at a point where they will seek or engage with 
support, including male victims, we used our MARAC and Insights datasets – we have called 
these victims ‘visible’ to agencies. We estimate that there may be around 2,000 high risk and 
another 2,000 medium risk victims who may be at or near the point of help seeking. We think 
there are many more victims that are visible but are not being identified, or are hard to reach 
and find it hard to engage.  
 

• There were 27,537 police incidents reported in South Wales in the year to March 2013, including 
11,594 (42%) repeats. These numbers have limited usefulness in planning capacity because:  

We estimate that there are around 9,200 high and medium risk victims in South Wales. This includes 
those currently visible to agencies, primarily the police, and those who have not formally disclosed 
domestic abuse. These are broken down between 3,700 high risk victims and 5,500 medium risk 
victims.  

We estimate that there are around 2,000 high risk and 2,000 medium risk victims of domestic abuse 
who may be both visible and at or near the point of help seeking. We used these numbers to plan 
capacity for support. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

8 Tudalen y pecyn 75



    
 

The generally accepted pathway in South Wales for victims assessed as high risk, but without 
immediate accommodation needs, is to be referred to the IDVA, and possibly MARAC.  

All other victims will usually be referred (or will self-refer) to the local refuge or floating support 
provider, or helpline. Standard risk victims will sometimes be referred to Victim Support. 

 

o These are only incidents reported to police so anyone not reporting is not counted. 
o They are incidents and not people, and we don’t know if the repeats are due to a few victims 

calling many times or many victims calling a few times. 
o The method of calculating changed last year and they show a big drop in numbers due to  

a change in definition. 
o Except for in Rhondda Cynon Taf, these incidents are not analysed by risk. South Wales 

Police is due to introduce this analysis next year.  
 
• We do know that there were 2,289 cases referred to MARAC, and excluding repeats this 

translates to an estimated 1,800 individuals, not all of whom will have engaged with support.  

1.2 Types of specialist service provision in South Wales for adult victims 

 
• Refuge provides bed spaces (units) for victims with accommodation-based needs. Supporting 

People funding pays for the support given to victims in refuge and housing benefit pays for ‘rent’ 
which includes building-related expenses, such as utilities, maintenance, service charges, 
security etc. Refuge is an open access service and victims stay until they are ready to ‘move on’. 

 
• Floating support is an intense needs-led package (unit) of dedicated support provided either in 

conjunction with a self-contained unit of accommodation, or to victims in the community with 
other tenancies. It is very often provided as an extension to refuge users when they leave. 
Eligibility criteria apply, including accommodation needs, and the unit of support remains 
available to the victim until they have achieved the goals in their agreed support plans.  

 
Some floating support is provided to victims in the community whether or not they have 
accommodation-based needs and we have called this floating support extended to others.  
 

• IDVA services are an evidence-based innovation in the domestic abuse sector focusing on 
keeping victims safe in their own homes. The role of the IDVA is to mobilise an effective multi-
agency risk-led response including MARAC. 
 

• Dyn project provides IDVA support to high risk victims of domestic and sexual violence and 
abuse, and a helpline service for men in Wales. 
 

• Specialist B&ME: A fully integrated domestic abuse service for B&ME victims is provided across 
South Wales by BAWSO. 
 

• Helpline: victims and professionals can call either local helplines for advice or the All Wales 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Helpline. Where a high risk victim presents to  
a refuge with no available space, support workers will work to find a suitable alternative 
elsewhere, and this is very often done through the All Wales Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence Helpline. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

9 Tudalen y pecyn 76



    
 

 
• Victim Support: support is offered by a Victim Support volunteer to mainly standard risk victims 

who called the police. 
 

• Sexual Assault Referral Centres (SARCs) provide acute services including forensic examination 
and advocacy, as well as counselling and support for victims of sexual abuse including historic 
abuse. 
 

• Recovery and step down: this includes both educational and life skills programmes, often 
delivered as group work, thus offering peer support, and should be an integrated part of the 
core services listed above. 
 

• There are various other emerging services such as IRIS in GP surgeries, and work with families 
who do not wish to separate by Atal y Fro.  
 

• Support for children: the main services currently provided are for children in refuge. More 
information on children’s services is provided in a separate document entitled “A Review of 
Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales: Details of Service Provision by Local 
Authority Area”. 

Please note: Throughout the report we have used the estimated number of ‘engaged’ or 
accommodated victims rather than the number of referrals. The number of referrals is always much 
higher than the number who engage with the service because some victims are not ready to accept 
help, sometimes there is not enough capacity to follow up all referrals, and some victims are offered 
only limited, unfunded support on ad hoc basis. This is not to deny the work done with victims who do 
not engage fully with support.  

1.3 Current identification, triage and referral arrangements 

 

• The police identify the vast majority of victims of domestic abuse, who are visible to agencies. 
Referrals from the police to IDVAs work reasonably well for high risk victims, but referrals are 
made to the IDVA with little or no regard for the available capacities and relative caseloads, thus 
with the exception of Cardiff, high risk victims are currently being referred to acutely under 
resourced IDVA services. 

  
• In most other places, referrals for medium risk victims are less effective and we could not find 

evidence that these referrals were tracked beyond sign-posting, or that they were offered 
material support. There is also less consistency about information sharing in relation to non-high 
risk cases. 

 
• Other systems are evolving for high risk victims to enable potentially a more dynamic response 

from agencies. These include the daily conference call in Cardiff, and an imminent Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) in Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

We believe that the combination of inconsistent referral/triage systems and the fragmented provision 
leaves victims of abuse having to negotiate their way among multiple agencies and results in very 
high case attrition. There are clearer systems for high risk victims but not for other levels of risk. It is 
our understanding that there is currently no systematic review of risk to both victim and child and 
how these are related.  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

10 Tudalen y pecyn 77



    
 

 
• We were not made aware of any co-ordinated identification and referral system from non-police 

agencies. The vast majority of referrals to specialist services and to the MARACs come from the 
police. For MARACs, this ranges from 83% in Swansea to 52% in Merthyr. Combined referrals 
from children’s services, primary and secondary care, education, mental health, housing, and 
substance use services amounted to just over 6% of all MARAC referrals across the region. 

 
• Whilst the forwarding of PPD1s to other agencies by police is consistent with the need to share 

information particularly when children are involved, there were anecdotal reports of agencies 
being somewhat overwhelmed by the volume. In Swansea, for example, in order to manage the 
volume, children's social services funded a Domestic Abuse Referral Co-ordinator post to triage 
the PPD1 referrals because previously around 70-85% of PPD1 referrals were NFA’d (no further 
actioned).  

 
• There are a number of One Stop Shops including in Merthyr, Neath Port Talbot, Rhondda Cynon 

Taf, the Women’s Centre in Cardiff, and one shortly to be completed in Swansea. These offer the 
potential for more co-ordinated referral, triage and support. Unfortunately, a number of these 
centres have been commissioned without a clear plan or funding for joint working, resulting in  
a lack of engagement from statutory agencies. It appears that the Oasis Centre in Rhondda 
Cynon Taf addresses some of these issues effectively, but the lack of a fully integrated care 
pathway results in unnecessary complexity for both providers and victims. 

 
• We were not able to get firm data on the use of the All Wales Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence Helpline for victims or agencies in South Wales. Those services with local helplines 
(Cardiff Women’s Aid, Calan DVS, Oasis Centre in Rhondda Cynon Taf, Atal y Fro, Bridgend 
Women’s Aid, PT&AWA, and Swansea Women’s Aid) argued strongly in favour of keeping these. 
A number of services - in particular the IDVA services - said that they received very few referrals 
from the All Wales Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Helpline. 

 
• Referrals and use of the Victim Support service also varies, with Cardiff Victim Support being 

able to access police systems and thus contact both crime and non-crime cases, while other 
Victim Support teams can only contact victims where a crime has been committed. 

1.4 Current leadership and governance in South Wales  

 

 
• No local authority area (or Single Integrated Plan) provided a comprehensive needs assessment, 

outlining the current prevalence by need and risk, translated into service provision planned 
appropriately and funded securely.  
 

Overall, we found that the highly fragmented funding and commissioning decisions detract from the 
effectiveness of the system to respond to domestic abuse, with too many small grants for individual 
projects or posts that do not form part of a wider strategic plan. Current funding constraints can 
distort the allocation of capacity, leading to serious and potentially dangerous gaps in provision for 
victims most at risk of serious harm or murder and inconsistent provision for medium risk victims. 

There is currently almost no funding from health or children’s social services for specialist services. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

11 Tudalen y pecyn 78



    
 

• We believe that consistent data regarding prevalence of domestic abuse or sexual violence 
within other statutory agencies, such as children’s social services or health is neither collected 
and analysed nor shared routinely with any domestic abuse or sexual violence fora or other 
planning body. There can be no accountability within these agencies unless these statistics are 
routinely counted, scrutinised and translated into capacity for victim services.  
 

• No one strategic group or funding organisation appears to have a clear understanding of current 
capacity to support victims relative to the overall need, by level of risk. The result is highly 
fragmented inconsistent provision and high levels of unmet need leaving too many victims 
having to negotiate their own way through the network of service providers. Only in Rhondda 
Cynon Taf there was data on need by risk level (as measured by PPD1 referrals from the police) 
being consistently collated and analysed, including information on unmet need. Elsewhere, we 
could not find any evidence that any one body or multi-agency fora had a clear understanding of 
current need by risk level, or how effectively it was being met on an ongoing basis. 
 

• There is an expectation of local and regional ‘multi-agency collaboration’ at both the operational 
and strategic levels, despite there being little or no centralised collaboration in relation to 
governance, needs assessments, service provision, outcome monitoring, and crucially the pooling 
of departmental budgets. 
 

• Funding from statutory agencies such as health and children’s social services is 
disproportionately low compared to the extent to which the ‘cost of failure’ lands on these 
agencies.  
 

• We were unable to find examples of consistent data collection, standards for services or outcome 
metrics across all services in an area. 
 

• A detailed analysis of funding by local authority area shows that in terms of spend per head of 
population there is a very wide range. Of course, the amount of local refuge provision and the 
location of the SARCs influences this heavily. The £1.8m of funding for community-based 
domestic abuse services (excluding refuge and related floating support and SARCs) gives 
average expenditure per head of population of only £1.7 across the region, ranging from only 
60p in Bridgend to £2.5 in Cardiff. 

1.5 Current funding of provision in South Wales 
• There are over 130 funding streams to around 25 providers in South Wales. We could not find 

examples of where this funding is widely co-ordinated, and there is little scrutiny of service 
standards, outcomes or value for money. 

 
• Current funding of domestic abuse and sexual violence services, as outlined in the following 

tables, amounts to almost £9m1. For historical reasons, the majority of funding £5.5m (63%) 
comes from the Department of Housing and Regeneration through Supporting People and the 
remaining £3.3m (37%) of funding is from various other sources, including the Department of 
Communities via Community Safety Partnerships, and these are mostly piecemeal, uncoordinated 
and insecure. 
 

• The Supporting People funding is granted to providers delivering support to victims with a range 
of risk levels and vulnerabilities, where there are housing-related support needs. Funding is, 
therefore, disproportionately allocated to accommodation-based support, and contrary to 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

12 Tudalen y pecyn 79



    
 

expectation, this is not due to building-related costs which amount to an additional £1.7m not 
included in the total.  
 

• £1m (12%) is allocated for high risk victims to IDVAs (£0.9m) and MARAC (£0.1m for co-
ordinators), the aim of which is to keep victims safe in their own homes. Our data shows that on 
average, 43% of this group have housing related needs but do not typically receive Supporting 
People funded support. 
 

• Health funds 1% of all funding into domestic and sexual abuse service provision. 
 
Table 1: Analysis of funding by source 
 
Funding by source Amount % Total 
Supporting People (support element only) 5.5m 63% 
Welsh Government various 1.2m 14% 
Local authorities 0.5m 6% 
Police and Crime Commissioner/police 0.4m 5% 
Grant making trusts 0.4m 4% 
Home Office/Ministry of Justice  0.3m 3% 
Welsh Government Children or Families 
First 

0.2m 3% 

Welsh Government Health/Health Boards 0.1m 1% 
Total £8.8m 100% 

 
Table 2: Analysis of funding by service 

Funding by service Amount % Total 
IDVA and MARAC (high risk victims) 1.0m 12% 

Refuge, floating support, complex needs, 
(support element only) and sanctuary 
schemes 

5.5m 62% 

SARC and other sexual violence 0.7m 7% 
Domestic abuse co-ordinators 0.2m 2% 
Children and young people 0.6m 7% 
Other2 0.8m 10% 
Total £8.8m 100% 

 
Tables continue on the following page. 

  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

13 Tudalen y pecyn 80



    
 

Table 3: Analysis of funding by local authority area 

Funding by 
source by 
local 
authority 

Bridgend Cardiff Merthyr NPT3 RCT4 Swansea VOG5 Grand 
total 

Supporting 
People 309 1,843 226 804 1,184 1,008 158 5,534 

Other sources 
(Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner, 
Ministry of 
Justice, Home 
Office, local 
authority) 

161 1,161 316 87 318 313 197 2,554 

Welsh 
Government 
Families First 

31 69 32 107 24 0 3 266 

Grant making 
trust and other 0 0 64 168 32 70 75 409 

 502 3,072 639 1,167 1,559 1,391 434 8,763 

Funding £ per 
adult 
population 4.4   10.9  13.3  10.1  8.2  7.0  4.2  8.3                 
Dedicated 
community- 
based6 high 
and medium 
risk  funding £ 
per adult 
population  

0.6 2.5 1.2 2.1 2.2 0.7 1.6 1.7 

 
 

  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

14 Tudalen y pecyn 81



    
 

1.6 Service provision in South Wales 

 

There is a complicated and fragmented range of provision in South Wales, and unsurprisingly, this leads 
to inconsistency and gaps in the capacity and quality of provision.  

• There are serious and potentially dangerous gaps in provision for high risk victims resulting in 
unsafe caseloads, high levels of unmet need, high attrition rates, and limited access to step 
down and recovery for victims who are most at risk of serious harm or murder. 
 

• Dedicated provision for medium risk is limited. Most services do provide some ad hoc support but 
seldom to best practice standards. Support is not consistently delivered on a risk-led basis, cases 
are not tracked and outcomes are not monitored. A few services offer formally funded support, 
for example, the Domestic Abuse Information, Support & Empowerment scheme (DAISE) in 
Swansea and the Reactive team in Cardiff Women’s Aid. 

 
• Accommodation-based services account for 75%7 of funding and 30% of the number of victims 

supported. Refuge and floating support services are provided by 110 practitioners across 14 
different organisations. Caseloads for this group are frequently between 10-20% of those 
managed by the IDVAs. The concentration of provision in this area contrasts with high levels of 
unmet need elsewhere in the system.  
 

• Caseloads for victims receiving accommodation-based support are markedly lower than those 
receiving IDVA or floating support extended to others.  

o Caseloads for IDVAs range from 70 to 150 per year.  
o Caseloads for floating support extended to others (mostly medium risk) range from 40 to 

190.  
o Average caseloads for refuge (18), floating support (13) and complex needs providers 

(7), are all somewhat lower than the average caseloads for social workers in England and 
Wales (25-30).  

 
• The fragmentation of services across multiple providers leads to inconsistent practice, a lack of 

resilience, and inhibits the development of the specialist skills necessary to address additional 
vulnerabilities, for example where significant drug, alcohol, or mental health issues are present. 

 
• The fragmentation is most acute in relation to high risk victims where 10 providers employ 22 

IDVAs across the region. In Bridgend and Neath Port Talbot, the IDVAs are working alone with 
no cover for sickness or holidays. In Swansea, two IDVAs work in the same building but are 
managed by different providers, have different policies and IT systems. 

• 22 IDVAs support 2,000 high risk victims with funding of £0.9m or £460 per engaged victim. 
• 14 support workers provide floating support ‘extended to others’ to 1,100 mainly medium risk 

victims, with funding of £0.6m or £540 per engaged victim. 
• 40 support workers supported 740 victims in refuge with funding of £2.1m or £2,900 per 

engaged victim. 
• 57 support workers provided floating support to 710 victims with funding of £2.0m or £2,980 

per engaged victim. 
• 13 support workers provided support for 90 others with complex needs with funding of 

£0.5m or £5,970 per engaged victim. 
• There is likely to be considerable overlap between these services. For example, many victims 

are supported in refuge and then move on to floating support.  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

15 Tudalen y pecyn 82



    
 

 
• Funding and provision (18%) for B&ME victims in South Wales is well above the percentage 

B&ME in the local population (7%) and the percentage of B&ME MARAC referrals (5%). 
Caseloads for BAWSO are generally lower than average, which we understand is due to the 
additional vulnerabilities of some service users. 
 

• The percentage of funding and provision (<1%) for male victims of domestic abuse is well below 
the percentage of male MARAC victims (5%). 

 
The table on the following page sets out the current aggregated service provision across South Wales. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

16 Tudalen y pecyn 83



    
 

Table 4: Service provision in South Wales 

Service provision in 
South Wales 
  

Number of 
engaged 
victims 8 
supported   

Number of 
providers 

FTE 9suppo
rt workers 
(FLP10) 

Caseload/ 
caseloads 
range  

£ ('000)  
expenditure 
per capita 
shown in 
brackets 

IDVA (high risk victims) 2,000 10 22 70-150 £0.9m (£460) 

Floating support extended 
to others11  

1,100 6 14 43-186 £0.6m (£540) 

Short term crisis 
intervention high and 
medium risk victims 

3,100 
(possible 
overlap) 

 36  £1.5m 

Refuge (support only)12  740  40 18 £2.1m 
(£2,900) 

Floating support outreach 710  57 13 £2.1m 
(£2,980) 

Other vulnerable/complex 
needs 

90  13 7 £0.5m 
(£5,970) 

Total refuge and 
floating support 
including other 
vulnerable 

unknown 
overlap13 

14 110  £4.8m 

Total domestic abuse 
service provision 

unknown 
overlap14 

>20 
(overlap) 

146  £6.3m 

Domestic abuse and 
MARAC Co-ordinators 

    £0.3m 

Other domestic abuse and 
sexual violence provision15 

    £2.2m 

Total   >25   £8.8m 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

17 Tudalen y pecyn 84



    
 

All services record the number of referrals which is always much higher than the number who ‘engage’ 
with the service. Some victims are not ready to accept help, sometimes there is not enough capacity to 
follow up all referrals, and some victims are offered only limited, unfunded support on ad hoc basis. In 
all our calculations we have used the estimated number of ‘engaged’ or accommodated 
victims and not referrals. 

1 An additional £1.0m of funding, not included in this figure, is paid to Welsh Women’s Aid for the All Wales Domestic 
Abuse Helpline, core funding, and Families First funding for Children’s Star project (WWA accounts 2012/3). Another 
£0.35m is paid to Tascor for Forensic doctors to addend SARCs across South Wales. 
2 Funding for various other services including ad hoc support workers, support for males, core funding, OSS managers, 
early intervention programme, social enterprise funding. 
3 Neath Port Talbot.  
4 Rhondda Cynon Taf.  
5 Vale of Glamorgan. 
6 Includes IDVA funding, dedicated floating support extended to others (mostly medium risk), Domestic Abuse Co-
ordinator and MARAC co-ordination funding. 
7 This excludes rental income paid by housing benefit to cover the building and utilities.  
8 The table shows only the engaged service users and does not indicate a far higher rate of referrals to all services. 
(E.g. There are over 2,300 referrals to IDVA services from the MARAC cases alone, including repeat referrals and 
those who don’t engage.) 
9 Full time equivalent. 
10 Frontline professional.  
11 Most providers do extend their floating support funded services on an ad hoc basis. This data includes schemes 
where floating support has been extended to community-based support workers for all victims. 
12 Refuge costs are for support only and not the cost of buildings and maintenance which is funded by housing benefit 
in the form of rent (an additional £1.7m). 
13 The total number of victims supported by all providers cannot be shown as a total because there is likely to be 
significant overlap across all services and individual cases are not consistently tracked between services. 
14 The total number of victims supported by all providers cannot be shown as a total because there is likely to be 
significant overlap across all services and individual cases are not usually tracked between services. 
15 We have only presented the numbers supported within domestic abuse services for IDVA, floating support, and 
refuge. Other services are provided such as support to children, helplines, sanctuary schemes, training and awareness, 
and SARCs, but referral numbers to these service were not provided consistently enough for this type of analysis. 
 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

18 

                                            

Tudalen y pecyn 85



    
 

Section 2: Recommendations  

Our recommendations are presented in three broad themes reflecting the key elements of a model 
response to domestic abuse and sexual violence: access to services, leadership and governance, and 
effective service provision. They focus primarily on domestic abuse services, including where sexual 
violence occurs within an abusive relationship.  

2.1 Steps towards improved access for South Wales 

2.1.1 Model response 

 

2.1.2 Recommendations 
We recommend that key statutory agencies ensure: 

 That clear unambiguous referral pathways for victims and their children, for all statutory 
agencies and specialist service providers (whether voluntary or statutory) via one central point of 
contact per region are established. We refer to this as triage. 

 
These must include formal organised triage arrangements, in particular legal and technological 
arrangements for data sharing. Locally, the best example that we have seen of this is in Rhondda 
Cynon Taf. All cases involving children, all high risk (with or without children) and others who do not 
have children (with consent) should be referred to triage. To manage volume, this can be 
implemented in stages with more limited initial referral criteria. Implementing triage might need to 
be phased depending on local multi-agency support: 
 

a. At a minimum, triage must include input from at least children’s services, police, and an 
IDVA. The referral arrangements must include a mechanism for self and other non-police 
referrals and a professional to professional advice service in advance of Ask and Act 
legislation. 

b. Ideally, the agencies involved in the triage process would include police, children’s services, 
IDVA, substance use, mental health, early years health, education, and probation. 
Effectively, this would represent a MASH approach and provide daily triage, immediate 
safety planning and case allocation to the appropriate professional. This has particular 
merits in relation to cases involving complex needs, where the domestic abuse may not be 
the primary risk. 

 
 That standard risk victims are offered support both through the different helplines and websites 

available in South Wales and nationally, as well as universal services both in the voluntary and 
statutory sectors, including Victim Support.  

In a model response, effective access to domestic abuse services comprises: 

1. Multiple routes to referral because all relevant agencies ensure their frontline practitioners 
have the appropriate level of skill to recognise domestic abuse and respond appropriately. 

2. A single point of contact (e.g. a champion/helpdesk) for all domestic abuse referrals with 
clear referral procedures into triage (e.g. MASH/Domestic Abuse Referral Team) and risk-led 
referral criteria to ensure victims, and children are offered the appropriate response.  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

19 Tudalen y pecyn 86



    
 

 
 That non-police statutory agencies appoint a domestic abuse ‘champion’ responsible for 

establishing referral pathways, collating and analysing prevalence of domestic abuse in their 
agency and ensuring that any training leads to an effective ‘ask and act’ response from frontline 
practitioners as evidenced by improved access to support and outcomes for victims.  
 

 That any training for frontline practitioners is provided in conjunction with clear, unambiguous 
referral pathways into a central point of contact for triage. We do not believe that there will be 
effective engagement of non-police statutory agencies such as housing, children’s services or 
health merely through training programmes alone. 
 

 That the function of (and interaction between) the various helplines is reviewed in advance of 
the ‘Ask and Act’ legislation. Where a clear pathway to triage is implemented locally, victims 
needing intervention beyond phone support might receive a more appropriate response if their 
calls are routed through to the central point of access and triage in each region, ensuring victims 
are referred to the appropriate service using locally understood criteria for the full range of 
services available. The same may be true for any professional to professional service. 

2.2 Steps towards improved leadership and governance in South Wales 

2.2.1 Model response 

 

2.2.2 Recommendations 
We recommend that the Police and Crime Commissioner, the Minister for Housing and Regeneration and 
the Lead at the Welsh Assembly Government ensure: 

 That to avoid a ‘postcode lottery’ of service provision, a consistent standardised approach is 
implemented across South Wales, to include:  

1. Oversight and scrutiny by a suitably constituted strategic board in South Wales. 
2. Standardised needs assessments and capacity planning.  
3. Standardised outcome monitoring. 
4. Commissioning of evidence-based interventions to agreed standards of best practice. 

 

In a model response to domestic abuse, the governance, priority setting and strategic capability of 
‘participating agencies’ are aligned, and structures are in place to implement:  

1. Clear leadership at a senior level across the key funders, including shared ownership of 
common outcomes and agreed allocation of funding. 
 

2. Co-ordinated strategic needs assessment and priority setting. 
 

3. Strategic commissioning and pooled budgets with participating agencies contributing to 
budgets in the appropriate proportion. 
 

4. Evidence-led decision making and outcomes based scrutiny.  
 

5. An agreed model of service provision with standards of best practice, and governance, 
including risk-led support, multi-agency intervention, supervision and outcomes monitoring. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

20 Tudalen y pecyn 87



    
 

The impact of strengthened leadership and governance will be greater if combined with the lever of 
adequate and sustainable funding, as well as clear accountability for performance against agreed 
metrics. 

 That where achievable, the various available funding streams are pooled and that one strategic 
body (group, postholder or commissioner) is given effective responsibility for the budgets in their 
region, and is held accountable for performance against agreed metrics. We have included 
the cost of three regional co-ordinators in the cost of co-ordination for this purpose. In practice, 
we recognise that it may not be possible to agree pooled budgets, but if common outcomes are 
agreed and services are planned according to need, then some of the same benefits can be 
realised. 

 
 In the longer term, we believe that there is a case to consider whether funding for domestic and 

sexual abuse provision should be centralised at Welsh Government level and comprise pooled 
departmental budgets. This may be achievable by top slicing relevant budgets prior to 
distribution to regional or local authority level.  

2.3 Steps to effective commissioning of domestic abuse service provision in South Wales 

2.3.1 Model response 

 

We advise a phased approach to commissioning services in South Wales and this will require significant 
change of management to implement effectively. Also, we did not have the full picture of provision and 
outcomes for all services, and so would require this before making solid recommendations.  

We suggest prioritising the commissioning of domestic abuse support services for both high and medium 
risk victims in the first phase because this is where the most serious gaps in provision exist.  

In a model response to domestic abuse, effective commissioning will ensure that: 

1. The comprehensive needs assessment is used to plan the full range of services to be 
commissioned, and commissioning decisions are based on consistently collected evidence of 
needs and outcomes. 
 

2. All key funders agree the total budget to be spent, common priorities, and the apportionment 
of funding. 
 

3. There is a clear streamlined care pathway both in and out of services.  
 

4. There is sufficient service capacity, appropriately located, to meet the range of risk and 
needs of victims and children from crisis to recovery.  
 

5. All practitioners and service managers work within a robust management framework with 
clear lines of supervision and accountability and providers implement evidence-based 
interventions to agreed standards of best practice, in particular, risk-led support with multi-
agency engagement. 
 

6. Innovation is fostered through funding of pilot programmes, including funding to track 
evidence of outcomes.  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

21 Tudalen y pecyn 88



    
 

The IDVA model of community-based support works for both high and medium risk victims. In practice, 
the boundaries between high and medium risk are not perfectly defined, nor are they static, and both 
cohorts would benefit from the adoption of focused interventions that meet both risk and need, where 
the practitioners have manageable caseloads and work to agreed standards of best practice where 
outcomes are monitored and referral pathways are formalised. 

In the next section we outline the steps required to achieve this. These steps would apply equally well to 
the commissioning of other services such as refuge, complex needs, and SARCs which we recommend is 
done in later phases. 

2.3.2 Recommendations 

 
2.3.2.1 Commissioning for high and medium risk victims 

 

We recommend that the Chief Executives of the local authorities, the Health Boards and the Police and 
Crime Commissioner ensure: 

 
 That effective triage, MARAC co-ordination, and regional domestic abuse co-ordination is 

established to streamline access. The cost of providing this is another £0.6m. 
 

 That commissioning domestic abuse support services for both high and medium risk victims are 
commissioned using the community-based IDVA intervention model of support for both these 
risk groups.  
 

 That a total of 60 IDVAs and/or support workers are commissioned in South Wales, divided into 
large multi-disciplinary ‘super’ teams/regions of up to 20 frontline practitioners each. The total 
cost of providing these services is £3m. 
 

 That either three or four of these large teams are commissioned in the most logical 
configuration. For example, one team for Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf, one for 
Swansea, Bridgend and Neath Port Talbot and another for Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan.  
An alternative arrangement might align provision with the four basic command units of the South 
Wales Police. In this report, our costs and model team sizes are based on three ‘super teams’ in 
three regions. 
 

 That victims identified as being standard risk are offered support through volunteers, helplines 
and universal services.  

  

To offer effective safe support to 2,000 high risk and 2,000 medium risk victims, there needs to be 
60 frontline practitioners in total, in the following configuration: 

• 30 to 35 IDVAs for the high risk group.  
• 25 to 30 frontline practitioners for the medium risk group.  

The most effective configuration is to divide the 60 frontline practitioners into large multi-disciplinary 
teams of up to 20 each. The cost of providing this support is £3m (or £1m per team of 20). 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

22 Tudalen y pecyn 89



    
 

2.3.2.2 Agreeing the budget, priorities and apportionment 

 
We recommend that the Chief Executives of the local authorities, the Health Boards and the Police and 
Crime Commissioner ensure: 
 
 The £1.5m current funding (see table 4) for community-based risk led support for medium and 

high risk victims is aggregated and where possible made secure over a longer time frame. 
 

 Negotiations are initiated to reconfigure or augment the existing funding with a view to securing 
a further £1.5m. We would suggest that the current £2m Supporting People funding for floating 
support could be reviewed for this purpose. We make this recommendation because our data 
shows that a large proportion of victims need housing-related support, and to ensure that ad hoc 
support, which many providers are stretching their remit to offer, is to agreed service standards 
with outcome monitoring. 
 

 A further £0.3m is secured to augment the current funding of £0.3m (Table 4) for co-ordination 
and triage costing a total of £0.6m pa. 

Table 5: Analysis of current funding for community-based risk led support (high and medium risk 
victims) 

Current funding for community-based risk led support (high 
and medium risk victims) 

£(‘000) % total 

Home Office         110  7% 
Local authority         226  15% 
Ministry of Justice           54  4% 
Police and Crime Commissioner         118  8% 
Other Welsh Government grants         326  21% 
Supporting People (floating support for IDVA - high risk)         93  6% 
Total spend on IDVA services     927  60% 
Supporting People – floating support extended to others  
(mostly medium risk) 

609 40% 
 

Total     1,536  100% 
 

Table 6: Analysis of current funding for MARAC and domestic abuse co-ordination 

Current funding for MARAC and domestic abuse co-ordination £(‘000) % total 
Home Office 45 15% 
Local authority 25 9% 
Police and Crime Commissioner or police 32 11% 
Other Welsh Government grants 191 65% 
Total 292 100% 

  

Out of a total South Wales budget of £8.8m, £1.5m is currently designated for community-based 
support for high and medium risk victims and another £0.3m for co-ordination.  

This level of current funding would need to double to cover the cost of providing the recommended 
support to £3m (or £1m per region) for services, plus another £0.6m for co-ordination and triage. 

 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

23 Tudalen y pecyn 90



    
 

2.3.2.3 Streamlining the care pathway both in and out of services 
Note that identification and triage are addressed in the section on access to services. 

We further recommend: 

 That clear service level agreements with partner agencies regarding referral, triage and longer 
term universal support are established. 
 

 That priority referrals to appropriately specialised practitioners within partner agencies are 
negotiated and included in service level agreements to meet the needs of clients. 
 

 That funded secondments and/or co-located posts with a view to formalising and securing 
ongoing funding for these arrangements are negotiated (or piloted). 

For example, CAMHS or adult mental health services could provide seconded therapists or health visitors 
to domestic abuse services. Children’s services could provide seconded social workers or other posts to 
deal with triage of referrals into children’s services. Housing could provide housing officers to co-ordinate 
sanctuary schemes, and manage eligibility for housing related support.  

2.3.2.4 Configuring service provision 

 

Large multi-disciplinary teams of frontline practitioners: 

• Provide a greater depth of service, allowing different practitioners to develop particular 
specialisms, enabling a more professional and rounded response to the full range of victim 
needs. 

• Can co-locate practitioners in a greater range of settings where they can be most effective 
and identify and support victims earlier.  

• Are more resilient and give development opportunities for frontline practitioners. 
• Provide consistency of approach and high quality case management.  
• Can be more responsive to changes in risk and need. 
• Are more cost effective, in terms of administration, management and overhead costs, 

including costs of implementing outcome monitoring and quality standards. 

Specialisms within multi-disciplinary teams:  

• We know from our Insights National Dataset of over 25,000 victims, that the combination of 
large multi-disciplinary teams and more manageable caseloads enables IDVAs and other 
support workers to engage and support more victims more intensively including mobilising 
step down and recovery, and thus enhancing the safety and recovery of many more victims. 

• Where specialisms within multi-disciplinary teams exist elsewhere in the country, we see a 
marked increase in engagement from partner agencies, both in terms of identifying new 
victims and providing integrated care pathways; a significant improvement on mere 
signposting. 

Collaboration with the statutory agencies upon which much of the ‘cost of failure’ lands is often 
inconsistent and we believe these agencies should provide both funding and those elements of the 
care pathway that they are generally responsible for in universal services. 

Opportunities exist to embed knowledge and experience of domestic abuse within the statutory 
services where it is most needed. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

24 Tudalen y pecyn 91



    
 

We further recommend: 

 That services for both high and medium risk victims are commissioned in units of up to 20 IDVAs 
and/or other support workers, potentially divided into smaller operational teams, but managed 
and supervised under one structure. For example, three or four such units could be established 
in South Wales.  
 

 That in a unit of, say, 20 IDVAs and medium risk support workers, a multi-disciplinary team is 
established with each IDVA specialising in a particular area, such as criminal justice system, 
family courts, substance use, mental health, recovery support, young people, safeguarding, 
sexual violence, perpetrator risk management, housing, LGBT, B&ME, and male victims. We are 
calling these experts ‘lead IDVAs’. 
 

 That the various lead IDVAs within the large teams are responsible for both advising their 
colleagues and co-ordinating an effective response to their particular specialism. This means 
building effective links with partner organisations which might include co-location, secondments, 
working with partners to provide in-house support or priority referrals. 
 

 That some of the IDVAs and medium risk support workers are located in a range of settings 
including police stations, community centres, A&E or maternity departments, or substance use or 
mental health teams, or children’s centres for example.  
 

 That a children’s service is provided reflecting the full range of adverse experiences that children 
live with, encompassing not only domestic abuse but also parental substance use and mental ill 
health. It is likely that additional dedicated funding would be needed for this element. 

2.3.2.5 Other service requirements specific to these community-based services 

We further recommend: 

 That all service providers implement an agreed model of provision to agreed best practice 
standards. 
 

 That service providers collect referrals, profile of service users, and outcomes data on the same 
basis to enable comparison across services. Data to include monitoring of unmet need, that is 
referrals ‘lost or not engaged’. 
 

 That the IDVAs within these teams liaise closely with victims in need of temporary emergency 
safe accommodation, that is those most at risk of harm or in need of a safe place as a last 
resort, to provide support if they are re-settled in the community.  
 

 That sanctuary schemes are integrated with other protective measures such as those mobilised 
from within the IDVA service.  

All practitioners and service managers should work within a robust management framework with 
clear lines of supervision and accountability and providers implement evidence-based interventions to 
agreed standards of best practice. 

 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

25 Tudalen y pecyn 92



    
 

2.3.2.6 Service innovation 
We further recommend: 

 That a grant programme is set up for ‘innovation and evidence-led service development’. A grant 
programme must clearly outline the priorities for development and include requirements and 
funding for evaluation and clear criteria for awarding sustainable funding beyond any pilot 
phase.  
 
For example, we recommend establishing a programme of supervised secondments and training 
posts from universal services to embed knowledge and experience of domestic abuse within the 
statutory services where it is most needed, to reinforce links with universal services and to 
ensure that all victims and children are offered a wide range of routes to safety and recovery. 

2.3.2.7 Suggested commissioning approach 
The precise configuration and the commissioning arrangements for each region was not within scope of 
the review but we would make the following suggestions: 

 That the large multi-disciplinary teams in each region are commissioned using a lead provider 
approach, allowing some flexibility in the delivery of services. This gives the widest range of 
options for commissioners to choose from – ie, either a consortium of smaller local providers, 
and/or a larger single provider, without compromising the principle of consistency, quality and 
depth. 
 

 That where consortia are commissioned, for example to provide specialisms such as B&ME or 
male victims, that all frontline practitioners work to agreed standards of best practice, within the 
same large multi-disciplinary team and management framework with the same clear lines of 
supervision and accountability. 
 

 That careful consideration is given to the Vale of Glamorgan, to ensure that it is not subsumed 
within the Cardiff provision. 
 

 That any re-commissioning arrangements must be compliant with the Public Services (Social 
Value) Act 2012, the Equality Act 2010, and the EU directive establishing minimum standards on 
the rights, support and protection of victims of crime. 
 

 That future commissioning and implementation is  achieved in phases for:  
o Services for children. 
o Residential services (emergency accommodation, complex needs residential).  
o Sexual violence services.  

2.4 Cost of a model community-based adult service  

This section sets out a possible approach to service provision for further discussion. We have based it on 
the assumption that services could be in each of three broadly similar regions, although we appreciate 
that this may require further refinement. Each of the three regions is broadly similar in terms of number 
of visible victims with potential to engage with services. That is around 700 high risk and 700 medium 
risk victims. 
 
  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

26 Tudalen y pecyn 93



    
 

One service 
The staff requirements for a risk-led intervention for both high and medium risk victims for one region 
are: 

• 2 full-time equivalent staff in management and supervisory roles; 
• 10-12 IDVAs with a caseload per frontline professional of 60-65 for high risk victims; 
• A further 8-10 IDVAs or support workers with a caseload per frontline professional of 85 for 

medium risk victims; and 
• 3 full-time equivalent administration staff. 

 
The cost of providing 60 frontline practitioners with up to 20 practitioners, in three regions, including 
administration, management, and outcome data monitoring, is £3m (£1m in each of the three regions). 

 
Co-ordination 
The staff requirements for effective triage, MARAC co-ordination, and regional domestic abuse co-
ordinators are: 

• 6 full-time equivalent triage workers, 2 for each region; 
• 6.5 MARAC co-ordinators, ~2 for each region; and 
• 3 regional domestic abuse co-ordinators, 1 in each region. 

 

The cost of providing cost of providing effective triage, MARAC co-ordination, and regional domestic 
abuse co-ordinators is £0.6m (£0.2m per region). 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

27 Tudalen y pecyn 94



    
 

 

 

  

Estimated cost of community-based domestic abuse services in South Wales

Estimated number of victims (high risk) to support 700             
Similar number of 'engageable' medium risk victims 700             
Estimated number IDVAs/support workers (for high and medium risk) 20               
NI and pension on cost rate 15%

Service in one region

Staff costs services: Salaries FTE
IDVA / support workers 25,000        1.0 28,750        575,000            
Administration 18,000        3.0 20,700        62,100              
Management of domestic abuse services 35,000        3.0 40,250        120,750            
Cost of domestic abuse service (region) 757,850            

Other costs
MARAC 2,500          2.0 5,000          5,000                
Service accreditation 3,800          1.0 3,800          1,267                
Data monitoring 9,500          2.0 19,000        19,000              
% Admin / overhead / contingency 30% 234,935            
Total cost of IDVA  provision 1,018,052         

Cost per FLP 50,903£            
Cost per engaged service user (including governance) 727£                 

Cost of all three regional services 3,054,155      

Domestic abuse co-ordination (three regions)
Triage /MASH/ DART /helpline 20,000        6.0 138,000      138,000            
MARAC co-ordinators 25,000        6.5 186,875      186,875            
Domestic abuse/ sexual violence regional co-ordinator 40,000        3.0 138,000      138,000            
% Admin / overhead / contingency 30% 138,863            
Cost of co-ordination and governance (three regions) 601,738            

Total cost of medium and high risk service provision for all South Wales, including co-ordination 3,655,893      

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

28 Tudalen y pecyn 95



    
 

2.5 Other provision to be addressed in later phases 

2.5.1 Refuge 
We believe there is a case for the partial reconfiguration of the use of refuge in line with the Task and 
Finish Groups Report (informing the Welsh Government’s White Paper), whereby some existing refuge 
provision is designated for ‘Intake and Assessment’, as in the intake and assessment refuges in Rhondda 
Cynon Taf and Cardiff. Currently about one quarter of the 131 refuge bed spaces in South Wales are 
designated for this purpose. Our preliminary analysis indicates that this figure should double to half of all 
bed spaces. The support to victims within these refuges should be closely co-ordinated with the IDVA 
service, utilising their multi-disciplinary team to address the victims’ needs and ensure a safe transfer 
back to the community. There should be clear procedures and protocols for moving on or into more 
intensely supported schemes.  
For refuge, we recommend no immediate changes to capacity or configuration as a deeper 
understanding of the number, risk profiles and needs of potential refuge users is required before 
recommending a specific amount of capacity and related support provision.  

2.5.2 Additional vulnerabilities and complexities 
For victims with multiple additional complexities or vulnerabilities where domestic abuse is an identified 
issue but not the only one (e.g. where there are significant drug, alcohol, mental health or other 
vulnerabilities), we recommend no immediate changes to capacity or configuration as a deeper 
understanding of the prevalence, number, risk profiles and needs both within refuge and in the 
community. We also need to confirm appropriate caseloads before recommending a specific amount of 
capacity and related support provision. An in-depth review of the caseloads and processes in order to 
provide a recommended capacity and configuration of services for complex needs was outside the scope 
of this review.  

2.5.3 Services for children 
We make no specific recommendation for South Wales for provision for children affected by domestic 
abuse or sexual violence. A deeper understanding of the age, risk, and needs profiles of the children of 
service users is required to better understand the capacity required for support. An in-depth review 
would be required to evaluate the relative effectiveness of the various interventions, and whether they 
are best provided in house or in collaboration with universal or other statutory services. We refer to our 
recently published document “In plain sight: Effective help for children exposed to domestic abuse”, 
where we have made three recommendations regarding provision for children as follows: 

1. To achieve early intervention at little or no cost, create a network of lead professionals across 
agencies with a shared understanding of risk. 

2. To ensure children’s safety, provide linked specialist domestic abuse services for the child and 
the parents. 

3. To ensure children are protected and helped, LSCBs and CSSIW should monitor provision and 
outcomes for children exposed to domestic abuse. 

2.5.4 Sexual violence services  
Due to insufficient information being available within the time frame of the review, the review team were 
unable to come to a view on provision of sexual violence services. A deeper understanding of the 
prevalence, number, risk profiles and needs of victims, and the processes and appropriate caseloads is 
required before recommending a specific amount of capacity and related support provision in a particular 
configuration. 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

29 Tudalen y pecyn 96



    
 

Appendices 

This section includes the following appendices which are presented as separate documents.  

1. An analysis of accommodation-based support. 
2. South Wales review of domestic abuse and sexual violence service provision 2014: sources of 

funding for all provision. 
3. South Wales review of domestic abuse and sexual violence service provision 2014: funding for 

dedicated high and medium risk community provision including co-ordination. 
4. Victim consultation summary for South Wales.   

 

 

 

  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

30 Tudalen y pecyn 97



 
 

Appendix: Accommodation-based support 

1. Supporting People 

The Welsh Government has preserved funding to the domestic abuse sector through the Welsh 
Government Supporting People programme which has housing and preventing homelessness at 
its core.  

Supporting People funding is linked to ‘units’ of refuge bed spaces, or ‘units’ of floating support 
attached to self-contained flats or other tenancies in the community. These units of support 
remain available to victims until their planned exit whether or not they are still needed, for 
example: 

• A victim in refuge may be waiting for move on accommodation; or  
• A victim in receipt of floating support may have moved into a self-contained unit and 

only need minimal input such as a weekly phone call. 

Service providers do stretch their remit, but they are not funded to take on additional cases 
beyond the paid for units. The things that were said to us the most often were:  

‘We have a policy of not turning people away, even though we are not funded for this work.’   
‘We can offer this service because of our volunteers.’ 

For many, particularly high risk, victims the primary need is not housing but safety and the 
majority would prefer to be made safe whilst staying in their own homes. This tends to render 
them, if not ineligible, in a long queue for services funded by Supporting People.  

Evidence-based innovation in the domestic abuse sector has focused on keeping victims safe in 
their own homes. 43% of high risk and 30% of medium risk domestic abuse victims require 
support with housing needs, or have potential threats to their tenancies because of the abuse 
and the Supporting People resource might usefully be focused on these victims’ choices to 
remain in their own home. 

Some local authority Supporting People commissioners have supported this innovation and in our 
analyses we refer to this dedicated resource as floating support extended to others. This is 
where the support element has been ‘decoupled’ from the units of accommodation or floating 
support, and provided to a wider cohort of victims. Some examples include Cardiff (£211,000), 
the Vale of Glamorgan (£67,900), and Swansea (£34,000). 

These are welcome developments, which fit within the new Supporting People programme 
guidance and with the Welsh Government’s aim: ‘to focus existing resources on services that are 
more able to support victim choice. This choice is often to be kept safe in their own homes with 
the perpetrator having to leave not the victim and their children’1. They are in line with the 
proposals in the Welsh Government’s first Housing Bill to ‘include greater emphasis on action to 
prevent homelessness by ensuring that people are given assistance earlier to help them find a 
solution’2.  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

  1 Tudalen y pecyn 98



 
 

2. Floating support  

Floating support, sometimes with a self-contained unit of accommodation, is provided in the 
community to victims with accommodation-based needs, meeting other eligibility criteria.  

710 victims were supported with units of floating support in South Wales. Support was provided 
to these victims by 57 frontline practitioners, costing £2.0m. 

In practice most providers offer ad hoc, time limited support by phone or if they drop in, to a 
wider cohort of victims than reported above. Victims receiving this ad hoc support are unlikely to 
be offered the full range of multi-agency responses on a risk-led basis, their cases are seldom 
tracked and there is no evidence of outcomes for these victims.  

Floating support caseloads tend to be very low:  

• Eligibility criteria for floating support would suggest that most of these victims have multiple 
complex needs, but we could not verify this. Some data was provided by Supporting People 
in Cardiff which indicated that 9% of victims receiving floating support had complex needs 
and a further 70% had serious needs. 

• Floating support provides an intense needs-led intervention ending when agreed goals are 
achieved. This together with the provision of more ‘step down’ care and recovery 
programmes extends the duration of interventions. 

• It was suggested by a number of providers, that the markedly lower caseloads evolved as a 
result of the historical Supporting People tariff system which funded very low staff to service 
user ratios between 1:8 and 1:10. This has shaped a labour intensive approach to service 
provision and these ratios persist today. We did find anecdotal evidence of intensive and 
protracted support provided to victims who made it into the system by virtue of their 
accommodation related needs which is not provided to others who are at high risk of harm. 
For example, accompanying service users on visits to move on accommodation or other 
community services. 

 
It was beyond the scope of our review to audit the access criteria and processes of the various 
service providers so we are unable to confirm these observations.  

One of our key recommendations is to formally commission community-based risk led support 
for medium and high risk victims, in multi-skilled teams with the specialisms necessary to 
address additional vulnerabilities.  

We would suggest that the current £2m Supporting People funding for floating support could be 
reviewed for this purpose. We make this recommendation because our data show that a large 
proportion of victims need housing related support to help prevent homelessness, but also to 
ensure that ad hoc support is provided to agreed service standards with outcome monitoring.  

3. Refuge 
There is a distinction between victims needing emergency refuge accommodation and those who 
remain in refuge for longer because of multiple additional vulnerabilities (complex needs), many 
of whom are neither in crisis nor at the highest risk.  

740 victims were accommodated within 129 units (bed spaces) of refuge provision across the 
area. Support to these victims was provided by 40 frontline practitioners. The cost of this 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

  2 Tudalen y pecyn 99



 
 

support is £2.1m, and a further £1.7m is paid by housing benefit in rent for building and services 
costs (see Table 4 in the main report and Table A in this appendix). 

Data on risk for refuge victims is not consistently available in South Wales but our national 
Insights dataset on refuge provision3, indicates that around half (53%) of refuge provision is for 
genuine emergency accommodation. Only 35% meet the MARAC threshold. In South Wales, 
53% of the 740 victims accommodated within refuge equates to around 400 victims4.  
 
Data provided to us by Supporting People in Cardiff indicated that 30% of victims in refuge had 
complex needs and a further 30% had serious needs which may include safety needs.  
 
The Welsh Government White Paper Task and Finish Group Recommendations paper states that:  

‘Refuge must be used as intended, as temporary, emergency, safe accommodation (for those 
most at risk of harm or in need of a safe place), for short periods and as the last resort, with 
more resources over time being directed to keeping victims safe in their own homes’5.  

In South Wales, only about a quarter of available bed spaces (30 units out of a total of 131) of 
refuge are allocated for Intake and Assessment, specifically for ‘temporary, emergency, safe 
accommodation, for those most at risk of harm or in need of a safe place, for short periods and 
as the last resort’. Caseloads for these units are higher than average. For example RCTWA, CWA, 
and Atal Y Fro all provide refuge on this basis, with caseloads above 30.  
 
We did not review the processes and outcomes for accommodation-based services, and our data 
is an estimate only, therefore we recommend no immediate changes to overall capacity or 
configuration as a deeper understanding of the number, risk profiles and needs of victims 
supported is required.  

We do however believe there is a case for the partial reconfiguration of the use of refuge in line 
with the Welsh Government White Paper Task and Finish review, whereby some existing refuge 
provision is designated for Intake and Assessment. Our preliminary analysis indicates that this 
figure should double to half of all bed spaces. The support to victims within these refuges should 
be closely co-ordinated with the IDVA service, utilising the multi-disciplinary teams with the 
specialisms necessary to address the victim’s needs and ensuring a safe transfer back to the 
community. There should be clear procedures and protocols for moving on or into more intensely 
supported schemes.  

 
4. Refuge funding by local authority area 

Funding for refuge is provided from two sources for different purposes: 
 
Housing benefit which pays for ‘rent’ includes building related expenses such as utilities, 
maintenance, service charges, security etc. In some cases, the amount negotiated with the local 
authority includes the cost of reception or warden staff salaries, which means that there is no 
standard rate per unit or bed. The average rent per unit per week is £260 but it ranges from 
£117 in Swansea to £351 in Bridgend.  
 
Supporting People funding pays for the support given to accommodate victims. This too is a non-
standard negotiated rate per unit; the average support cost per unit per week is £330 but it 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

  3 Tudalen y pecyn 100



 
 

ranges from £229 in Bridgend to £529 in Merthyr Tydfil, where the support is 24 hour. 
 

Table A: Refuge providers in South Wales 

Refuge 
providers6  
South Wales 

Accomo-
dated 
victims 

Units 
of 
refuge 

Of 
which 
I&A 
units 

SP 
funding 
(£’000) 

SP per 
unit / 
week£ 

Rent & 
service  
income 
£(‘000) 

Rent 
per 
unit / 
week 
£ 

Bridgend Women’s 
Aid 

                    
68  

                      
8  

                     
-    

           
95  

                 
229  

         
146  

                 
351  

BAWSO (Cardiff)                     
37  

                    
14  

                     
-    

         
226  

                 
311  

         
186  

                 
256  

Cardiff Women's 
Aid 

                 
107  

                    
23  

                      
7  

         
290  

                 
243  

         
323  

                 
270  

Llamau (Merthyr 
Tydfil) 

                    
24  

                      
5  

                      
7  

         
137  

                 
529  

                     
na    

                     
na    

Calan DVS (NPT)                     
84  

                    
13  

                     
-    

         
243  

                 
360  

         
226  

                 
334  

PT&AWA                     
65  

                    
11  

                      
1  

         
145  

                 
254  

         
148  

                 
259  

RCT Women's Aid                  
184  

                    
24  

                      
9  

         
443  

                 
355  

         
385  

                 
308  

BAWSO (Swansea)                     
49  

                    
10  

                     
-    

         
186  

                 
357  

           
66  

                 
126  

Swansea Women's 
Aid 

                    
84  

                    
16  

                      
1  

         
288  

                 
346  

           
98  

                 
117  

Atal Y Fro (Vale of 
Glamorgan) 

                    
39  

                      
5  

                      
5  

           
90  

                 
348  

           
80  

                 
308  

Total (weighted 
average) 

                 
741  

                 
129  30 

     
2,145  

                 
(320)  

     
1,658  

                 
(257)  

 

The mechanism, by which housing benefit is paid to refuge providers to discourage voids, has 
the unintended consequence of providers not being able to retain vacancies in case of 
emergencies. In Swansea, Supporting People has underwritten the potential for void related 
claw-backs of housing benefit, in order for Swansea Women’s Aid to keep one unit for 
emergencies. This is important, since it reflects a recognition that there is a danger that some 
women in an emergency might be unable to access a refuge bed because the funding structure 
limits the flexibility of capacity by not allowing refuge providers to have any voids in their 
properties. 

5. Victims with additional vulnerabilities 

Many victims have additional vulnerabilities (complex needs). These include cases where victims 
are presenting with the so called ‘toxic trio’ of domestic or sexual abuse, mental ill health and/or 
substance use, or those at risk for other reasons such as trafficking, young people leaving care, 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

  4 Tudalen y pecyn 101



 
 

or victims very isolated by culture. These victims often present with accommodation-related 
needs through self-referral or other agencies. Some will be supported in refuge, and others will 
receive floating support attached to ‘units’ of accommodation in the community. 

Data on the profiles by level of risk or complexity of needs7 and outcomes for these individuals 
are not consistently available, and the multiplicity of needs and fragmented range of services 
add a layer of complexity.  

We estimate that around 10% of victims have multiple complex needs. This is equivalent to 
about 200 victims in the high risk group, and another 200 in the medium risk group who will 
need more intensive support. 

The Supporting People Programme Guidance requires a ‘statement of criteria for admission to 
each Supporting People service and a process of assessing and prioritising potential service users 
against these criteria8’. In some areas (Merthyr Tydfil and RCT) Supporting People have a single 
point of contact (SPOC) for all accommodation-based services, and eligibility criteria apply when 
accessing this support. In other areas, this support is provided by refuge as an extension to an 
open access service.  

Support to these individuals is provided by:  

• Generic complex needs providers supporting individuals where domestic abuse is often a 
feature (e.g Llamau, Cross Borders). In South Wales, 13 frontline practitioners support 
90 individuals with multiple complex needs costing £0.5m. 

• Specialist domestic abuse providers supporting victims of domestic abuse who present 
with complex needs (e.g. Hafan Cymru, Gwalia, Women’s Aid, BAWSO or other domestic 
abuse providers).  

Some providers with funding for generic services have expertise in domestic abuse (Hafan), 
others have specialisms in engagement with young people (Llamau), and BAWSO has specialist 
experience in engaging with B&ME victims.  

Complex needs provision is very expensive because the average duration of intervention is much 
longer, practitioners hold very low caseloads, and support is very often available 24 hours per 
day. The average of 7 -10 cases per support worker per year compares to the average caseload 
of social workers in England and Wales of between 25 to 30 per year. 

An in-depth review of the eligibility criteria, victim profiles, caseloads and processes in order to 
provide a recommended capacity and configuration of services for complex needs was outside 
the scope of this review.  

We would suggest that the fragmentation of service provision across multiple providers inhibits 
development of multi-skilled teams with the specialisms necessary to address additional 
vulnerabilities. For some services these victims are excluded from accessing support, for example 
where significant drug, alcohol, or mental health issues are present. 

 

1 Welsh Government. (2012) “White Paper. Consultation on legislation to end violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence (Wales).” Welsh Government. P.24  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

  5 

                                            

Tudalen y pecyn 102



 
 

2 Welsh Government. (2012) “White Paper. Consultation on legislation to end violence against women, 
domestic abuse and sexual violence (Wales).” Welsh Government. P.24 
3 Insights data collected from August 2010 to March 2014 on 823 cases within refuge showed that 35% of 
cases were high risk meeting the MARAC threshold, another 18% were high risk, 37% medium risk, and 10% 
were standard risk victims. 
4 CSEW data on victims of domestic abuse of any risk level who sought refuge on their first night after 
leaving shared accommodation, when applied to the South Wales estimates indicates a similar figure of 
around 400 victims. 
5 Welsh Government (2012). “The Welsh Government’s proposed ‘Ending Violence Against Women and 
Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill’: Recommendations from the Task and Finish Group”. Welsh Government. P.57 
6 Some data were provided to CAADA during meetings or in templates by providers and others from funding 
organisations. In some cases the rent has been estimated or calculated using annual accounts for the year to 
March 2013, or other data sources.  
7 BDO analysis year to 03/2013 showed that in Cardiff almost a fifth of service users had “complex needs”, 
and around half had “serious needs”, but there was no analysis of risk level at the point of intake. 
8 Welsh Government (2013) “Supporting People Programme Grant (SPPG) Guidance – Wales”. P.24 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

  6 

                                                                                                                                        

Tudalen y pecyn 103



 

 
Review of services for domestic abuse and sexual violence in South Wales 2014: sources of funding for all provision 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 
 

247,000 
 
IDVA 

 
WSU IDVA service including overhead 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG FF 

 
WG Families first 

 
20,000 

 
CYP 

 
WSU specialist children's IDVA 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2017 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 
 

65,000 
 
MALE 

 
WSU Dyn helpline 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
PCC1 

 

PCC1 
 

20,000 
 
IDVA 

 
WSU Male IDVA  Dyn 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 
 

147,000 
 
Special 

 
Streetlife project (sex workers) 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 
 

27,500 
 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator  (managed by CWA) 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 
 

10,000 
 
IDVA 

 
CWA IDVA post 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
290,311 

 
Refuge 

 
CWA refuge 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
23,600 

 
IDVA 

CWA  Intake & Assessment (IDVA /key worker posts) 

(70,799 x 2/6) 
 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
47,199 

 
FS ext 

CWA  Intake & Assessment (IDVA /key worker posts) 

(70,799 x 4/6) 
 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
69,822 

 
IDVA 

CWA Tenancy Support (IDVA/ key worker posts) 

(209,467 x 2/6) 
 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
139,645 

 
FS ext 

CWA Tenancy Support (IDVA/ key worker posts) 

(209,467 x 4/6) 
 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
226,331 

 
Refuge 

 
BAWSO refuge 

 
BAWSO 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
328,969 

 
FS 

 
BAWSO FS 

 
BAWSO 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
211,012 

 
FS 

 
BAWSO (Tenancy support) 

 
BAWSO 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
211,012 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Hafan Cymru (Tenancy support) 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 

1Police and Crime Commissioner 

Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 

T
udalen y pecyn 104



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 2 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
295,054 

FS other 

vulnerable 
 
Llamau (16-25) women 

 
Llamau 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
HO 

 
Home Office 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
40,000 

 
IDVA 

 
CWA IDVA  x 2 posts 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
47,686 

 
IDVA 

 
BME IDVA x 1.5 

 
BAWSO 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
15,000 

 
special 

 
IOM analyst 

 
SW police 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
LA 

 
CCC - CS 

 
63,236 

 
CYP 

 
Children's key workers for Safe As project 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
unknown 

 
WG FF 

 
WG Children 

 
5,800 

 
CYP 

CYP  £29,000 for all BAWSO - 20% allocated to 

Cardiff refuge 
 
BAWSO 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
117,150 

 
Core 

 
Core funding BAWSO (55% allocated to Cardiff) 

 
BAWSO 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
Police 

 
SW Police 

 
50,000 

 
SARC 

 
SARC core funding 

 
Yns Saff 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
WG 

WG Regional 

development 
 

140,000 
 
SARC 

 
SARC core funding 

 
Yns Saff 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HB 

Aneurin Bevan Health 

Board 
 

35,000 
 
SARC 

 
SARC core funding 

 
Yns Saff 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
HB 

Cardiff and Vale Health 

board 
 

11,000 
 
SARC 

 
SARC funded  shortfall (last yr 140,000) 

 
Yns Saff 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
HO 

 
Home Office 

 
20,000 

 
SARC 

 
SARC ISVA post 

 
Yns Saff 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG Health 

 
WG Dept of Health 

 
43,000 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Variable -  last yr £24,000 

 
Yns Saff 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
Police 

 
Gwent Police 

 
15,000 

 
SARC 

 
SARC - for child forensics 

 
Yns Saff 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
50,000 

 
special 

 
Health Liaison post seconded to PCC1 

 
SW police 

 
Cardiff 

 
Unknown 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
67,893 

 
FS ext 

 
Atal Y Fro FS 14 units 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP - refuge 

 
90,415 

 
Refuge 

 
Atal Y Fro Refuge 5 units 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2014 

 

1Police and Crime Commissioner 

T
udalen y pecyn 105



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 3 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
MOJ 

 
Witness & victim fund 

 
42,483 

 
IDVA 

 
High & Med Risk court advocate 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Sep, 2014 

 
LA 

Voluntary action 

scheme 
 

23,000 
 
SW IDAP 

 
IDAP Womens Safety worker 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2016 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
GMT 

 
Tudor Trust 

 
60,000 

 
Special 

 
EPIC programme 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
GMT 

 
Lloyds Foundation 

 
15,000 

 
Special 

 
EPIC programme -IDAP 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
MOJ 

 
Probation 

 
25,000 

 
Special 

 
EPIC programme -IDAP 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
DA service grant 

 
49,132 

 
Special 

 
EPIC programme 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG FF 

WG via WA Children 

matter 
 

3,263 
 
CYP 

 
Star programme 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

 
Safer Vale 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
LA 

 
RCTBC 

 
195,992 

 
IDVA 

Oasis centre Pontypridd Safety Unit (mainstream 

funding) 
 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Ongoing 

 
LA 

 
RCTBC 

 
24,900 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Ongoing 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
20,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
25,000 

 
Special 

 
Oasis centre funding 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
15,000 

 
Sanctuary 

 
Target hardening 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
149,132 

 
FS ext 

 
Gwalia Oasis (drop in and medium risk) 

 
Gwalia 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

1Police and Crime Commissioner 

T
udalen y pecyn 106



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 4 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
263,143 

 
FS 

 
FS 25 units 

 
RCT WA 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
443,411 

 
Refuge 

 
Refuge 24 units 

 
RCT WA 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
GMT 

Big lottery (People & 

Places) 
 

32,000 
 
CYP 

 
SAFE project (1 FTE for 3 years) 

 
RCT WA 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG FF 

Fraimwaith Childrens 

services 
 

24,040 
 
CYP 

 
SLA CYP worker (2 posts 18 hours) 

 
RCT WA 

 
RCT 

 
Ongoing 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
215,362 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Generic vulnerable families FS 19 units 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
113,349 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Generic vulnerable families SC housing 10 units 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
88,723 

 
FS 

 
BAWSO FS Merthyr 

 
BAWSO 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG FF 

 
WG Children 

 
11,600 

 
CYP 

 
BAWSO CYP in  Merthyr refuge 40% of £29,000 

 
BAWSO 

 
Merthyr 

 
ongoing 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
10,650 

 
Core 

 
Core funding BAWSO (5% allocated to Merthyr) 

 
BAWSO 

 
Merthyr 

 
ongoing 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
137,476 

 
Refuge 

 
Llamau refuge (24 hours) 

 
Llamau 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
55,000 

 
IDVA MR 

 
2 DA support workers / contribution to IDVA post 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
MOJ 

 
MOJ: victims fund 

 
11,296 

 
IDVA 

 
SDVC IDVA 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Sep, 2014 

 
GMT 

 
Children in Need 

 
27,395 

 
CYP 

 
Childrens programme 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Aug, 2015 

 
WG FF 

 
WG Families First 

 
20,000 

 
CYP 

 
Childrens programme 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
LA 

MTCBC SLA 42,127 

(CEO + DART SM) 
 

41,000 
 
Special 

 
Teulu centre manager 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 
 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
WG SARC Rent Merthyr 

 
24,000 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Merthyr rent) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

Until end of the 

lease 

T
udalen y pecyn 107



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 5 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
WG 

 
WG SARC (190k) est 

 
12,167 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Merthyr - WAG core) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG SARC (190k) est 

 
12,167 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Swansea - WAG core 

 
New Pathways 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
Police 

SW Police SARC (100K) 

est 
 

50,000 
 
SARC 

 
SARC (Merthyr allocation core) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
Police 

SW Police SARC (100K) 

est 
 

50,000 
 
SARC 

 
SARC  (Swansea allocation core) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO SARC (80K) est 

 
20,000 

 
SARC 

 
ISVA(Merthyr allocation) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO SARC (80K) est 

 
20,000 

 
SARC 

 
ISVA (Swansea allocation) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
MOJ 

 
MOJ SARC (60K) est 

 
17,500 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Merthyr MOJ core) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2016 

 
MOJ 

 
MOJ SARC (60K) est 

 
17,500 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Swansea MOJ core) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2016 

 
HB 

 
Cwm Taf Health Board 

 
20,237 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Merthyr counselling) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HB 

 
ABMU  Health Boards 

 
6,914 

 
SARC 

 
SARC (Swansea counselling) 

 
New Pathways 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2016 

 
LA 

MTCBC (SARC) EED 

trainer 
 

6,908 
 
SARC 

 
SARC EED trainer 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Jan, 2015 

 
GMT 

 
BBC Children in Need 

 
11,317 

 
SARC 

 
CYP  Merthyr allocation 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2016 

 
GMT 

 
BBC Children in Need 

 
11,317 

 
SARC 

 
CYP  Swansea allocation 

 
New Pathways 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2016 

 
GMT 

 
Big Lottery 

 
25,754 

 
SARC 

 
CYP Merthyr allocation 

 
New Pathways 

 
Merthyr 

 
Oct, 2014 

 
GMT 

 
Big Lottery 

 
25,754 

 
SARC 

 
CYP  Swansea allocation 

 
New Pathways 

 
Swansea 

 
Oct, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG - CLG (VAWG team) 

 
25,700 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

 
SW police 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2015 

1Police and Crime Commissioner 

T
udalen y pecyn 108



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 6 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
Police 

 
Police BCU 

 
16,752 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator (shared with VOG) 

 
SW police 

 
Bridgend 

 
ongoing 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
55,582 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Hafan Fs for 5 units accom 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar-14 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
78,739 

FS other 

vulnerable 
 
Cross border - complex needs (1/3 share) 

Cross Border 

Wallich 
 
Bridgend 

 
Mar-14 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
80,000 

 
FS 

 
Bridgend FS 20 units (split unknown) 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar-14 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
95,158 

 
Refuge 

 
Bridgend refuge 8 units (split unknown) 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar-14 

 
WG FF 

Cymorth (now Families 

First fund) 
 

31,259 
 
CYP 

 
CYP scheme 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar-14 

 
LA 

 
Bridgend CBC - LSA 

 
89,040 

 
CYP 

 
Refuge service for children (LSA) 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar-14 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
219,373 

 
Refuge 

 
Swansea Refuges x 2 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Ongoing (SLA) 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
68,358 

 
Refuge 

 
Swansea Safe houses x 3 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Ongoing (SLA) 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
34,856 

 
FS ext 

 
DAISE project 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Ongoing (SLA) 

 
WG 

 
Swansea Change Fund 

 
25,000 

 
CYP 

 
CYP Scheme 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Apr, 2014 

 
LA 

SCC adult social 

services 
 

15,000 
 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
LA 

SCC adult social 

services 
 

15,000 
 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO - CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO - CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
5,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
5,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
Swansea Change Fund 

 
4,500 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA administration 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
Swansea Change Fund 

 
4,500 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA administration 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

T
udalen y pecyn 109



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 7 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator (4/5) 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
GMT 

 
Big lottery 

 
32,459 

 
special 

 
Your opinion matters (CYP scheme) 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
unknown 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
77,310 

 
FS 

 
BAWSO FS 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
185,804 

 
Refuge 

 
BAWSO Refuge & safehouse 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP TH 

 
6,000 

 
Sanctuary 

 
Target Hardening 

 
SP 

 
Swansea 

 
unknown 

 
SP 

 
SP TH 

 
50,177 

 
Sanctuary 

 
Target hardening (Alarms scheme) 

 
SP 

 
Swansea 

 
unknown 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
78,739 

FS other 

vulnerable 
 
Cross border - complex needs (1/3 share) 

Cross Border 

Wallich 
 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
55,433 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Hafan FS SC housing 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
232,233 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Hafan FS SC housing 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
42,600 

 
Core 

 
Core funding BAWSO (20% allocated to Swansea) 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
ongoing 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator (4/5) (employed by LA) 

 
SCC 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
LA 

Swansea CC 

mainstream 
 

27,100 
 
CYP 

 
RAY  CYP post  (SCC CYP information Service) 

 
Info-Nation 

 
Swansea 

 
unknown 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator (4/5) 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator (3/5) 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
20,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
145,450 

 
Refuge 

 
PT&AWA Refuge 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
43,165 

 
FS ext 

 
PT&AWA FS (plus ad hoc) 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG FF 

 
Families First 

 
45,060 

 
CYP 

 
CYP project 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

T
udalen y pecyn 110



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 8 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
GMT 

 
Lloyds TSB 

 
7,400 

 
special 

 
Volunteer coordination 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Oct, 2014 

 
GMT 

Coalfields Regeneration 

fund 
 

8,500 
 
special 

 
Outreach in the Afan Valley 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Jul, 2014 

 
WG 

Collaborative 

communities 
 

14,500 
 
special 

 
Social enterprise 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Feb, 2014 

 
GMT 

 
Comic relief 

 
8,500 

 
male 

 
Boys and young men - Violence in the home 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
May, 2014 

 
GMT 

 
Big lottery 

 
83,492 

 
CYP 

 
Preventative work (schools and young men/couples) 

 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2017 

 
GMT 

 
Children in need 

 
29,985 

 
CYP 

Champions, male role models, children affected by 

DA 
 
PT&AWA 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
155,199 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Hafan SC housing FS units 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
11,100 

 
FS - Hafan 

 
Hafan  FS units 

 
Hafan Cymru 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP refuge 

 
243,317 

 
Refuge 

 
Calan DVS Refuge units 

 
Calan 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
127,385 

 
FS ext 

 
Calan DVS FS units (plus crisis) 

 
Calan 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG FF 

 
Families First 

 
62,084 

 
CYP 

 
CYP project 

 
Calan 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
Other 

 
OSS 

 
24,000 

 
special 

 
OSS occupancy rent income 

 
Calan 

 
NPT 

 
ongoing 

 
GMT 

 
Engagement gateway 

 
6,249 

 
CYP 

 
Vulnerable women over 16. 

 
Calan 

 
NPT 

 
Jun, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
78,739 

FS other 

vulnerable 
 
Cross border - complex needs (1/3 share) 

Cross Border 

Wallich 
 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

   

8,762,812 
     

        

        

        

        

T
udalen y pecyn 111



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 9 
 

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
Additional Unallocated funding 

      

 

LA 
 

Housing benefit 
 

1,722,017 
 

Refuge 
 

Housing Benefit- rent and service charges 
 

Various 
 

South Wales 
 

ongoing 

        

 
Police 

SW Police (SARC) 

forensics 
 

350,000 
 
SARC 

 
Forensic Doctors (Private contract) Estimate only 

 
TASCOR 

 
Cardiff 

 
ongoing 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
367,901 

 
Core 

 
Core funding 

 
WWA 

 
All Wales 

 
ongoing 

 
WG  

 
WG 

 
229,862 

 
CYP 

 
Children's project (STAR support Trust respect) 

 
WWA 

 
All Wales 

 
ongoing 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
446,369 

 
Special 

 
DA helpline (AWDASVHL) 

 
WWA 

 
All Wales 

 
ongoing 

   

1,394,132 
   

WWA 
  

        

 

T
udalen y pecyn 112



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 1  

 

 

Review of services for domestic abuse and sexual violence in South Wales 2014:   

Funding for dedicated high and medium risk community provision including coordination. 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 

 
247,000 

 
IDVA 

 
WSU IDVA service including overhead 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
20,000 

 
IDVA 

 
WSU Male IDVA  Dyn 

 
WSU 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator  (managed by CWA) 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

Communities (Build 

Safer Communities) 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
CWA IDVA post 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
23,600 

 
IDVA 

CWA  Intake & Assessment (IDVA /key worker posts) 

(70,799 x 2/6) 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
47,199 

 
FS ext 

CWA  Intake & Assessment (IDVA /key worker posts) 

(70,799 x 4/6) 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
69,822 

 
IDVA 

CWA Tenancy Support (IDVA/ key worker posts) 

(209,467 x 2/6) 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
139,645 

 
FS ext 

CWA Tenancy Support (IDVA/ key worker posts) 

(209,467 x 4/6) 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
HO 

 
Home Office 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
40,000 

 
IDVA 

 
CWA IDVA  x 2 posts 

 
CWA 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
47,686 

 
IDVA 

 
BME IDVA x 1.5 

 
BAWSO 

 
Cardiff 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
67,893 

 
FS ext 

 
Atal Y Fro FS 14 units 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
MOJ 

 
Witness & victim fund 

 
42,483 

 
IDVA 

 
High & Med Risk court advocate 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Sep, 2014 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 

   1Police and Crime Commissioner 

T
udalen y pecyn 113



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 2  

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
Atal Y Fro 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

 
Safer Vale 

 
VOG 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
LA 

 
RCTBC 

 
195,992 

 
IDVA 

Oasis centre Pontypridd Safety Unit (mainstream 

funding) 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Ongoing 

 
LA 

 
RCTBC 

 
24,900 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Ongoing 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
20,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
PPSU 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP 

 
149,132 

 
FS ext 

 
Gwalia Oasis (drop in and medium risk) 

 
Gwalia 

 
RCT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG via CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 

 
Merthyr 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
MOJ 

 
MOJ: victims fund 

 
11,296 

 
IDVA 

 
SDVC IDVA 

Safer Merthyr 

Tydfil 

 
Merthyr 

 
Sep, 2014 

 
PCC1 

 
PCC1 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BWA 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG - CLG (VAWG team) 

 
25,700 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator 

 
SW police 

 
Bridgend 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
Police 

 
Police BCU 

 
16,752 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator (shared with VOG) 

 
SW police 

 
Bridgend 

 
ongoing 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
34,856 

 
FS ext 

 
DAISE project 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Ongoing (SLA) 

 
LA 

SCC adult social 

services 

 
15,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 

   1Police and Crime Commissioner 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 114



Funding information has been determined from various sources; not all verified. 3  

 

 
 

Code 

 
 

Source of funding 

 
 

Funding Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Description of scheme 

(E.g. Core/ Project/ Post etc.) 

 
Recipient/ 

management 

 
 

LA 

 
 

End or review data 

 
LA 

SCC adult social 

services 

 
15,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO - CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO - CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
5,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
5,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA post 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
Swansea Change Fund 

 
4,500 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA administration 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
Swansea Change Fund 

 
4,500 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA administration 

 
BAWSO 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator (4/5) 

 
SWA 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator (4/5) (employed by LA) 

 
SCC 

 
Swansea 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
15,000 

 
MC 

 
MARAC coordinator (4/5) 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG CSP 

 
27,500 

 
DAC 

 
Domestic Abuse Coordinator (3/5) 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
HO 

 
HO 

 
20,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
WG 

 
WG CSP 

 
10,000 

 
IDVA 

 
IDVA 

 
NPT CS 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
43,165 

 
FS ext 

 
PT&AWA FS (plus ad hoc) 

 

PT&AWA 
 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2014 

 
SP 

 
SP FS 

 
127,385 

 
FS ext 

 
Calan DVS FS units (plus crisis) 

 
Calan 

 
NPT 

 
Mar, 2015 

   

1,828,506 
     

        

        

 

T
udalen y pecyn 115



 
 

Appendix: Consultation summary for South Wales project 

As agreed with the Police and Crime Commisioner, we used existing service user consultations to inform 
our recommendations. This appendix outlines the key priorities identified by victims of domestic abuse 
and service providers. This takes work from Wales as a whole as well as locally within South Wales. 

The views of service users provide insight into the experiences of accessing services and what service 
provision actually feels like. Within South Wales influential and insightful research has been carried out 
by the KAFKA Brigade. This research initially looked at the local profile of identified victims of domestic 
abuse using police data to understand the characteristics of the victims and abuse within Rhonda Cynon 
Taf (2008). This proved useful to educate people about victims of domestic abuse but also to consider 
the service users in regards to service provision. KAFKA carried out further research in Rhonda Cynon 
Taf, Newport and Merthyr Tydfil, gathering the views and experiences of victims of domestic abuse 
using to understand the current response to domestic abuse and the services used (2009 – 2010). 

The responses from victims were insightful and informative and able to provide an overview of the 
experience they have had in accessing services when experiencing domestic abuse. The following 
themes provide an overview of the issues raised within the KAFKA research: 

• Risk level: The level of support received was dependent on risk level and the response was 
seen as limited when an incident was not considered high risk or serious. 

• Awareness: Victims were not always seeking support from all services which could provide 
help. It was also identified that services which did not specialise in domestic abuse were missing 
opportunities to refer or support victims, meaning the victim was not being made safe at the 
earlier opportunities.  

• Victim focus: Services were considered led by their own priorities and meaning the needs of 
the victim were not forefront of their actions, limiting preferable options for victims. It was also 
felt that the perpetrator is prioritised more than the victim, facing fewer challenges when 
accessing services.  

• Support: Support was very well received when it was provided with an appreciation for it. There 
was a lack of support for children noted, with limited options available to support them. Victims 
did feel that the support they received could be inconsistent and dependent on the individual 
person within an organisation, rather than the support they could offer. 

 

Research carried out by Supporting People in Gwent and North Wales (2011) reviewed statutory services 
for victims of domestic abuse by consulting those who have accessed them. This included housing, 
refuge, social services and police, as well as specific domestic abuse services. Responses indicated that 
they did not feel that their situation was always taken entirely seriously if it was not high risk, and that 
they were required to fit in with organisational targets rather than the service prioritising their needs, 
echoing the KAFKA findings (2009 – 10). The Supporting People users also felt that services had an 
absence of consideration for the abuse they were experiencing and this led to a lack of suitable service 
options to help improve their situation.  

The work carried out within South Wales by the KAFKA Brigade has been utilised and built upon within 
the 10,000 Safer Lives report 2012 for Wales, focussing on the service providers views of service 
provision and priorities for change. Regional workshops with professionals with responsibilities for 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

1 Tudalen y pecyn 116



 
 

domestic abuse across Wales were carried out during November 2011 – January 2012 to consider 
service quality and priorities for change and practice.  

The following themes emerged from these workshops as areas which needed to be prioritised to 
improve the response to domestic abuse: 
 

• Strategic direction and leadership was required to remove barriers to effective service 
delivery and improve the awareness and implementation of domestic abuse as a priority. 

• Improved multi-agency training to improve the support and response for standard and 
medium risk victims. 

• Effective information-sharing to enable victims of all risk levels to receive a good multi-
agency response to domestic abuse. Information sharing should also include evidence on 
effective practice and service need. 

• Prevention with an emphasis on early intervention and education for children and young 
people. Prevention of escalation of standard and medium risk by consistent, effective use of risk 
assessments and safety plans.  

• Consistent, high quality service, to improve the response to medium and standard risk 
victims and using victim’s experience of services to ensure changes are implemented effectively. 

 
These themes were also reflected upon within the Welsh Government’s proposed ‘Ending Violence 
Against Women and Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill’: Recommendations from the Task and Finish Group, 
August 2012. This paper outlines the following themed recommendations:  

• Stronger leadership across public services in Wales that is independent, can monitor and 
challenge, providing a strategic overview 

• Better education and awareness across the lifetime, that includes the public and 
professionals 

• Strengthening and integrating services that are timely, consistent, effective and of a quality 
standard. Alongside the issues of education and leadership, it was identified that current services 
for Wales are inconsistent and based on a postcode lottery. 

 

One of the most integral themes which came out from service providers and stakeholders consultations 
was the need for leadership and commitment from senior and strategic levels. Within the regional 
workshops held to inform the 10,000 Safer Lives report in 2011 – 2012, it was felt that to make a 
significant improvement the effect of strategic support was essential to ensure that barriers to 
implementing and carrying out good services could be removed, and actions could be taken to make 
necessary changes. It was also recognised that to enable consistent messages to front line staff, they 
needed to come from senior and strategic leaders. Within the recommendations for the Task and Finish 
Group (2012) it was identified that leadership should be independent and with the authority to challenge 
and influence.  

To work in a more preventative supportive way to victims it was felt that the awareness of domestic 
abuse was particularly key, for both the public, victims, perpetrators and service providers, especially on 
the front line. Within the Safer Lives workshops there was particular concern for victims of standard and 
medium risk not being supported as they were not high risk. Implementing consistent use of risk 
assessments and safety plans to support victims of non-high risk abuse was thought as particularly 
important to preventing escalation in abuse. These issues are reflected within views of victims of 
domestic abuse, reporting that it would not be until an incident considered high risk had taken place that 
support was offered and actions taken.  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

2 Tudalen y pecyn 117



 
 

Practice around information sharing was discussed within regional workshops for 10,000 Safer Lives 
identifying that areas did practice this, but that it varied greatly within Wales. It was identified that 
information sharing is not just important to address high risk domestic abuse, but also non high risk 
abuse to ensure there is a strong response to all victims.  

Within South Wales the priorities outlined in Single Integrated Plans and Community Strategies relating 
to domestic abuse vary. Within some of the local authorities there are relatively clear indications and 
commitments to understanding and reducing domestic abuse, however this did vary between the local 
authorities. Of the consultations carried out on the local priorities in Single Integrated Plans and 
Communities Strategies there was a very consistent consensus that the public were in agreement with 
any priorities relating to domestic abuse.  

Consultation documents used in the process 

• Reflections and learning points from domestic violence projects in Wales, KAFKA Brigade, 2009-
10 

Overview: KAFKA Brigade has worked with services in Rhondda Cynon Taf, Newport and Merthy Tydfil 
to get an insight into service provision from victims of domestic abuse receiving support from services. 
This research gave an informative understanding of the victims experiences and provided  
Identified themes: Awareness of domestic abuse support by services and service users, inconsistent 
quality of response by risk level, services lacking victim focus and support for children was not wide 
enough.  
 

• Domestic Abuse in Rhondda Cynon Taf Explorative Research Report, Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Community Safety Partnerhsip, 2008. 

Overview: The KAFKA Brigade carried out research to outline the characteristics of victims of domestic 
abuse reporting to the police and the actual incidents of domestic abuse. This work informed areas of 
the general characteristics of the victims, and also the seasonal trends around incidents. A profile was 
made of ‘Emma’, which was to help inform areas of who the victims of domestic abuse in the area are, 
which could be used to inform decisions on the services provided. 
 

• 10,000 Safer Lives, Final Report, Welsh Government, April 2012 
Online 
location: http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/pslg/nwp/effectservices/10ksaferlivesreport/?lan
g=en  
Overview: Report by Welsh Government using insight from service providers and those responsible for 
domestic abuse across wales. Regional workshops were held during 2011 – 2012 to understand the 
barriers to effective work around domestic abuse and how these can be removed. There were 225 
delegates attending these workshops from a range of sectors, leaders from Public Service did not 
attend.  
Identified themes: Strategic direction and leadership; Improved multi-agency training; Effective 
information-sharing; Prevention and Consistent, high quality service  
 

• The Welsh Government’s proposed ‘Ending Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse 
(Wales) Bill’: Recommendations from the Task and Finish Group, August 2012 

Online 
location: http://www.cardiff.ac.uk/socsi/resources/Robinson%20et%20al%20%282012%29%20Task%
20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report.pdf  

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

3 Tudalen y pecyn 118

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/pslg/nwp/effectservices/10ksaferlivesreport/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/pslg/nwp/effectservices/10ksaferlivesreport/?lang=en
http://www.cardiff.ac.uk/socsi/resources/Robinson%20et%20al%20%282012%29%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report.pdf
http://www.cardiff.ac.uk/socsi/resources/Robinson%20et%20al%20%282012%29%20Task%20and%20Finish%20Group%20Report.pdf


 
 

Overview: A detailed report from the task and finish group set up to look at leadership and 
accountability, education and awareness and strengthening services. Each theme had the key issues 
identified, and the current responses available, recommendations were then made based on the 
evidence available. This paper takes into consideration the findings of KAFKA and the 10,000 Safer 
Livers project. 

Identified themes: Stronger Leadership, Better education and awareness and Strengthening and 
integrating services 

• The pathfinders and modernisation: Working towards a regional approach to delivering 
domestic abuse housing services, North Wales and Gwent Supporting People, 2011 

Online location: http://www.slidefinder.net/t/the-pathfinders-and-modernisation-ann-dann-and-julie-
nicholas/32873996  
Overview: This research used 74 women’s ‘journeys’ as well as interviews conducted with professionals 
from local services supporting domestic abuse victims, including housing, police, social workers, and 
specific domestic abuse workers, as well as specific refuge consultation. This research was used to 
identify the experiences of women accessing statutory services and how they felt about the service they 
received. Many of the experiences were quite negative where the individuals felt that the professionals 
in the service did not have compassion or understanding of the risks they were experiencing, and the 
response was inconsistent between different members of staff. The refuge consultation revealed that the 
prompt response and offer of a safe place was important, however the actual facilities were not always 
practical for the family needs, other issues such as complex needs and move on accommodation was not 
always appropriate or available for the users needs. The perception of refuges were reported as quite 
negative prior to using one, however valued once they had been used.  
 

• The One Swansea Plan Consultation Findings Report, Swansea Local Service Board, April 2013 
Online 
location: http://www.swansea.gov.uk/media/pdfwithtranslation/4/j/OSP_Consultation_Findings_2013.p
df  
Overview: Swansea ran a consultation on their One Swansea Plan from 29th November 2012 to 4th 
March 2013 and included individual responses from 221 people and 28 organisational responses.  

Identified themes: Respondents strongly agreed that information sharing, working together and to 
some extent a thorough review was important to address domestic abuse and its impact upon children. 

• Involving People, A Public Engagement Strategy for Rhondda Cynon Taf, Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Borough Council, March 2013 

Online 
location: http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/en/relateddocuments/publications/publicrelationsstrategy/single-
integrated-plan-march-2013/involving-people.pdf  
Overview: Rhondda conducted analysis with regards to their SIP however there were very few 
respondents (10). The only comments with regards to domestic abuse identified that it was important to 
support both male and female victims of domestic abuse, and that there was agreement that the local 
priorities were correct. 

• Bridgend County Together, Consultation Report, Bridgend County, 2013 
Online location: http://www.bridgendlsb.org.uk/media/2622/consultation-report.pdf  
Overview: The public consultation on the draft plan started on 7th January and lasted 12 weeks. The 
consultation closed on 31st March 2013 and there were 1,013 respondents. To achieve the outcome that 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

4 Tudalen y pecyn 119

http://www.slidefinder.net/t/the-pathfinders-and-modernisation-ann-dann-and-julie-nicholas/32873996
http://www.slidefinder.net/t/the-pathfinders-and-modernisation-ann-dann-and-julie-nicholas/32873996
http://www.swansea.gov.uk/media/pdfwithtranslation/4/j/OSP_Consultation_Findings_2013.pdf
http://www.swansea.gov.uk/media/pdfwithtranslation/4/j/OSP_Consultation_Findings_2013.pdf
http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/en/relateddocuments/publications/publicrelationsstrategy/single-integrated-plan-march-2013/involving-people.pdf
http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/en/relateddocuments/publications/publicrelationsstrategy/single-integrated-plan-march-2013/involving-people.pdf
http://www.bridgendlsb.org.uk/media/2622/consultation-report.pdf


 
 

Bridgend County is a great place to live, work and visit respondents thought that the action of 
encouraging increased reporting of violent crime and domestic abuse through awareness raising 
campaigns was ranked as the most important action that would achieve this outcome.  

Identified themes: There was a lot of support for encouraging reporting domestic abuse through 
awareness raising campaigns. 
 

• Report on the Consultation for the Single Integrated Plan, Merthyr Tydfil Local Service Board, 
Merthyr Tydfil Council, March 2013 

Online 
location: http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/English/CommunityAndLiving/CommunityAdvice/Documents/Repo
rt%20on%20the%20Consultation%20for%20the%20Single%20Integrated%20Plan.pdf  

Overview: This consultation had 177 respondents which were asked on their opinions of the proposed 
Single Integrated Plan prioritises. There was overwhelming agreement that prioritising domestic abuse 
would have a positive impact on local people. 

Identified themes: Strong support for prioritising domestic abuse. 
 

 

 
A Review of Services for Victims of Domestic Abuse in South Wales 

CAADA, 2014 

5 Tudalen y pecyn 120

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/English/CommunityAndLiving/CommunityAdvice/Documents/Report%20on%20the%20Consultation%20for%20the%20Single%20Integrated%20Plan.pdf
http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/English/CommunityAndLiving/CommunityAdvice/Documents/Report%20on%20the%20Consultation%20for%20the%20Single%20Integrated%20Plan.pdf


caada 3rd Floor  Maxet House  28 Baldwin Street  Bristol  BS1 1NG  T  0117 317 8750

E-mail queries@caada.org.uk  Web  www.caada.org.uk  Charity No.1106864

Tudalen y pecyn 121



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-28-14 Paper5  

Tudalen y pecyn 122



Tudalen y pecyn 123



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

DG Proposed Changes to Government Bill  
 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-28-14 Paper5a  
 

 

An Act of the National Assembly for Wales to make provision in relation to violence against 

women and other domestic and sexual abuse 

 

Having been passed by the National Assembly for Wales and having received the assent 

of Her Majesty, it is enacted as follows: 

 

Introduction 

 

1  Purpose [ — Replacement for Government Bill section 1] 

 

 The purposes of this Act are to provide— 

 

(a) effective strategies for the prevention of violence against women and other 

domestic and sexual abuse; 

 

(b) improved arrangements for the protection of victims of violence against 

women and other domestic and sexual abuse; and 

 

(c) effective support for people affected by violence against women and other 

domestic and sexual abuse. 

 

Welsh Government Duties 

 

2 National Strategy 

 

[No changes to Government section 2 – references to Bill purpose will refer back 

automatically to substituted purposes as per section 1.] 

 

 

3  Implementation of national strategy 
 

[No changes to Government section 3 – references to Bill purpose will refer back 

automatically to substituted purposes as per section 1.] 

 

 

3A Raising awareness [ — New section] 
 

(1) Welsh Ministers must include in their implementation of their national strategy, in 

particular, provision for campaigns which in their opinion will — 

 

(a) raise awareness of violence against women and other domestic and sexual 

abuse; and 

Tudalen y pecyn 124



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

DG Proposed Changes to Government Bill  
 

 

 

(b) challenge entrenched attitudes in society which support existing levels of, 

and tolerance or acceptance of, violence against women and other 

domestic and sexual abuse. 

 

(2) Welsh Ministers must also include provision for campaigns which are designed to 

raise awareness of— 

(a) what services are available to protect or support the victims of violence 

against women or other domestic and sexual abuse; and 

 

(b) new initiatives being developed to protect or support those victims. 

 

(3) Welsh Ministers must also— 

 

(a) include provision for a national training framework in relation to issues of 

violence against women or other domestic and sexual abuse; and 

 

(b) ensure that the framework receives sufficient funding to allow it to be 

effective. 

 

 

Duties of local authorities and other public bodies 

 

 

4 Duty to prepare strategies 

 

[To follow lines of Government section 4 – but duty to be imposed on all public authorities, 

not only local authorities.] 

 

 

5  Publication and review of local strategies 

 

[No changes to Government section 5.] 

 

 

6  Matters to which regard must be had in preparing or reviewing a local strategy 

 

[No changes to Government section 6.] 

 

 

7 Duty to implement local strategies 

 

[To follow lines of Government section 7 – but with added provisions as follows—] 

 

(3) A public authority’s implementation of its strategy under section 4 must, in 

particular, include— 

Tudalen y pecyn 125



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

DG Proposed Changes to Government Bill  
 

 

 

(a) arrangements for the strategy to be published; 

 

(b) arrangements for the strategy to be monitored for effectiveness, by 

reference to assessments of needs and prevalence of issues relating to 

violence against women or other domestic and sexual abuse; 

 

(c) provision to ensure that the necessary funding is made available to deliver 

services required to achieve the objectives specified in the strategy; 

 

(d) arrangements for all staff of the authority to be required to undertake 

training in relation to violence against women or other domestic and 

sexual abuse, including training designed to encourage staff to take a 

proactive attitude towards identifying and resolving issues; 

 

(e) arrangements for the appointment of a Violence and Abuse Champion, 

who receives the necessary training and support to take the lead within the 

authority on issues relating to violence against women and other domestic 

and sexual abuse; 

 

(f) arrangements to require or encourage persons (public or private) having 

dealings with the authority to cooperate with and participate in action 

being taken on issues relating to violence against women and other 

domestic and sexual abuse, with a view to combining forces to achieve the 

most effective responses to or resolutions of those issues; 

 

(g) arrangements to require or encourage persons (public or private) having 

dealings with the authority to share information where actually or 

potentially relevant to violence against women or other domestic and 

sexual abuse, with a view to enhancing safety and providing the most 

effective support for victims; 

 

(h) referral mechanisms to ensure that those in need of services relating to  

violence against women and other domestic and sexual abuse have access 

to them in the safest and fastest possible way; 

 

(i) arrangements for the display (by the authority and by other public service 

organisations), in workplaces and public places, of appropriate information 

about violence against women and other domestic and sexual abuse. 

 

 

7A  Education [ — New section] 

 

(1) In this section “education authorities” means— 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 126



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

DG Proposed Changes to Government Bill  
 

 

(a) the Welsh Ministers, in so far as their functions extend to educational 

matters; 

 

(b) local authorities, in so far as their functions extend to educational matters; 

and 

 

(c) proprietors, governing bodies and senior leadership teams of schools in 

Wales. 

 

(2) Education authorities must take reasonable steps to ensure the provision, as part of the 

education of all children and young persons, of education in relation to violence 

against women and other domestic and sexual abuse. 

 

(3) Education provided in accordance with subsection (2) must be appropriate to the age 

of the children and young persons concerned. 

 

(4) Education provided in accordance with subsection (2) must explore, to the extent and 

in the manner appropriate, issues of— 

 

(a) gender inequality; and 

 

(b) respect and consent as part of a healthy relationship. 

 

(5) Education authorities must take all reasonable steps to ensure that each school has a 

Violence and Abuse Champion with senior leadership responsibility for addressing 

issues relating to violence against women and other domestic and sexual abuse in a 

coherent manner throughout the school. 

 

(6) Education authorities must take all reasonable steps to ensure that all teachers and 

school governors receive training in issues relating to violence against women and 

other domestic and sexual abuse. 

 

 

8 National indicators 

 

[No changes to Government section 8.] 

 

 

9 Annual progress report by Welsh Ministers 

 

[No changes to Government section 9.] 

 

10 Annual progress reports  

 

[To follow lines of Government section 10 – but duty to be imposed on all public authorities, 

not only local authorities.] 

Tudalen y pecyn 127



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

DG Proposed Changes to Government Bill  
 

 

 

 

11 Meaning of “relevant authority” 

 

[No changes to Government section 11.] 

 

 

12 Power to issue statutory guidance 
 

[No changes to Government section 12.] 

 

 

13 Consultation and National Assembly for Wales Procedure 

 

[No changes to Government section 13.] 

 

 

14 Duty to follow statutory guidance 
 

[No changes to Government section 14.] 

 

 

15 Policy statements: requirements and ancillary powers 

 

[No changes to Government section 15.] 

 

 

16 Directions 

 

[No changes to Government section 16.] 

 

 

Ministerial Adviser 

 

17 Ministerial Adviser on Violence Against Women and Other Domestic Abuse 

 

[To follow lines of Government section 17 – but title of post Ministerial Adviser on Violence 

Against Women and Other Domestic and Sexual Abuse.] 

 

 

18 Functions of the Adviser 

 

[No changes to Government section 18.] 

 

 

19 Annual plan and annual reports 

Tudalen y pecyn 128



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse (Wales) Bill 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 
 

DG Proposed Changes to Government Bill  
 

 

 

[No changes to Government section 19.] 

 

 

20 Publication of reports 

 

[No changes to Government section 20.] 

 

 

General 

21 Interpretation 

 

[No changes to Government section 21.] 

 

 

22 Commencement 

 

[No changes to Government section 22.] 

 

 

23 Short title [ — Replacement for Government section 23]  

 

The short title of this Act is the Violence Against Women and Domestic Abuse 

(Wales) Act 2014. 

Tudalen y pecyn 129



Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh 
Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol / Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

Gwasanaeth y Pwyllgorau / Committee Service 
Ffôn / Tel : 029 2089 8032 

Ebost / Email : CELG.Committee@wales.gov.uk  
 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 6  
 

Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 

Llywodraeth Leol 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government 

Committee 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  

Mr Mark Brooks  

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 

 Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

                                                              

                                

  

02 October  2014  

 

 

 

Dear Mark, 

 

Gender-based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Bill 

Thank you for attending the Communities, Equality and Local Government 

Committee meeting on 1 October, to give evidence on the Gender-based 

Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Bill. 

During the session you agreed to address any outstanding questions that we did 

not get an opportunity to put to you within the time available. The Committee 

would be interested to hear from you on the following: 

Definitions 

– Can you expand on your concerns about the definitions used in the Bill? 

– Is there potential for confusion over the definitions used between different 

devolved and non-devolved agencies? 

– Is ‘gender-based violence’ an appropriate definition to use in the Bill? 

Financial implications 

– Is there a danger that the requirements of the Bill could divert resources 

away from frontline services? 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 130



 2 

– Are you concerned that the Bill may lead to an increase in demand for 

services without increased funding to deliver them, and is there a need to 

commission services in a different way to ensure value for money? 

During the meeting you also agreed to provide further information on whether 

there is a link between the physical punishment of children and domestic abuse in 

general, in the context of education and how children and young people are 

prepared for citizenship. 

It would be helpful to hear from you as soon as possible, and by Friday 17 

October at the latest, to enable us to take account of the information when 

preparing our Stage 1 report.  

 

 Best Wishes  

 

Christine Chapman AC / AM 

Cadeirydd / Chair 

Tudalen y pecyn 131



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 6a  

 
 

Flook House, Belvedere Road, Taunton, TA1 1BT 

admin@mankind.org.uk : www.mankind.org.uk 01823 334244 
Registered Charity No. 1089547 – Company Registration No. 3869893 

Honorary Patrons – Lord Cotter, Ian McNicholl, John Penrose MP, Erin Pizzey and Sara Westle 

 
 

Consultation on the Gender-based Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence (Wales) Bill: Request for further information 

 

(1) Definitions 

 

(i) Can you expand on your concerns about the definitions used in the Bill? 

 

Our concern is that the definitions used in the Bill will drive strategy which in turn will drive 

service provision. Our belief is that individual need should drive strategy which in turn should 

drive provision. 

 

As the Minister has indicated, the government is looking to reinstate ‘Violence against 

Women’ as a key definition and driver for the Bill. Our argument and one made at the 

committee hearing is that this will have a damaging effect on male victims of domestic abuse, 

sexual violence and forced marriage in Wales. 

 

This is because by defining these crimes as gendered on the basis that they affect females in 

Wales more than males leads to the overwhelming, primary and disproportionate focus to be 

on female victims because of gender rather than both female and male victims based on 

need. This has been the public policy and service provision history of domestic abuse, forced 

marriage and sexual violence over the past 40 years. 

 

The result will be that strategies that the statutory agencies in Wales have to construct and 

implement, the training of front-line professionals and also other related issues will be 

overwhelmingly female-centric rather than victim-centric. Thereby relegating male victims, 

and their daughter and sons if relevant, to being second class victims. 

 

There is also the issue of consistency. As outlined at the committee 90% of people who are 

homeless are male, yet rightly the Welsh Government would not consider prefixing any 

Tudalen y pecyn 132

mailto:admin@mankind.org.uk
http://www.mankind.org.uk/


legislation, regulations or guidance with the term ‘Male’ so why would it consider this for 

domestic abuse, forced marriage and sexual violence? 

 

(ii) Is there potential for confusion over the definitions used between different devolved 

and non-devolved agencies? 

 

There is ample room for confusion which is why current gender neutral definitions are more 

appropriate and also that there is one definition for each crime. 

At one level, this just makes life simpler and less complex for both practitioners in devolved 

and non-devolved agencies whose focus should be on service delivery and support not on 

what definition to use and what is best to use.  

For example, police forces across the UK were criticised recently by Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of Constabulary1 for their support to domestic abuse victims. The basis of the 

report is the gender-neutral Home Office definition of domestic abuse2. If another definition is 

used in Wales, then the four police forces in Wales will be dealing with two different 

definitions – one from the Home Office and one devolved agencies would be using when they 

work with them. That is both confusing and inefficient, and does not support good simple 

straghtforward government. 

In addition, the law of unintended consequences means that that if devolved and non-

devolved agencies are using different definitions there is the risk that situations may arise 

where an individual or a service provider does not get the support they need. For example, if 

an individual needs support from both a devolved and non-devolved agency, due to the 

different definitions it may mean that they cannot get the full package of support they need. 

 

1 http://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/our-work/domestic-violence-and-abuse/ 

2 https://www.gov.uk/domestic-violence-and-abuse 

 

(iii) Is ‘gender-based violence’ an appropriate definition to use in the Bill? 

Our view is that the use of ‘gender-based violence’ risks male victims of forced marriage from 

being excluded in the public policy creation and the subsequent service provision. We 

recognise the difficulty with calling a Bill Forced Marriage, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence’ is how FGM is included. 

Our main priority is to maintain that domestic abuse and sexual violence is not recogonised 

as either gender-based violence’ and ‘violence against women’. We had suggested in our 

earlier submission that the Bill be renamed as ‘Domestic Abuse, Gender-based Violence and 

Sexual Violence Bill’ 

Tudalen y pecyn 133



 

 

(2) Financial implications 
 

(i) Is there a danger that the requirements of the Bill could divert resources away from 

frontline services? 

We do not believe the requirements could divert resources away from frontline services for 

male victims, we believe they will enhance them. Albeit we do not support resources being 

diverted away from female victims and given to male victims. 

 

(ii) Are you concerned that the Bill may lead to an increase in demand for services 

without increased funding to deliver them, and is there a need to commission services 

in a different way to ensure value for money? 

We are concerned that there may be an increased in demand for services for male victims 

without increased funding but as this demand has to be met not only due to the powers in this 

Bill but also due to the Equality Act (2010) it will mean that the commissioning landscape will 

change to ensure male victims are included. This is something we support. 

 

(iii) Further information on whether there is a link between the physical punishment of 

children and domestic abuse in general, in the context of education and how children 

and young people are prepared for citizenship. 

I have looked for academic evidence for this and have not found the evidence of a clear link. 

Anecdotally we feel that someone committing domestic abuse will have been more likely to 

have grown up in a traumatic household where domestic abuse in normalised. This could 

include domestic abuse between parents, physical punishment on the children but also 

emotional and psychological abuse leading to retraumatisation in later life. 

In terms of preparing for citizenship, Home Office statistics3 covering England and Wales 

state that younger people are more likely to be a victim of domestic and partner abuse than 

those in older age groups. In 2012/13, 7.5% of men aged 16-19 were victims of domestic 

abuse and 3.6% were victims of partner abuse. The figures were 11.3% and 6.3% for women 

respectively. It is vital that as part of preparing for citizenship that domestic and partner abuse 

is both seen and information is given that it is domestic abuse is unacceptable whether the 

teenage victim is a girl or a boy. 

3  ONS BCS Focus on Violent Crime and Sexual Offences 2012/13 http://tinyurl.com/nb4xga; Table 4.09 
on Appendix Table: http://tinyurl.com/qgxb7xg 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 134

http://tinyurl.com/nb4xgac
http://tinyurl.com/qgxb7xg


The ManKind Initiative: October 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 135



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 7  

Tudalen y pecyn 136



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 137

Eitem 8Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 140

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 144

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 148

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 152

Eitem 9 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i Dlodi yng Nghymru: cynllunio'r flaenraglen waith
	4 Craffu ar gyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2015-2016 - Sesiwn dystiolaeth gan y Prif Weinidog
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 2
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 2a Atodiad

	5 Comisiynydd y Gymraeg: Trafod yr Adroddiad Blynyddol
	6 Papurau i'w nodi
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 3 ( Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 4 ( Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 4a ( Saesneg yn unig)
	South Wales PCC main report 1
	South Wales Review of Domestic Abuse Services 21.08.14 FINAL
	Executive summary
	Section 1: Background, context and current service provision
	Section 2: Recommendations
	Appendices

	14.07.14 Appendix A - Accomodation based support
	Appendix: Accommodation-based support

	South Wales Review All Funding 21.08.14 FINAL
	South Wales funding community services only 21.08.14 FINAL
	Appendix B - Consultation summary for South Wales project
	Appendix: Consultation summary for South Wales project

	South Wales PCC main report 2

	CELG(4)-28-14  Papur 5 ( Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14  Papur 5a ( Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 6 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14 Paper  6a (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14 Paper 7 ( Saesneg yn unig)

	8 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2015-16: Trafod y llythyrau drafft
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 9 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 10 (Saesneg yn unig)
	CELG(4)-28-14 Papur 11 ( Saesneg yn unig)

	9 Y Bil Trais ar sail Rhywedd, Cam-drin Domestig a Thrais Rhywiol (Cymru): trafod adroddiad drafft Cyfnod 1



